
 
 
Democratic Services   

Guildhall, High Street, Bath BA1 5AW   

Telephone: (01225) 477000 main switchboard   

Direct Line: 01225 394411  Date: 17 November 2015 

Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of the Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel 

 
Councillor Sarah Bevan 
Councillor Bob Goodman 
Councillor Christopher Pearce 
Councillor Jasper Martin Becker 
Councillor Colin Barrett 
Councillor Chris Dando 
Councillor Andrew Furse 
 

 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers  
Press and Public  

 
 
Dear Member 
 
Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel: Wednesday, 25th November, 2015  
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny 
Panel, to be held on Wednesday, 25th November, 2015 at 4.30 pm in the Kingston Room - 
Pump Room, Bath. 
 
The agenda is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
Michaela Gay 
for Chief Executive 
 

If you need to access this agenda or any of the supporting reports in an alternative 
accessible format please contact Democratic Services or the relevant report author 
whose details are listed at the end of each report. 

 

This Agenda and all accompanying reports are printed on recycled paper 

 



NOTES: 
 

1. Inspection of Papers: Any person wishing to inspect minutes, reports, or a list of the 
background papers relating to any item on this Agenda should contact Michaela Gay who 
is available by telephoning Bath 01225 394411 or by calling at the Guildhall Bath (during 
normal office hours). 
 

2. Public Speaking at Meetings: The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to 
make their views known at meetings. They may make a statement relevant to what the 
meeting has power to do.  They may also present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a 
group.  Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting 
(this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday)  
 

The public may also ask a question to which a written answer will be given. Questions 
must be submitted in writing to Democratic Services at least two full working days in 
advance of the meeting (this means that for meetings held on Wednesdays, notice must 
be received in Democratic Services by 4.30pm the previous Friday). If an answer cannot 
be prepared in time for the meeting it will be sent out within five days afterwards. Further 
details of the scheme can be obtained by contacting Michaela Gay as above. 
 

3. Details of Decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
published as soon as possible after the meeting, and also circulated with the agenda for 
the next meeting.  In the meantime details can be obtained by contacting Michaela Gay as 
above. 
 

Appendices to reports are available for inspection as follows:- 
 

Public Access points - Reception: Civic Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies 
- Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and Midsomer Norton public libraries. 
 
For Councillors and Officers papers may be inspected via Political Group Research 
Assistants and Group Rooms/Members' Rooms. 
 

4. Recording at Meetings:- 
 
The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and 
recording by anyone attending a meeting.  This is not within the Council’s control. 
 
Some of our meetings are webcast.  At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all 
or part of the meeting is to be filmed.  If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, 
please make yourself known to the camera operators. 
 
To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or 
guardians before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to 
the camera operator 
 
The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be 
available for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound 
recordings on its social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters. 
 

5. Attendance Register: Members should sign the Register which will be circulated at the 
meeting. 
 



6. THE APPENDED SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS ARE IDENTIFIED BY AGENDA ITEM 
NUMBER. 
 

7. Emergency Evacuation Procedure 
 

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the 
designated exits and proceed to the named assembly point.  The designated exits are 
sign-posted. 
 

Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people. 
 

 



 

 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel - Wednesday, 25th November, 2015 
 

at 4.30 pm in the Kingston Room - Pump Room, Bath 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

2. EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out 
under Note 6. 

 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare. 

(b) The nature of their interest. 

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

 

5. TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  

 

6. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 
STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 
THIS MEETING  

 At the time of publication no notifications had been received. 

 

7. MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12) 

 



8. DIRECTORATE PLAN FOR RESOURCES (Pages 13 - 38) 

 A report on the Directorate Plan for Resources and appendices are attached. 

 

9. BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL CORPORATE STRATEGY 2016-
20 (Pages 39 - 66) 

 This report introduces the draft Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate 
Strategy 2016-20 for consideration and discussion.  

 

10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT (Pages 67 - 88) 

 A report on Performance Management is attached along with the 2014/15 Annual 
Performance Report. 

 

11. CABINET MEMBER UPDATE  

 The Cabinet Member will update the panel on any relevant issues. Panel members 
may ask questions 

 

12. PANEL WORKPLAN (Pages 89 - 94) 

 This report presents the latest workplan for the Panel. Any suggestions for further 
items or amendments to the current programme will be logged and scheduled in 
consultation with the Panel’s Chair and supporting officers. 

 
The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Michaela Gay who can be contacted on  
01225 394411. 
 
 

 

 (a)   

 (b)   



This page is intentionally left blank



 

13 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Wednesday, 2nd September, 2015 

 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 

 
RESOURCES POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND SCRUTINY PANEL 

 

Wednesday, 2nd September, 2015 
 

Present:- Councillors Sarah Bevan (Chair), Bob Goodman (Vice-Chair), 
Christopher Pearce, Jasper Becker, Colin Barrett and Andrew Furse 
 
 
 

 
12 

  
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

13 

  
EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  

 

The Chairman drew attention to the emergency evacuation procedure. 

 
14 

  
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

 

There were none. 
 

15 

  
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

Councillor Barrett declared an ‘other’ interest as a founder of Percy Boys Club (Percy 
Community Centre is mentioned in item 8). 
 

16 

  
TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIRMAN  

 

There was none. 
 

17 

  
ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC OR COUNCILLORS - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, 

STATEMENTS, PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE BUSINESS OF 

THIS MEETING  

 

There were none. 
 

18 

  
MINUTES  

 

The Panel confirmed the minutes of the previous meeting as a true record and they 
were duly signed by the Chair. 
 

19 

  
COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER UPDATE  

 

Richard Long, Head of Property and Project Delivery gave a verbal update on the 
progress made in relation to the Community Asset Transfer policy. The update 
included: 
 

• A summary of the general approach to granting Community Asset Transfers; 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

 

14 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Wednesday, 2nd September, 2015 

 

• The duty of a Council to dispose of property at best consideration reasonably 
obtainable; 

• Community Benefit; 

• Measure of organisational sustainability; 

• Flexible leases; and 

• Update on current Community Asset Transfers (there is a table attached to 
the agenda for this meeting which provides an update on the status of the 
Community Asset Transfers currently being progressed. This is also on the 
Council’s minute book for this Panel). 

 
Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Goodman asked why there had been no pre-application advice regarding 
the lease to Genesis. The officer explained that negotiations are ongoing on this 
lease. Councillor Goodman asked about Abbey Churchyard and if the Council pays 
for any repairs. The officer explained that the responsibility for repairs transfers with 
the lease. Councillor Goodman asked how much the Council would earn if it was 
receiving commercial rent for these properties. The officer explained that the 
purpose of individual reports for member decisions is to show the potential 
commercial value against other values and benefits to the community. Andrew Pate 
– Strategic Director for Resources explained that details of this are contained in the 
decision register. Cabinet Member for Finance and Efficiency Councillor Charles 
Gerrish explained that a report regarding Genesis would be coming to the Cabinet 
meeting on 9th September 2015 and that the key issue is the outcome of the 
planning application. 
 
Councillor Barrett asked about public conveniences that have been disposed of and 
why they are not included on this list. The officer explained that these are sold on the 
open market and don’t fall within Community Asset Transfer. Councillor Barrett 
asked about Weston public convenience – the Director advised Councillor Barrett to 
email the officer for the details on this. The Cabinet Member added that all properties 
under consideration for Community Asset Transfer were listed in the Budget papers 
in February 2014/15. 
 
Councillor Furse asked if all organisations had been satisfied with the liability for 
maintenance that has been handed to them. The officer explained that he works 
closely with organisations to make sure they understand the liability they are taking 
on. Councillor Furse stated that he was pleased to hear that the Cabinet Member is 
taking an interest in Genesis. He also asked about Chapel Arts Centre and why the 
freehold was sold. The officer explained that freehold was the only next step and that 
there are some stringent restrictive covenants. Councillor Furse was satisfied that 
the community benefit would be maintained.  
 
 

20 

  
HOW COUNCIL CONNECT WORKS  

 

Tracey Long – Group Manager for Customer Services gave a presentation (a copy of 
the presentation slides are attached to the agenda for this meeting and held on the 
Council’s minute book for this Panel). The presentation covered the following: 
 

Page 8



 

 

15 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Wednesday, 2nd September, 2015 

 

• An overview of how Council Connect Works; 

• The face and voice of the Council; 

• Contact Centre; Online; One Stop Shops; 

• Customer first points of contact; 

• What happens to customer requests; 

• We don’t manage customer contacts for; 

• What we do if customers for these services contact us; 

• Service request flow; 

• Managing customer contacts for internal or external partners; 

• Areas for improvement; 

• Overall customer satisfaction rates. 
 
Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Barrett queried the time scales involved in resolving customer requests, 
he gave examples of 3 contacts with Council Connect where no feedback was given. 
He asked to meet with the officer to discuss the issues. The officer agreed to this 
and explained that it is hard to show on a flow chart the different service areas 
response times as they vary. Andrew Pate, Strategic Director for Resources 
explained that the Council does have customer service standards regarding 
response times which should be consistent across the whole Council. He stated that 
it would be useful to know from members which service areas they have had 
problems with and this can be followed up. 
 
Councillor Furse congratulated the team on the customer satisfaction levels. He 
explained that he used to find it hard to get feedback but recently had used Twitter 
regarding some fly tipping and he a good response from refuse teams. He stated 
that he has been pleasantly surprised with the feedback from Twitter and email. 
 
Councillor Pearce asked if Councillors could see a breakdown of information on who 
has complained/what about/what has been done. Georgina Jackman – Programme 
Manager Customer Services explained that she is working on some ward based 
information. Councillor Bevan stated that she used to receive ward statistics 
regularly and asked if this could be provided again. The officer explained that it could 
not be provided on a ward basis. The Director explained that there is a new CRM 
system which is being worked on and will be ready in the next few months. 
Councillor Bevan asked if the system could work out what proportion of issues have 
been resolved, the officer confirmed that the new system could do this. 
 
Councillor Bevan stated that she would like a report to come back to the Panel at 
their March 2016 meeting with information on how feedback is given and also the 
areas of service with the most issues. 
 

21 

  
COMMERCIALISATION - INTRODUCTION AND UPDATE  

 

Tim Richens – Divisional Director for Business Support gave a presentation on ‘How 
far can we commercialise public service?’ (A copy of the presentation slides are 
attached to the agenda for this meeting and held on the Council’s minute book for 
this Panel). The presentation covered the following: 
 

Page 9



 

 

16 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Wednesday, 2nd September, 2015 

 

• Our Organisational Focus; 

• Where the Council spends money 2014/15 - £315.5m – gross spend before 
taking account of income; 

• Where money comes from to pay for all the services 2014/15 - £315.5m 

• Statutory Framework 

• Income 2014/15 

• West England City Region Deal-Growth Incentive 

• West of England Local Enterprise Partnership 

• Opportunities 

• What we are doing 
 
 
Panel members made the following points and asked the following questions: 
 
Councillor Furse asked several questions, he asked about how managing completion 
with private enterprise would work; is the Council eligible for a percentage of income 
outside Bath Quays; a solution regarding visitor contribution and day trippers. He 
stated that he was pleased to see the £770k per annum from the Bath Spa. The 
officer responded to the questions – he explained that the Localism Act covered the 
issue in that the Council is required not to subsidise a business in competition with 
other businesses. Regarding the City Deal, the officer explained that outside the 
zone, the Council gets normal rates and a new Somerset Business Rates Pool helps 
the Council keep a bit more. Regarding visitor contribution, the officer explained that 
this issue is ongoing as the plan for a £1 donation for the Roman Baths would not 
work as the Government has outlawed pre-ticked boxes on forms. 
 
Councillor Barrett asked if the income from Parking is ring fenced. The officer 
explained that this has to be spent on Transport and Highways. Councillor Barrett 
asked about solar panels, the officer explained that the Government are reducing the 
subsidy rates but that the historical tariff is protected.  
 
Councillor Pearce stated that the concept of the Council running businesses is 
interesting, he asked what the boundaries would be for this. The officer explained 
that there is technically no boundary but the Council would have to look at the level 
of risk and that generally it would have to be something in synergy with Council 
Services. The Strategic Director stated that it is a balance between risk and return 
and each case would be a matter of judgement. 
 
 
 

22 

  
CABINET MEMBER UPDATE  

 

Councillor Charles Gerrish, Cabinet Member for Finance and Efficiency explained 
that the financial review is in progress, the review of the Capital Programme is 
complete and in the Cabinet papers for 9th September meeting. 
 

23 

  
PANEL WORKPLAN  

 

Page 10



 

 

17 

Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel- Wednesday, 2nd September, 2015 

 

The Panel noted the workplan items. It was agreed that the Strategic Director and 
Chair would meet to discuss a potential list of future items and would bring the 
workplan to the next Panel meeting. 
 
Councillor Barrett asked about the unscheduled item on the workplan ‘Use of 
Consultants and Agency Staff’ – he asked that a date be given for this item. 
 
The Strategic Director stated that he would be happy to receive emails from Panel 
member if they have any further suggestions. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 6.30 pm  
 

Chair(person)  

 
Date Confirmed and Signed  

 
Prepared by Democratic Services 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Printed on recycled paper 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING: Resources Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel 

MEETING 
DATE:  

25 November 2015 

TITLE: Resources Directorate Plan 2016-2020 

WARD: All 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

• Appendix 1: Resources Directorate Plan 

o Annex 1: Summary of functions of the Division 

o Annex 2: Directorate budget summary (headline numbers) 
o Annex 3: Draft Capital Programme 2016/17 to 2019/20 

o Annex 4: Finance & Resource Impacts 

 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 This report presents the Resources Directorate Plan to the Panel for initial 
consideration and feedback as part of the Council’s service planning and budget 
development process. 
 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

The Panel is asked to: 

2.1 Comment on the draft Resources Directorate Plan and; 

2.2 Identify any areas of feedback the panel would like to refer to the relevant 
Portfolio holders and Cabinet for further consideration as part of the service 
planning and budget development process. 

 
3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 The resource implications are contained within the draft Directorate Plan and its 
appendices. 
 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 This report sets out the framework for the service planning and budget 
processes which lead up to the statutory and legal requirement for the Council to 

Agenda Item 8

Page 13



Printed on recycled paper 

set a budget in February 2016. Proportionate equality analysis is being carried 
out on the proposals within the Directorate Plans. 
 

5 THE REPORT 

Introduction 

5.1 A new Corporate Strategy was agreed by Cabinet at their meeting on 4th 
November 2015. It sets out the 2020 beautifully inventive vision and the 
Council’s direction of travel over the next four years. It is shaped by and will 
deliver the ‘Putting Residents First’ manifesto commitments.  

5.2 Three new Directorate Plans have also been developed. They will flow from the 
Corporate Strategy and set out both the strategic and financial ambitions of each 
Directorate and how they will deliver the Corporate Strategy commitments. 

5.3 The Directorate Plans will replace Medium Term Service and Resource Plans 
(MTSRPs). They include, as appendices, the Directorate budget summary and 
details of growth and savings proposals.  

Performance management 

5.4 The Council will be undertaking a corporate approach to performance 
management in order that we can understand how we are delivering on our 
commitments. Performance management will be against the 4 corporate 
priorities (a focus on prevention, a strong economy and growth, a new 
relationship with customers and communities and an efficient business) as well 
as the outcomes in the Directorate Plans.  

November PDS process 

5.5 During November, the draft Directorate Plans will be presented to the Policy 
Development and Scrutiny (PDS) Panels. Each PDS Panel will be engaged in 
this process and Panels should only concentrate on the parts of the plan relevant 
to their own remit. 

5.6 This Panel is asked to consider the implications of the draft Resources 
Directorate Plan and make recommendations to the relevant portfolio holder(s) 
and Cabinet. Where the panel wishes to either increase expenditure or reduce 
savings targets alternatives should be proposed. 

5.7 At the meeting, the lead for each Directorate Plan will highlight those aspects of 
the plan that are directly relevant to the panel. The table below maps the remit of 
this panel to the related Directorate Plan:  

Resources PDS Panel remit Directorate Plan 

• Customer Services including Revenues & 
Benefits and Council Connect 

• Risk and assurance 

• ICT 

• Procurement 

• Property 

• Finance 

• Resources Directorate 
Plan  

Page 14



Printed on recycled paper 

• Strategy and Performance including, Public 
Sector Partnerships 

• Change Programme 

• Equalities 

• Legal and democratic services 

 
Next steps 

5.8 A number of Budget Fair meetings have been scheduled during November in 
order to provide people with the opportunity to hear about the Council’s financial 
plans for the next four years. There will be an opportunity to ask questions and 
feed into the discussions on the budget proposals. Further details about these 
events can be found here: http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/services/your-council-and-
democracy/budgets-and-spending/budget-fair-consultation-2014  

5.9 Following this, Cabinet will consider the feedback received and prepare the 
Directorate Plans for final consideration at the January PDS meetings (before 
being presented to Cabinet and Council for agreement in February 2016).  

 
6 RATIONALE 

6.1 The Council is required to set a budget which identifies how its financial 
resources are to be allocated and utilised. 

6.2 The attached draft Resources Directorate Plan sets out the context and process 
for the directorate’s service and financial planning.  
 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 The Directorate Plans set out a package of options that reflect the Council’s 
Corporate Strategy, and its overarching visions and values. 

 
8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 The Directorate Plans flow from the Corporate Strategy which was developed in 
consultation with Cabinet and Council officers. They also build on our 2020 
vision which was developed in consultation with the Council, NHS, police, local 
businesses, fire service and voluntary sector. 
 

8.2 Council meetings have been held with officers and cabinet members during the 
development of these directorate plans. Five Budget Fair meetings have also 
been scheduled during November in order to give partners, stakeholders and 
members of the public the opportunity to consider and give feedback on the 
range of proposals included within the plans.  

 
9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 
 

Page 15



Printed on recycled paper 

Contact person  
Andrew Pate, Strategic Director Resources  /  Helen Edelstyn, 
Strategy and Plan Manager (01225 477951) 

Background 
papers 

4th November 2015 Cabinet report: B&NES Corporate Strategy 
2016-2020 

• http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/documents/s38764/E2779%
20Corporate%20Strategy%20cover%20report.pdf  

• http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/documents/s38765/E2779z
Appendix%201%20-
%20BNES%20Corprate%20Strategy%202016-2020.pdf  

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

 

 
 

Page 16



Bath and North East Somerset Council - Resources Directorate Plan 

2016/17 to 2019/20 

 

 

Introduction 

 

This plan sets out the future direction of the Resources Directorate over the next 3 years.  Legal 

& Democratic Services have been included within the Directorate for convenience.  The 

Resources Directorate is one of three Directorates in the Council. 

 

It is intended that the plan will be reviewed annually over the next 3 years.  The plan contains a 

greater level of detail for year one. The detail for the following years will be developed as Council 

policy develops and will take into account consultation about the services affected. There will be 

a staged approach to consultation.   

 

These plans will be considered by PDS panels in November 2015 having been developed on 

behalf of the Cabinet, and will inform the 2016/17 budget setting process. 

 

PART ONE – CORPORATE OVERVIEW 

 

Strategic context  

 

The Bath and North East Somerset 2020 vision sets out our overarching aspirations for the future 

including good health and wellbeing, economic growth, financial sustainability, an effective 

transport system and an efficient, well run Council. The vision was developed in partnership with 

the NHS, police, local business, education, the fire service and the voluntary sector.   

 

‘Bath and North East Somerset will be internationally renowned as a beautifully inventive and 

entrepreneurial 21
st

 century place with a strong social purpose and a spirit of wellbeing, where 

everyone is invited to think big – a ‘connected’ area ready to create an extraordinary legacy for 

future generations’ 

 

We are already making good progress in working towards this vision. We are a national leader in 

the integration of health and social care services for both adults and children and our 

relationship with the NHS continues to grow. Educational outcomes are good at every level and 

GCSE and local unemployment is low at less than five per cent. Our Connecting Families 

programme, working with vulnerable families, is one of the most successful in the country and 

the Roman Baths is one of the top most visited heritage sites in the UK.  

 

However, we know that we need to do even more in order to be financially sustainable and 

deliver high quality services into the future. The landscape for public services continues to 

change and over the next four years we will need to adapt to accommodate the needs of a 

Page 17



growing local population, reduced funding from central government and new legislation that will 

change the way we deliver some services.  

 

These changes, coupled with an increasing demand for many services means that we need to 

transform the way we deliver some services, whilst holding onto our commitment to excellence. 

We have identified four corporate priorities for achieving this as we move towards our 2020 

vision:  

 

• A strong economy and growth 

• A focus on prevention 

• A new relationship with customers and communities 

• An efficient business 

 

If we get this right we will be able to continue to provide exemplary public services for local 

residents. 

 

Financial Context 

The previous Resource Plan covered the 3 year period of 2013/14 – 2015/16 and was in line 

with the existing Council budget priorities and policy framework.  

 

Since the national and local elections in May 2015 the Government has not provided any 

detailed information on local government funding beyond 31 March 2016.  This was not a part 

of the Chancellor’s Emergency Budget Statement on 8 July 2015. However, the Chancellor is set 

to announce the national Spending Review in November leading to the Financial Settlement for 

Local Government sometime just before Christmas 2015.  

 

We therefore cannot be certain about local government funding from 2016/17 onwards, 

although we can expect the financial challenge facing the public sector to continue throughout 

the period of this parliament from 2016/17 to 2019/20. The more recently announced national 

proposals about 100% business rates retention will not necessarily improve the financial 

standing of the Council as the benefits may be offset but other changes.  Nevertheless it is clear 

that there will be an even greater positive financial incentive for local economic growth. 

 

Whilst the scale and speed of funding reductions are not yet clear, there are a number of 

factors which we can identify that will impact on our funding going forwards: 

 

• Continuing reductions in the national control total for local government funding – we 

assume this will be around 40% over the next four years with an element of front 

loading. 

• A significant increase in employer’s national insurance contributions to fund the new 

national pension arrangements – equivalent to £2.4M in 2016/17 in cash terms. 

Page 18



• The ongoing impact of new legislation including the Care Act 2014 and the cost of adult 

social care. 

• The need to provide for future pay inflation. 

• The potential impact of changes to interest rates and the revenue cost of meeting the 

Council’s full borrowing requirement. 

• The level of inflationary and demographic cost pressures. 

 

The initial Financial Planning work to look at the future scale of this financial challenge for the 

Council originally estimated that the likely savings, or additional income required, would be 

around £38M for this 4-year period. The position has been reviewed in light of both local and 

national decisions and announcements resulting in a reduction in the estimated financial 

planning target to just over £30M. Given the scale of savings already achieved in the current 

Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget, it is likely that future savings will require some 

prioritised changes to Council services. 

 

As part of this, the decision of Council to make a contribution of £1.5 million from reserves to 

meet an on-going revenue budget gap in the 2015/16 budget has been addressed during the 

current financial year.  It is too early to accurately predict the full financial impact of the 

Government’s Spending Review and related financial risks, although these have been assessed 

and may give rise to further savings requirements. 

 

A rigorous process is being applied to support the development of the Council budget and 

medium term financial planning process going forwards, including a review of both the 

Council’s revenue budgets and the current Approved Capital Programme.  

 

The Cabinet will therefore seek to put in place these new Directorate Plans to establish a new 

Medium Term Financial Plan to cover the four years from 2016/17 to 2019/20 and will consider a 

range of options to make savings, explore new models of service delivery, deliver innovation and 

efficiency, and generate additional income.  

 

A Strategic Review has been taking place to do just this, covering the four strategic priorities.  

The Review considers spending across the Council to ensure efficiency savings and income 

generation opportunities are maximised ahead of reductions to Council services. The outputs 

from this review are reflected in the Directorate Plans. 

The specific financial aspects of the proposals for this Directorate are set out in Appendix 4 – 

Finance & Resource Impacts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



PART TWO – DIRECTORATE PLAN 

 

Directorate summary 

 

The Resources Directorate led by the Strategic Director – Resources provides: 

 

• A strategic lead for Council in terms of: strategic partnerships, understanding of needs, 

customer insights, communications, organisational development, resource planning, 

budget and Council Tax setting, policy development and scrutiny reviews, equalities plus 

community engagement and sustainability initiatives. 

• A delivery lead: for customer contact through all channels including One Stop Shops and 

libraries, registrars, Council Connect, plus through the web and social media. 

• A delivery lead: for Council Tax and Business Rates collection, Housing Benefits, 

commercial and corporate property estates, and major capital projects, plus trading 

services including community meals, school meals, cleaning and printing. 

• A range of internal support services including: transactional and advice services for HR, 

health and safety, finance, procurement, audit and assurance, ICT plus facilities 

management and property transactions.   

 

The Directorate has 4 divisions with each led by a Divisional Director.  A chart summarising the 

functions in each division is attached.  It also shows which Cabinet portfolio holder and Policy 

Development and Scrutiny Panel they report to. 

 

In addition the Directorate manages: 

 

• The Avon Pension Fund which supports over 200 employers and 95,000 members 

including the 4 Unitary Councils, academy schools, further and higher education, the fire 

authority, town & parish councils, community admission bodies and transferee admission 

bodies in the West of England.   

• West of England office and LEP ‘accountable body’ functions including employment of the 

lead staff, the commercial investment and grant giving functions (RIF, RGF etc.) and the 

City Deal economic development fund. 

 

Legal & Democratic services, including elections, are outside of the Directorate and report to the 

Chief Executive. The Resources Department works closely with these services and the Head of 

Service attends the Resources Management Team. 

 

The Directorate has led various change and efficiency programmes including: 10 in 100 

organisational development, workplaces and flexible working, new ICT strategy and systems 

rationalisation, service reviews and Customers First initiative, think local procurement strategy, 

and rationalisation of management arrangements.  Some shared service arrangements have also 

been established such as for research, payroll and audit, but also the One Stop Shops are shared 

with other local public services and voluntary organisations.   

 

Page 20



There has been a strong emphasis on savings and increased income, and the Directorate has 

delivered - through its own budgets or corporate budgets under its stewardship - over 50% of the 

Council’s total savings over the last 3 years.  The Directorate’s own budgets reduced by 20% over 

that period.  This has been achieved through extra income and efficiencies, a new treasury 

management strategy, simpler processes, better use of ICT and greater centralisation of some 

support arrangements.  The services in Resources now all benchmark well with other Councils, 

with the exception of libraries, which remains more expensive than the average. 

 

Main report: Directorate intentions  

 

The next four years will be challenging but will provide some opportunities. The Directorate’s 

strategic intentions are set below against the Council’s 4 corporate priorities: 

 

• A strong economy and growth 

 

We will: 

• Manage the finances and investment process for the City Deal on behalf of the West of 

England (WoE), which is allowing us to keep 100% of growth in business rates in the 

Enterprise Area - and each of the other 3 Unitary Authorities (UAs) to do the same in the 

equivalent Enterprise Areas and Zone. 

• Collaborate with the 3 other UAs to develop a further devolution proposal with an 

appropriate “payment by results” mechanism to reward the participating Councils (with 

protection from risk for B&NES depending on the level of participation) in infrastructure 

projects designed to stimulate economic growth and provision of housing. 

• Continue to support regeneration initiatives by providing timely advice, and by continuing 

to successfully manage the commercial estate (which includes about half of the retail 

estate in Bath city centre, is one of the most successful retail destinations in the country, 

and has a gross rental income that benefits the Council and is set to rise to £16M over the 

life of the plan). 

• Complete the marketing and letting of the new retail units in the Civic Centre  

development in Keynsham which is already acting as a catalyst for confidence and further 

development in the area. 

 

• A focus on prevention  

 

We will: 

• Support the financial aspects of the Care Act and the Your Care Your Way programme 

especially provision of financial support and implementation of new ICT. 

• Continue to invest in sustainable energy initiatives including Energy @ Home to provide 

insulation and energy saving measures (partly funded by Government grant), plus 

sustainable energy projects in partnership with Bath & West Community Energy. 

• Inform local planning policy on sustainability issues, develop a new sustainability strategy 

and possibly create a local energy tariff.  Also reduced energy use in council buildings and 

reduced staff travel by further embedding flexible working practices. 

• Carry out the One Council Reviews programme in collaboration with the relevant service 

and department, using “lean systems thinking” principles, which encourage prevention of 

Page 21



demand plus a greater focus on priorities, and introducing a digital approach with 

customer self-service wherever this makes sense. 

• Continue to work closely with the DWP on welfare reform and provide free access to the 

internet and training in libraries, including for those that can’t access Government 

services online at home. 

• Continue to work with the Police on local community safety initiatives. 

• Continue to operate the emergency planning service and integrate even more strongly 

with the Police who will use the control room plus locate their front of office staff in the 

Council One Stop Shops. 

 

• A new relationship with customers and communities 

 

We will: 

• Lead the Connecting Communities initiative, which is helping services to focus on what 

communities most need, partnership working with parishes, but also enabling 

communities to do more for themselves. 

• Provide advice and information through an integrated approach using the One Stop 

Shops and libraries, but also working closely with the Connecting Families initiative and 

supporting DWP and welfare reform. 

• Review delivery roles such as for libraries so through a community led approach the role 

of libraries can be broadened so they become community hubs whilst also achieving 

necessary savings. 

• Integrate the Registrars function into Customer Services and also develop further related 

income generation opportunities. 

• Align schools meals service with the changing needs of schools, and in the case of 

community meals, the changes to service provision that emerge from the Your Care Your 

Way consolation.  

• Continue to support community asset transfers where this can be achieved without 

excessive cost the Council and where community benefits clearly arise.  

• Review the local Council Tax support scheme for 2017/18 to achieve greater simplicity, 

better targeting of support, and alignment with changes arising from Welfare Reform. 

 

• An efficient business 

 

We will: 

• Reduce net Resources budgets by at least a further 15% and wherever possible this will 

be achieved through additional income or efficiencies that don’t adversely affect the 

quality of support services, or front line services. 

• Push for greater Income generating initiatives to achieve these net savings, such as 

through the commercial estate, sustainable energy initiatives, and through the creation of 

a new property company to deliver housing. 

• Review commissioning intentions across the Council to identify opportunities to focus on 

key objectives and achieve economies. 

• Provide organisational development to support the changing needs of the Council.  

• Deliver further efficiencies by extending and renewing the existing efficiency 

programmes. 

Page 22



• Carry out the One Council Reviews programme in collaboration with the relevant service 

and department, using “lean systems thinking” principles, which encourage prevention of 

customer demand plus a greater focus on priorities, and introducing a digital approach 

with customer self-service wherever this makes sense 

• Develop the governance arrangements for the Avon Pension Fund which from July 2015 

has been accountable through its committee to a new independent Pensions Board.  

• Explore options for combining the investments of the various Local Authority pension 

funds in the South West (the Avon fund has approximately £3Bn of investments). 

• Explore further opportunities to collaborate better with other public sector partners. 

 

This means the Directorate plan will contribute fully to the corporate drive for a strong economy 

and growth, better prevention, new relationships with customers and communities, and an 

effective business. 

 

The work that will continue for the LEP and the lead role for the financial arrangements for the 

economic development fund within City Deal supports the drive for growth.  There will also be a 

push for Business Rates maximisation with more rigorous checks to ensure all income 

entitlements are identified and collected. 

 

Risk 

 

Capacity will be stretched, not least because substantial management savings have already been 

taken, but the ambition to achieve excellence remains, by meeting the financial challenge with 

minimal reduction in service outcomes. 

 

There will be a requirement for investment in the proposed income generating opportunities.  

There is an interest rate risk until the borrowing is locked into longer term fixed rates.  A new LA 

company structure will be required to minimise the trading risks. 

 

As services are better targeted, equalities issues need to be considered.  As more digital services 

are used those that require other methods of communication need to be protected. 

 

There is always the risk that efficiency savings will in future be hard to deliver, but targets have 

been reviewed to reflect the existing levels of efficiency, and opportunities seen elsewhere in the 

public sector. 

 

Performance Management 

 

Key performance measures will include; 

 

• Council Tax and Business Rates collection levels 

• Profitability of new and existing income generating ventures 

• Customer satisfaction (internal and external) and public opinion surveys 

• Delivery of capital and other projects to agreed targets 

Page 23



• Various compliance indicators such as external audit opinion  

• Achievement of various operational targets  

• Delivery of Directorate plan 

 

This Directorate is largely free of national performance indicator targets. 

 

PART THREE: DIRECTORATE RESOURCE PLAN 

 

The Directorate’s financial strategy is to deliver the changes set out in the previous section in 

accordance with the budget summary, impact statement, and capital programme attached.  

 

The lead role for finance is carried out within this Directorate by the Divisional Director for 

Business Support, who is the S151 officer, and responsible for the corporate finance strategy. 

 

In terms of workforce it is expected that the number of posts will remain relatively constant and 

there will be a shift in skills requirements towards commercial skills.  Partnerships with external 

commercial organisations, especially in finance, will be developed to support this.  For capital 

project delivery external expertise will continue to be bought in to enable a flexible approach and 

to minimise overheads. 

 

The property needs of the whole Council will continue to be reviewed and flexible working will 

be further developed to help provide better integrated services, and enable key partners to be 

accommodated.  The main opportunities to rationalise the corporate estate (mainly offices) have 

already been taken.  Further integration with health may provide opportunities as the Your Care 

Your Way initiative progresses.  

 

Appendices 

 

1. Summary of functions of each Resources Division 

2. Directorate budget summary (headline numbers)     

3. Draft Capital Programme  2016/17 to 2019/20 

4. Finance & Resource Impacts 

 

Page 24



Bath and  North East Somerset – The place to live, work and visit

Business 
Support

Chief Finance 

Officer

Tim Richens

Finance

Pensions

Payroll & People 
Services

ICT

Procurement

Internal Audit, Risk & 
Assurance

Information 
Governance

Revolving Infrastructure & 
Regional Growth Funds

Customer 
Services 

Ian Savigar

Council Connect (MV)

Libraries (MV)

Council Tax

Business Rates

Council Tax Support 
(Benefits)

Welfare Reform

Emergency Planning & 
Business Continuity

Strategy & 
Performance       

David 
Trethewey
Policy Co-ordination 

(TW)

Public Service 
Partnerships (TW)

Connecting 
Communities (MV)

Communications (TW)

Performance 
Management (TW)

Human Resources

Health & Safety

Equalities 

Sustainability (MV)

Property & 
Project 
Delivery               

Derek Quilter
Capital project delivery-
several major schemes 

(Cabinet)

Property Maintenance 
delivery

Programme & project 
support

Commercial Estate

Corporate Estate

Facilities Management

Asset Management & 
Property Transactions

Print, cleaning & catering 
traded services

Strategic Director Resources, Andrew Pate

Key: 

Resources PDS Panel remit except where coloured grey

Portfolio holder Charles Gerrish except where indicated otherwise.

NB Legal and Democratic Services also falls within Resources PDS remit.

P
age 25



P
age 26

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2  
 

 

Resources including Legal & Democratic Services  - Analysis of Headline Numbers

Gross     

£'000

One off 

changes

 Net Budget 

£'000 

 Net Budget 

£'000 Growth Savings Gross Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Customer Services 6,505 3,869 3,869 51 (120) 6,437 3,800

Customer Services 4,892 2,394 2,394 38 (120) 4,810 2,311

Libraries & Information 1,808 1,670 1,670 14 1,822 1,684

Hsg / Council Tax Benefits Subsidy (195) (195) (195) (195) (195)

Business Support 10,939 (279) 7,750 7,470 183 (300) 10,822 7,353

Information Technology 5,160 (115) 4,248 4,133 104 (280) 4,984 3,957

Business Financial & Pensions 2,052 1,503 1,503 35 2,087 1,538

Corporate Finance 513 264 264 2 515 266

Service Finance 1,633 719 719 33 1,667 753

Audit, Risk & Assurance Services 1,325 (164) 871 706 10 (20) 1,315 696

Procurement 255 145 145 255 145

Property & Project Delivery 17,540 200 (6,619) (6,419) 238 (980) 16,797 (7,162)

Corporate Estate 6,291 258 4,681 4,939 175 (330) 6,135 4,783

Commercial Estate 2,000 (58) (14,093) (14,151) (450) 1,550 (14,601)

Property & Project Delivery Teams 4,510 2,905 2,905 39 (200) 4,349 2,745

Print 360 (52) (52) 1 361 (51)

Catering 3,639 28 28 17 3,656 45

Cleaning 740 (88) (88) 6 746 (82)

Strategy & Performance 5,171 (256) 3,422 3,166 37 5,209 3,204

Community Services 1,842 (256) 1,525 1,269 1,842 1,269

Corporate Services 1,410 1,333 1,333 37 1,448 1,370

Human Resources 1,919 565 565 1,919 565

Legal & Democratic Services 3,439 (220) 1,678 1,458 4 3,443 1,462

Legal Services 1,444 (258) (258) 4 1,448 (255)

Democratic Services 1,994 (220) 1,936 1,716 1,994 1,716

Total for Resources Cashlimits only 43,594 (555) 10,099 9,544 513 (1,400) 42,707 8,657

(250)

(1,000)

(41)

(1,291)

513 (2,691)

16/17    

Inflation   

£'000

Pay costs   - 1% per annum; inclusive of any incremental increases & Members Allowances 223

146

29

85

30

513

Business rates inflation

IT supply chain

Insurance Premium Tax

TOTAL GROWTH

2015-16 2016-17 Budget

Service

2016/17 DIRECTORATE PLAN GROWTH ASSUMPTIONS

Inflation & contracts   -    Super inflation on Utilities

Corporate Items

Additional Business Rate Collection (Improved Tax Base)

Service Supported Borrowing

Parish Grants - Local Council Tax Support Scheme

Total Corporate Items

Grand Total

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 – Draft Capital Programme 2016/17 – 2019/20 

1. Existing Programme Items 

  Cost  Total 5 Year Funding   

Project Title Total 

2016/2017 

2017/18 

Onwards 

Total 5 

Year Cost 

 Borrowing/ 

Capital 

Receipts 

Grants/ 

External 

Funding 

RIF / 

Development 

Funding 

Comments 

  £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Property Services                       

Full Approval                

Roseberry Place 10  0  10   10  0      

1 - 3 James Street West 15  0  15   15  0      

                 

Provisional Approval                

Corporate Estate Planned 

Maintenance 

1,357  4,071  5,428   5,428  0    Annual detailed Project Plan Required  

Council Property Equality Act Works 100  300  400   400  0    Annual detailed Project Plan Required  

Disposals Programme (Minor) 100  300  400   400  0    Annual detailed Project Plan Required  

                 

Sub Total - Property Services 1,582  4,671  6,253    6,253  0  0    

                 

Support Services                

Full Approval                

Desktop As a Service - VDI Technology 0  225  225   225  0      

                 

Sub Total - Support Services 0  225  225    225  0  0    

                 

TOTAL RESOURCES 1,582  4,896  6,478    6,478  0  0    

 

 

 

P
age 29



2. New & Emerging Items 

  Cost  Total 5 Year Funding   

Project Title Total 

2016/2017 

2017/18 

Onwards 

Total 5 

Year Cost 

 Borrowing/ 

Capital 

Receipts 

Grants/ 

External 

Funding 

RIF / 

Development 

Funding 

Comments 

  £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000 £'000 £'000   

Property Services                       

New/Emerging Schemes                

Commercial Estate Investment 5,000  10,000  15,000   15,000  0    Business Case & detailed project plan 

required 

Property Company Investment 4,893  15,107  20,000   20,000  0    Business Case & detailed project plan 

required 

Print Services - Equipment Investment 300  0  300   300  0    Business Case & detailed project plan 

required 

Sub Total - Property Services 10,193  25,107  35,300    35,300  0  0    

                 

Support Services                

New/Emerging Schemes                

Communications Hub 156  20  176   100  76    Business Case & detailed project plan 

required 

Sub Total - Support Services 156  20  176    100  76  0    

         

Strategy & Performance                

New/Emerging Schemes                

Energy Services Investment 750  2,250  3,000   3,000  0    Business Case & detailed project plan 

required 

Sub Total - Strategy & Performance 750  2,250  3,000    3,000  0  0    

                 

TOTAL NEW & EMERGING ITEMS 11,099  27,377  38,476    38,400  76  0    

 

P
age 30



   Appendix 4 

Bath and North East Somerset Council   

Resources Directorate Plan - 2016/17 to 2019/20 

 

Finance & Resource Impacts 

 

This appendix sets out the proposals for which there are specific financial, staff or 

property implications.  The focus is on 2016/17 but indicative headline amounts are set 

out for future years. 

 

2016/17 

 

Type of Service Change 

1. Income Generating Opportunities – Resources 

Proposal 

• Create a new Property Company to provide market rate housing to rent on council owned 

land, vacant accommodation above shops, and also using housing properties returning to 

the Council as a result of the housing transfer agreement with Curo (mainly flats above 

shops). 

• Develop opportunities to extend the Energy @ Home initiative and to potentially link this 

with a local energy tariff which provides greater local choice, a local return for the Council 

and better prices including for those on energy meters. 

• Invest in energy saving projects in the community that generate a guaranteed financial 

return, either directly, or through the Council’s partner Bath & West Community Energy. 

• Research opportunities for additional initiatives, such as district heating, and the creation of 

an energy company. 

• Develop increased income from the Commercial Estate by continuing to invest in higher 

returning assets, rent reviews, disinvestment in lower returning assets, and also reducing the 

revenue impact of borrowing by the creation of capital receipts. 

• Enhance the role of the CCTV service and the communications hub to support a wider 

selection of partners but also moving the entire service onto a self-financing basis. 

• Continue to benefit from the profit share agreement with Bath Thermae Spa. 

• Develop the internal audit partnership with North Somerset and hosted by B&NES to include 

other local authorities and public sector partners, then to create a trading company. 

• Benefit from the third tier of growth achieved by City Deal across the WoE if it achieves 

above the target levels expected for the Economic Development fund and the £0.5Bn 

expected to accrue to that fund over the area from increased business rates (additional 

locally retained share) over 25 years (as agreed with government). 

Page 31



 

Financial Targets – Net Savings – Reduced Costs & Extra Income 

 

Resources Targets –  

Net Recurring Savings 

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Total 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Property company 75 225 150 200 650 

Energy   90 10 75 175 

Commercial Estate 375 375 375 125 1250 

CCTV 50 200 50 50 350 

Thermae Spa profit share  150   150 

Internal Audit  20 20 20 20 80 

City Deal  45 80 60 185 

 520 1105 685 530 2840 

 

Impact 

• Each of the above initiatives will complement existing Council policies and strategies and 

increase the impact of the relevant services whilst also achieving a return. 

• A detailed business plan is being developed for each of these and will include staffing 

impacts as well as legal issues and proposals for the management of risk. Equalities issues 

will also be considered. 

• The Property Company to deliver housing will also need to comply with Council policies for 

the creation of affordable homes arising from planning policy for new developments, and 

aspects of the company operations will need to be in partnership with expert agents and 

advisers. 

• The City Deal already has provision for an income share if the targets for the creation of 

business rates for the economic development fund are exceeded.  

Investment required 

• The Property Company to deliver market rate housing is expected to require up to £20M of 

capital investment but each investment will require its own business case.  The set up cost 

for the company is already covered in the 2015/16 budget.  

• The energy initiatives may require up to £3M of capital investment and again each 

investment will require its own business case.  In addition £100K of revenue is estimated to 

be required to set up the various investments and joint ventures with appropriate due 

diligence. 

• The commercial estate is estimated to require £15M of capital investment and a small 

annual sum for external advice to support the investment strategy. 

• The CCTV service is estimated to require a revenue investment of up to £ 100K to establish 

and develop the business case and possibly create a company structure, plus market and 

Page 32



develop the service.  Some limited capital costs of £100K are anticipated to improve 

monitoring equipment and networks.  

• The Thermae Spa profit share is already established and grows as income grows.  The recent 

acquisition of the Spa by YTL is enabling a growth in this income. 

• The internal audit company is the next stage of development after the initial partnership has 

grown to include one or more additional partners. Discussions are taking place initially at a 

West of England level. The company will probably not be up and running until 2017/18. 

• City Deal capital investments are dealt with as part of the Place Directorate Plan as those 

schemes that impact on B&NES are infrastructure and regeneration schemes such as 

investment in flood prevention and the development of the Bath Enterprise Area.  These 

investments are funded by the Economic Development fund.  That fund already exists,  

grows as business rates grow, and on behalf of the WoE and the LEP, is operated by 

Resources in B&NES. 

 

Resources – Capital 

Investment to Enable 

Savings  

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s £000’s 

     

Property Company 5000 7500 7500  

Energy 750 750 750 750 

Commercial Estate 5000 5000 5000  

CCTV 100    

     

Total 10850 13250 13250 750 

 

 

Resources  – One Off Revenue 

Investment to Enable Savings 

2016/17 

 £000’s 

  

Property company  (already funded) 0 

Energy 100 

Commercial Estate 25 

CCTV 100 

  

 225 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

Type of Service Change 

2. Efficiencies – An effective Business - Resources 

Proposal – 2016/17 items only 

• Achieve reduced operating costs by continuing to reduce the corporate estate where assets 

become redundant or can be consolidated.  Limited notional target as Workplaces has 

delivered the big savings already. £50K additional savings. 

• Reallocate costs to capital in Property & Project  Delivery to align more closely with Council 

wide approach. £100K. Reduced PP&D staffing following recent management restructure 

£100K saving. 

• Align the Welfare Support and Connecting Families programmes and develop payments by 

results proposal for DWP support. £70K saving. 

• Reduce ICT staff resources following successful insourcing and establishment of new staff 

structures and ways of working. £280K saving. If trading opportunities arise for ICT including 

additional support for local partners this could be an alternative. 

• Generating additional business rates income by greater due diligence and investigation of 

tax base noting that this now directly impacts on the Council. £250K income (increasing to 

£500k in the following year). 

Impact 

• Each of the above protects services and potentially improves them.  No staffing impacts 

expected. 

Investment required 

• Only of existing staff time to design new processes supported by the One Council Review 

method and team which requires project by project funding.  To allow for the latter an initial 

notional allocation of £250K has been made which, depending on its level of success, may 

need to be repeated throughout this 4 year programme. 

• An allocation of £200K is required to initiate work on consultation and service redesign that 

will occur in future years 

• An allocation of £200k is required to fund the additional work on business rates income 

generation. This may need to be repeated in future years depending on the level of success. 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

Type of Service Change  

3. Refinancing – Resources 

Proposal – 2016/17 items only 

• Refinancing the element of the workplaces programme funded from the invest to save 

element of the general reserve, thereby removing the need for a payback and replacing this 

with an early release of the annual direct property related savings. £280K initially which will 

be repeated in the following financial year. 

• Develop new approach to borrowing avoiding service recharges and replacing this with 

corporate approach. £1M net saving. 

• Phasing out Parish Grants which were introduced to provide transitional relief for Parish 

Councils following the replacement of Council Tax Benefits with Council Tax Support. £42K 

saving and other amounts  over the next 3 years.  

Impact 

• The workplaces refinancing requires the use of earmarked reserves of £ 2.23m to 

permanently remove the payback requirement.  The project has already successfully 

achieved its main objectives and is almost complete. This is simply a financing change. 

• The new approach to financing capital spend has a short term but recurring benefit and 

requires a disciplined approach to capital approvals that fully recognises revenue 

implications.  The change does not affect the Council’s exposure to interest rate changes 

which remains in the medium term. 

Investment required 

• No new investment required for this set of changes just the use of £2.23m earmarked 

reserves to refinance an element of Workplaces as above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



 

 

Type of Service Change  

4. Service Redesign – Resources 

Proposal 

• There are no proposals for 2016/17.   

Impact 

• nil 

Investment required 

• nil 

 

Service redesign will follow the Corporate Strategy principles and focus on delivering: stronger 

economy and growth, better prevention, new relationships with customers and 

communities, and an effective business. In the Resources Directorate plan, to enable time 

for design and consultation, this category of change starts later in the programme as set out 

below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

Summary – 2016/17 

Resources  – Revenue – 

Recurring Net Savings Targets - 

Summary 

2016/17 

 £000’s 

Income Generating Opportunities 520 

Efficiencies 850 

Refinancing 1321 

Service Redesign 0 

  

Total 2691 

 

Resources – Capital Investment to 

Enable Savings 

2016/17  

 

 £000’s 

  

Income Generating Opportunities 10850 

Efficiencies 0 

Refinancing 0 

Service Redesign 0 

  

Total 10850 

 

Resources  – One Off Revenue 

Investment to Enable Savings 

2016/17 

 £000’s 

  

Income Generating Opportunities 225 

Efficiencies 650 

Refinancing * 0 

Service Redesign 0 

  

Total 875 

 

Note* - The refinancing of Workplaces requires the allocation of £2.23m of earmarked reserves 

rather than waiting for the revenue payback to accumulate at a rate that has already been 

established and would take six years. 

Revenue severance costs arising from less staff have not yet been calculated.  The approach which is 

generally to increase income, and not reduce service levels, will in any case minimise these costs. 

Capital projects not linked to the achievement of recurring revenue savings do not appear in this 

appendix.  This appendix only summarises the capital spend linked to the above income-generating 

invest to save type proposals. 

Page 37



Summary - 2017/18 to 2019/20 

Targets have been established for the following 3 years broken down into broad headings and to be 

refined following; 

• Further consultation 

• Development of business cases 

 

Resources - Revenue - Recurring Savings Targets 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

 £000’s £000’s £000’s 

Income Generating Opportunities 1105 685 530 

Efficiencies 650 250 200 

Refinancing 338 41 41 

Service Redesign 170 100 800 

    

Totals 2263 1076 1571 

 

The levels of capital and revenue investment in future years will be established in the light of 

consultation on proposals for future years.  It is not possible to estimate all of these until more work 

has been done on the right solutions with appropriate internal and public consultation.  Sufficient 

balances will need to be available set aside in reserves to enable this. 

The Directorate Plan sets out the other areas that will need to be considered to achieve the above 

savings targets. 

• Council Tax Support scheme  

• Libraries and their role in local communities alongside their role as a place where public agencies 

can combine including through a mobile presence 

• Development of digital services and platforms so that the public can better self-serve with 

mediated help where required 

• Progression from Housing Benefits administration to working with the DWP on Universal Credits 

linked to integrated advice and support 

 

• Payroll & HR following roll out of new system (which is shared with North Somerset) 

• Further internal integration of income and debt transactional services 

• Improvements to commissioning to evolve the Think Local strategy 

• Business partnering to make best use of external professional support and achieve better value 

for money by achieving a mix better designed for the future needs of the Council 

 

Service redesign will follow the Corporate Strategy principles and focus on delivering: stronger 

economy and growth, better prevention, new relationships with customers and 

communities, and an effective business. 

 

Page 38



Printed on recycled paper 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING:  Resources Policy Development and Scrutiny Panel 

MEETING 
DATE:  

25 November 2015 

TITLE: Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate Strategy 2016-20 

WARD: All 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

Appendix 1: Draft Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate Strategy 2016-20 

 
 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 This report introduces the draft Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate 
Strategy 2016-20 for consideration and discussion.  

2 RECOMMENDATION 

Resources PDS is asked to: 

2.1 Consider the draft Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate Strategy 
2016-20. 

2.2 Note the timetable for further development and formal adoption of the Strategy. 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 The Corporate Strategy will provide the context for the medium term financial 
strategy. More detailed information on resource allocation and savings will be 
added once it had passed through the Council’s decision making process (the 
four year medium term financial strategy will be considered by Council in 
February 2016). 

3.2 More broadly, the Corporate Strategy will form a key consideration in the 
allocation of Council resources particularly as part of the annual budget process. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 The Corporate Strategy is the Council’s overarching strategic plan and forms a 
key part of the Policy and Budget Framework in the Council’s constitution. It is 
not a legal requirement to produce a Corporate Strategy; however, it is an 
essential communication tool and will provide a clear framework for officers and 
members to work within. It will outline the key priorities of the Council and help to 
guide decisions around investment and projects.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 39



Printed on recycled paper 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 Attached is the Council’s draft Corporate Strategy 2016-2020.  It sets out the 2020 
beautifully inventive vision and our direction of travel over the next 4 years.   

5.2 If agreed by Council in February 2016 the Corporate Strategy will become the 
overarching framework for Council business until 2020. It will also set out our financial 
strategy over the same period.  

5.3 The Corporate Strategy is not intended to capture everything that the Council does nor 
does it include the detail of our work and projects. That is the role of the Directorate and 
Service plans which will flow from the Corporate Strategy. 

Directorate Plans 

5.4 New Directorate Plans will flow from the Corporate Strategy and set out both the 
strategic and financial ambitions of each Directorate.  

5.5 TIMETABLE 

Task Date 

Consultation with PDS on Directorate Plans November  

Consultation with Area Forums on Directorate Plans November  

Corporate Strategy and Directorate Plans to Cabinet  7 December 

Consultation with PDS on Directorate Plans January 

Corporate Strategy and Directorate Plans (with appendices 

and 4 year settlement) to Cabinet 
10 February 

Corporate Strategy and Directorate Plans (with appendices 

and 4 year settlement) to Council 
16 February 

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 The Corporate Strategy will help to communicate the corporate priorities of the 
Council and will also set out our financial strategy over the same period. It will 
bring together our 2020 vision and the key political commitments agreed by 
Cabinet – further developing the corporate narrative and articulating our strategic 
direction for the future through four corporate priorities.  

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 None. 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 The Strategy builds on our 2020 vision which was developed in consultation with 
the Council, NHS, police, local business, fire service and the voluntary sector. 
The four priorities set out in the Strategy are shaped by and build on the key 
areas of focus adopted by Cabinet at their meeting on 8 July 2015.   

 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Page 40



Printed on recycled paper 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations will been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 

Contact person  Helen Edelstyn (01225 477951) 

Background 
papers 

 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 

 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

2020 vision  

Bath and North East Somerset, a beautifully inventive place 

 

 

‘Bath and North East Somerset will be internationally renowned as a beautifully inventive and 

entrepreneurial 21
st

 century place with a strong social purpose and a spirit of wellbeing, 

where everyone is invited to think big – a ‘connected’ area ready to create an extraordinary 

legacy for future generations’ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 43



2 

 

 

FOREWORD - Leader 

 

Bath and North East Somerset is a beautiful and historic place at the heart of South West England, and 

in the spring of 2015 I had the privilege of being elected Leader of the Council.  

 

I believe that we need a financially sustainable, well run Council.  Our residents deserve it, so that they 

have the best opportunities for themselves and their families; and so that we create an extraordinary 

legacy for future generations. 

 

Over the next four years I want to lead an area where there is good quality housing that local people can 

afford, where our roads, cycle and pedestrian routes help people to ‘get moving’, where health is better 

and older people can live safe independent lives, where educational attainment is good for all of our 

children and young people and where we produce steady improvements in economic growth generating 

more jobs for local people. To achieve these aspirations, I set out 3 aims and 6 areas in our manifesto 

‘Putting Residents First’ that I would like the Council to focus on over the next four years. These are: 

 

Aims: 

 

• A Council which is efficient and well-run 

• A Council which invests in the future 

• A Council which puts the interests of residents first 

 

6 areas of focus: 

 

• Tackle wasteful spending 

• Improve local transport 

• New homes and jobs 

• Invest in our young people 

• Cleaner, greener and healthier communities 

• Greater choice and independence for older people 

 

You will see references to these areas throughout this Corporate Strategy and the Directorate delivery 

plans that flow from it. 

 

However, like most Councils throughout the country, we face an unprecedented financial challenge. 

Reduced funding from central government coupled with increasing demand for many services means 

that we need to transform the way we deliver some services, whilst holding on to our commitment to 

excellence.  

 

I am fully committed to addressing the challenges we face. Together with my Cabinet, I remain 

ambitious about the promises we have made. We will continue to do more for less and look for 

innovative ways of investing in the things that matter most to our residents.   

 

 

 

Page 44



3 

 

 

Alongside senior Council officers, I have agreed the priorities for the next four years and we are 

passionately behind them. We have a great opportunity to get this right and this Corporate Strategy sets 

out how.  

 

 

Cllr Tim Warren 

Leader of Bath and North East Somerset Council 

 

  

“Our ambition is a council which is efficient and well run, invests in the future and puts the 

interests of residents first in everything it does” 

Page 45



4 

 

FOREWORD – CEO 

 

With a gross budget of over £320 million and around 2,500 employees, Bath and North East Somerset 

Council provides and commissions hundreds of services to local residents from social care to street 

cleaning. It serves a part of the west of England stretching from Bath to the Chew Valley, and covering 

both urban and rural neighbourhoods.  

 

Over the past four years we have seen significant change – population growth, new legislation and a 

reducing budget have all meant changes to the way we work and deliver services. Not only have we 

adapted well; we have been innovative and made progress too, ensuring that we deliver high quality 

services that matter most to our local communities. 66% of the population are satisfied with the way we 

run things (up 16% since 2011). 

 

We have seen public health responsibilities successfully transfer to the council and welcomed the 

opportunity for greater local leadership and involvement in public health programmes. We have also 

built on our strong history of partnership between the Council and NHS which has led to the integration 

of many local health and social care services.  

 

We have made important changes to the way we work as an organisation. Our One Stop Shops give 

residents the option of face-to-face contact with a wide range of services, including housing advice and 

the police. We are also beginning to embrace digital media seen through our new and improved 

website, use of Twitter and webcasting; helping people engage with the decisions we make. 

 

Importantly, we have been able to make significant savings of £32 million through developing these 

efficiencies and new ways of working. This is making a real difference and is helping us to protect front-

line services which residents have told us matter most to them.  

 

There is further change to come. Our population continues to grow, the money we receive from central 

Government will continue to decrease and we will need to respond to Government on issues such as 

devolution and housing growth.  

 

There will be less public money to deliver public services and so we need to make every penny count. 

These challenging times will require reforms to services and strong Council leadership to bring partners 

together to deliver new and innovative ways of doing things that also save us money. 

 

Fortunately there is consensus in Bath and North East Somerset on what a better future should be. The 

purpose of this document is to explain our future agenda so that we can make our case to local people 

and Government. It will set out how investment in our vision and priorities will help us drive the 

improvements we would like to make.   We know, as a Council, we need to focus on the following areas 

over the next four years:  

 

• A strong economy and growth 

• A focus on prevention 

• A new relationship with customers and communities 

• An efficient business 

Page 46



5 

 

This will allow us to shape our business so that we are able to deliver the Cabinet’s 6 manifesto 

commitments: tackling wasteful spending, new homes and jobs, improve local transport, investing in 

young people, cleaner, green and healthier communities and independence for older people. 

 

If we get this right, not only will we be able to continue to provide exemplary public services for local 

people but we can help our partners to do likewise. We have a great opportunity to build on our 

progress and deliver our 2020 vision for the area.  

 

Jo Farrar 

Chief Executive of Bath and North East Somerset Council 

 

  

“We have a great opportunity to shape ourselves for the future – to deliver our ambitious 

vision for Bath and North East Somerset through building on our successes and delivering new 

and innovative ways of doing things” 

Page 47



6 

 

The Corporate Strategy 

 

2020 vision 

 

‘Bath and North East Somerset will be internationally renowned as a beautifully inventive and 

entrepreneurial 21
st

 century place with a strong social purpose and a spirit of wellbeing, 

where everyone is invited to think big – a ‘connected’ area ready to create an extraordinary 

legacy for future generations’ 

 

The Bath and North East Somerset 2020 vision sets out our aspirations for the future including good 

health and wellbeing, economic growth, financial sustainability, an effective transport system and an 

efficient, well run Council. The vision was developed in partnership with the NHS, police, local business, 

education, the fire service and the voluntary sector.  The purpose of this document is to set out how the 

Council will play its part.  

 

The Strategy is not intended to capture everything that the Council does. Nor is it a blueprint detailing 

precisely how we will go about delivering our work and projects. That is the role of more detailed work 

plans that flow from and into this document. But it does set out the Councils key priorities and 

programmes over the medium term. 

 

Corporate Strategy priorities ‘Putting Residents First’ manifesto commitments 

A strong economy and growth 

 

Improve transport 

New homes and jobs 

Cleaner, greener and healthier communities 

 

A focus on prevention 

 

Invest in our young people 

Greater choice and independence for older people 

Cleaner, greener and healthier communities 

 

A new relationship with customers and 

communities 

 

Cleaner, greener and healthier communities 

An efficient business 

 

Tackling wasteful spending 

 

 

The Strategy is structured by four sections: 

 

Section one The case for change 

Section two Our future agenda 

Section three Creating the future 

Section four Our financial strategy 2016 - 2019 

 

 

  

Page 48



7 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 49



8 

 

SECTION ONE – THE CASE FOR CHANGE 

 

Over the past four years we have made progress and responded well to change. We are a national 

leader in the integration of health and social care services for both adults and children and our 

relationship with the NHS continues to grow. Educational outcomes are good at every level and local 

unemployment is low at less than five per cent. Our Connecting Families programme, working with 

vulnerable families, is one of the most successful in the country and the Roman Baths is one of the top 

most visited heritage sites in the UK.  

 

We have significantly reduced the amount of money we spend. £32 million has been saved through 

efficiencies and changing the way we work, whilst overall satisfaction rates with the Council have gone 

up.  

 

Despite this, the landscape for public services will continue to change. Over the next four years we will 

need to adapt to a growing local population, even less public money and new legislation that will change 

the way we deliver some services. At the same time we will need to do even more, with less, to deliver 

excellent local services.  

 

Some of the changes facing us: 

 

Changing local population 

Our population continues to grow. In the next 4 years there will be 10,950 more people living in Bath 

and North East Somerset. There will be an additional 2,807 residents aged 65 and over, and 469 more 

young people (aged 15-24); in part due to the expansion of our 2 renowned universities.  

 

Population growth is positive, but brings with it some particular challenges. From an economic 

perspective, population growth is generally good news where it increases the productive capacity of the 

local economy. It also improves tax revenues and helps to balance an aging population. However it will 

put pressure on existing infrastructure such as transport, housing and school places.  

 

As the number of people aged over 65 increases, the rates and complexity of more acute conditions 

including heart disease and dementia also rises. This will mean that we will need to think differently 

about how we provide some services, especially adult health and social care, in order to help people to 

continue to live independent and fulfilled lives. 

 

The UK performs poorly on several health conditions compared to our European peers including 

coronary heart disease, stroke and lung cancer. Whilst rates of some of these are comparatively low in 

Bath and North East Somerset, we can still do more to tackle the underlying risk factors of these 

conditions and help people to be healthy by stopping smoking, being more active, drinking less alcohol 

and managing diet and weight.  

 

Healthy lifestyles 

Inequality exists in Bath and North East Somerset. Needs assessments show that inequalities exist in 

different geographical areas, communities, social and economic groups in Bath and North East 

Somerset; life expectancy for men varies by 9 years along the stops of the 20C bus route in Bath. People 

living in Twerton have a lower life expectancy than those who live just five bus stops away. There is also 

Page 50



9 

 

a difference in educational attainment between our more disadvantaged and affluent pupils and we 

need to do more to narrow this. 

 

Finance 

There are likely to be long term pressures on public sector spending until at least 2020. The medium 

term financial plan to 2015/16 delivered £32 million savings but it is estimated at least a further £30 

million will need to be found in the next four years.  

 

To meet this challenge, we will need to continue to change the way we work including reducing our 

office space, targeting our services to those most in need and exploring new ways of delivering services 

including shared and commercial services.  

 

The economy  

The Bath and North East Somerset economy has made good progress since the 2008 economic 

downturn. Local unemployment is low and our workforce is skilled and knowledgeable. However, our 

economy is not as productive as it could be. Average productivity per employee is £41,600 compared to 

£42,400 nationally. This not only means that we earn less, but we also bring less money into our local 

economy.  

 

Raising our business productivity is key to increasing our wages and improving our standard of living. For 

this reason, our focus over the next four years will be to boost high-skilled, better paid jobs by actively 

promoting business growth - especially growth of higher value businesses such as creative and IT – and 

promoting training and development.  

 

Transport 

Despite improvements in the last few years, there are still challenges facing Bath and North East 

Somerset and its transport system. Many of our roads, particularly within Bath, market towns and 

villages, were not designed for the volume and size of vehicles we see today. In addition, parts of the 

area suffer from poor air quality caused by too much congestion. There is a need to improve our local 

transport system so that people can get around safely be it on foot or by bike, car, bus or train.  

 

Legislation 

Legislative reform – such as the Care Act (which seeks to give people a greater say over their own care) 

and the Children’s and Families Act (which aims to improve services for vulnerable children and families) 

– will change the way we think about and deliver some services.  Ongoing changes in the education 

landscape following the Academies Act will also mean that we need to continue to change the way we 

work with schools.  

 

In addition, the Government continues to consider further devolution to local Councils. The devolution 

of greater powers, which may include aspects of transport, housing and finance, presents us with 

opportunities. We will need to ensure that we negotiate with Government to get the best deal for Bath 

and North East Somerset.  

 

 

 

 

 

“We need to invest in our transport infrastructure to cut traffic, improve public transport and 

get Bath and North East Somerset moving” 

Page 51



10 

 

 

Climate change 

Climate change poses significant challenges for the area. Changing weather patterns, severe weather 

events and pressures around energy supply mean that we will need to consider different choices in how 

we live our lives. 

 

Making homes more energy efficient and investing in local renewable energy is important to achieving 

our carbon reduction target and to tackling fuel poverty. Our challenge is to help local people and 

communities reduce carbon emissions and promote more environmentally-sustainable lifestyles. 

 

The rest of this Corporate Strategy sets out our response to this change and what the future will look 

like. 

 

Our local environment 

Bath and North East Somerset has a high quality environment with a wealth of important assets; this 

includes Bath World Heritage Site, two areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty, the highest concentration 

of listed buildings outside of central London, ecology of international importance and a range of 

conservation areas.   These important assets provide many benefits for residents, visitors and businesses 

supporting both health & wellbeing and economic growth. It is essential that in its aspirations for 

improvement, the Council stewards these assets for existing and future generations. 

 

 

 

  

“We are committed to addressing both the causes and effects of climate change in Bath and 

North East Somerset” 

Page 52



11 

 

SECTION TWO – OUR FUTURE AGENDA 

The changes that we face mean that we need to continue to work differently to be financially 

sustainable and deliver high quality services into the future.  

 

We have made good progress. We are building an organisation of talented and committed staff - that 

have embraced change and saved us money - whilst continuing to deliver excellent local services. This 

has put us in a good position to lead further innovation and to negotiate with Government on matters 

such as devolution which can bring economic, political and social benefits to local communities. We 

have already secured the City Deal which will allow us – and our regional partners – to keep 100 per 

cent of business rate growth. 

 

However, we have not fully harnessed our potential. There is still more we can to do to help people to 

live well (preventing ill-health), to support and grow local businesses, to involve people in new ways of 

delivering local services and to create an efficient business. These four areas form our priorities as we 

move towards our 2020 vision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 53



12 

 

A strong economy and growth 

Our economic strategy, developed in partnership with education and local business, sets out the steps 

we need to take to create the right conditions for local economic growth. Our approach will be to 

regenerate business districts, create new modern office space, support the transition to a low carbon 

economy, work with others to address the issues of worklessness and open up opportunities for local 

residents who find the greatest difficulty in entering the labour market. 

 

Working in partnership with the West of England Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) our underlying 

ambition is to foster growth and to increase the number of new local jobs by around 10,500 and homes 

by around 13,000 by 2030. This will require a focus on protecting manufacturing, whilst increasing 

employment in certain sectors such as creative and digital. 

 

We will seek to raise our business productivity and increase our below average earnings by focusing on a 

number of local business strengths such as creative industries, professional financial and business 

services, information technology and software development, tourism, retail, health and wellbeing and 

environmental and low carbon.  

 

Our growth in some of these areas has been strong (this includes our information and communication, 

creative and digital, environmental and low carbon industries). We need to continue to support this 

growth by creating the conditions that meet business needs, from sustainable low carbon office space to 

new homes and good schools, as these have the potential to turn our economy around.  

 

The development of Bath City Riverside Enterprise Area will be one of our biggest opportunities to 

create the right conditions for business growth in the City’s centre. It has the potential to accommodate 

up to 9,000 new jobs and 3,400 homes. New employment will focus on Bath’s business strengths 

including the creative industries and software development. Overall the Enterprise Area has the 

potential to increase the value of the Bath economy by £620 million. 

 

A recent survey of businesses found that one of their top priorities was access to a superfast broadband 

connection. This is particularly important for growth in information and communications, creative and 

digital sectors.  We are working to make sure that the whole of Bath and North East Somerset is well 

connected as well as leading a programme to deliver ultra-fast broadband in Bath City Riverside 

Enterprise Area and the City Centre. 

 

Bath is also a World Heritage Site, an international tourist destination and a regional shopping centre. 

Tourists currently spend £375 million a year in Bath, supporting 8,700 local jobs.   A strong visitor 

economy is a part of the wider Bath economy and to the continuing success of a broad and diverse retail 

sector. We will continue to invest in the Roman Baths to ensure it continues to be a top tourist 

destination in the UK, World Heritage Site and Educational Centre of excellence with Lottery funding.  

 

Whilst Bath is the economic driver for the area, the market towns of Keynsham and the Somer Valley 

also make a significant contribution with 16,600 jobs, just over 20 per cent of total employment. Recent 

factory closures including Cadbury in Keynsham have led to job losses. However, investment in 

regeneration schemes such as Keynsham and Radstock town centres is supporting recovery. The 

redevelopment of Keynsham civic centre has provided new modern office space, community facilities 

and retail space. 

Page 54



13 

 

 

If Bath and North East Somerset is to continue to grow and compete successfully in the regional 

economy, we have to develop a local workforce equipped with the range of skills needed to support 

local business growth.  

 

It is difficult for adults with lower level qualifications to improve this later in life, so it is crucial to get it 

right first time. We are working with schools to improve careers advice and guidance, employability and 

vocational training, entrepreneurship and self-employment. We are also using our position to encourage 

the higher education sector to work with businesses, to help our talented young people stay in the area 

and find local jobs.   

 

Addressing low skills levels, confidence and work readiness is an important part of tackling 

worklessness. We are developing a package of engagement and support to help people enter training or 

work.   

 

As the economy and population grow, the demand for housing and other community facilities, such as 

schools and GP surgeries, will increase too. House prices in Bath and North East Somerset are already 

higher than the national average and a housing shortage will push up prices and rents making it even 

more unaffordable for some. New homes and community facilities must be built to meet our growing 

housing need for all parts of the local population. Our Core Strategy sets out a plan for 13,000 new 

homes by 2029, as well as a commitment to high quality local environments and a good quality of life for 

all. 

 

We will also need a transport system that connects people to jobs and allows people, goods and services 

to move easily within and throughout Bath and North East Somerset. We are developing a suite of 

Transport Strategies to ensure that we meet these growth needs; our plans include improvements to 

walking (we would like to make Bath one of the UKs most walkable cities), the expansion of Bath’s Park 

and Ride sites, managing congestion by investing in roads and traffic management, providing better 

cycling options and supporting major improvements in the rail network through both the electrification 

programme and the Metro West scheme.   

 

If we can achieve this economic growth we estimate we will increase the value of the Bath and North 

East Somerset economy by £3 billion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“We will build on our economic strengths and realise the potential of the Bath City Riverside 

Area to establish B&NES as a world-class 21st century centre of imagination and 

inventiveness” 

Page 55



14 

 

 

A focus on prevention 

Over the next four years we will increasingly need to invest in a range of new approaches that enable 

people to live well and independently, that are personalised and support choice, that help people to be 

safe and that prevent or delay the onset of ill health. We will also need to act to address the impacts of 

climate change. 

 

For many years the focus has been on caring for people when they are ill rather than on keeping them 

healthy. Changes in our local population – people are living longer with more complex conditions, some 

of which are avoidable – means that this is no longer financially sustainable. We need to rebalance our 

health and social care services by helping people to be healthier for longer and avoid or delay the onset 

of disease. This approach is key to ensuring our services can respond well to our aging population. 

 

We are starting to make the shift towards a more preventative, person centred approach that helps 

people to help themselves. We are investing in care models that support people to be more informed 

and involved in their own care. Our ‘Wellbeing College’, which supports mental wellbeing, is a good 

example of this. 

 

We will continue to proactively lead the integration of local health and social care services. This will 

reduce service fragmentation, simplify access and referral routes and support better outcomes.  

 

We will continue to work to reduce rates of coronary heart disease, stroke and lung cancers by helping 

people to make healthy lifestyle choices. Our Fit for Life Strategy support this through investment in 

good quality sports and leisure facilities such as the major refurbishment of Bath Sports and Leisure 

Centre and new facilities planned for Keynsham. 

 

As our population continues to both grow and age, we will re-shape services to enable older people to 

continue to live well. This will include supporting local health and social care providers to develop new 

services that address the changing needs of our population. 

 

Keeping children and adults safe from harm will continue to be central to our vision. In partnership with 

the police and NHS and other local partners we will ensure that our response to safeguarding remains 

strong and effective. 

 

We will continue to invest in our Connecting Families programme, our response to troubled families.  

This programme has received national praise for its work to support families improve their overall life 

chances.   

 

Access to education can be a transforming experience, supporting employment and a route out of 

poverty. We will continue to support and challenge all schools to ensure that every child and young 

person receives a high quality education. Ambition for all children from the academically most able to 

those with special educational needs (SEN) and disabilities is key to achieving the best outcomes and 

preparing them for civic and working life. 

 

 

 

Page 56



15 

 

If we can continue to help people to live well, we will strengthen the long term financial sustainability of 

our services, which in time will reduce or stabilise the demand on more costly interventions.  

 

 

  

“We will support people to live well, be healthy and remain independent for longer – keeping 

people out of hospital and making our area a great place to walk, cycle and be active” 

Page 57



16 

 

A new relationship with customers and communities 

We want to make sure that residents’ views and needs are at the heart of everything that we do. 

Sometimes in the past we have delivered services with limited engagement with local people. We want 

to change this. Over the next four years we will do even more to deliver good value services at the 

standards local residents expect and we will be clear about what we can and cannot provide. 

 

There are many different ways that we engage with local residents, groups and businesses to 

understand what they expect and need from us. This includes service specific consultations, 

conversations with ward Councillors and surveys reaching out to all of our communities. The responses 

that we get and the things that people tell us help to shape and improve the way services are delivered. 

 

Through our Connecting Communities programme we are working with the Police, housing providers, 

the NHS and Parish Councils so that we have ‘one conversation’ about the things that matter most to 

local people. It also helps us to work together and develop a joined up response, tailor-made to meet 

the needs of the local community.  

 

Community Forums have been set up in the Somer Valley, Keynsham, the Chew Valley and Bathavon 

under the Connecting Communities programme.  In the autumn of 2015 we launched the Bath City 

Forum; this has meant that for the first time the whole of Bath and North East Somerset has a clear, 

common engagement framework at the local level.     

 

Local residents, businesses and voluntary groups often have an incredible amount of energy and 

capacity to get involved in shaping and improving their local communities. Nearly nine out of ten people 

want to help out more in their local area and we can already see examples of this through initiatives 

such as our network of snow wardens, community involvement in libraries and a programme our 

children and young people are undertaking to tackle homophobia, biphobia and transphobia. We need 

to build on this enthusiasm and commitment for community volunteering and support more residents 

to get involved.  

 

We want to make it simpler for residents to access the information they need and transact with the 

Council 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.  We are beginning to do this. We have made a range of Council 

services available online including payments, service reporting and feedback. We will continue to invest 

in digital technology, making even more services online.  

 

Face to face contact will continue to be delivered through our innovative One Stop Shops. These spaces 

will enable local residents to engage with a range of different services, from the Councils housing advice 

service to the local police. We are also harnessing the opportunities of modern technologies such as 

Twitter, online consultations and webcasting of Council meetings to improve the transparency of the 

decisions we make.  

 

By strengthening our focus on residents and using their insight to develop and deliver improvements, 

we will in turn provide good value services at the standards people expect. Effective community 

engagement has never been more important. 

 

 “The needs of our local residents should be central to everything we are doing as an 

organisation” 

Page 58



17 

 

An efficient business 

Over the last four years we have reduced the amount of money we spend.  We have saved on expensive 

office space, launched new corporate initiatives which are improving the way we work and adapted well 

to the challenge of increased demand for services in the context of reducing budgets. 

 

Yet we still need to do more to deliver the savings required. This includes learning, where relevant, from 

the private sector and looking for new and innovative ways to increase our income. We are already 

considering the potential of new business initiatives such as a property development company to deliver 

housing and buying additional commercial estate that will bring in extra revenue.    

 

We are reviewing the way we do things so that we make the most of new technologies, learn from the 

best and listen to the ideas from our staff and residents about where we can work differently and more 

efficiently. A good example of this is a project looking into how we can deliver a better energy deal for 

communities and businesses in the area; this should help reduce energy costs for residents, keep the 

energy business local, and promote renewable energy whilst generating revenue as well. 

  

We face a significant financial challenge during the next four years and we will be working proactively to 

maximise these efficiencies and business opportunities ahead of reductions to Council services. We will 

do all of this whilst retaining our core values as a council - committed to protecting the most vulnerable 

and delivering quality services for our local residents across Bath and North East Somerset.  

 

Our One Council approach is already acting as an important catalyst for the changes we need to make 

and is a core part of the way we operate. It reflects our approach towards us working together better as 

a single organisation, so that we are less focused on individual service areas, to a more integrated 

structure which enables us to share, support and learn from each other as well as deliver a seamless 

service to our local residents.   

 

The One Council approach nurtures creativity and innovation through schemes such as the 10-in-100 

programme. This programme supports staff to solve problems and improve the way we work and 

deliver services. We are also continuing to change the way we work through our Workplaces 

programme. This programme is reducing office accommodation and investing in technology which will 

enable us to work better and more efficiently. In turn this will reduce the overall amount of money we 

spend.   

 

We know that we cannot deliver our 2020 vision in isolation and that we need to make the most of our 

position as a strong local leader to bring our partners – new and established – together and build on our 

good foundations. We are developing an active and committed Public Services Board, a local partnership 

of key public sector leaders, which is working towards a One Public Sector approach, and delivering 

demonstrable benefits for Bath and North East Somerset.  

 

If we can transform the way we work internally to create efficiencies and provide strong local leadership 

with our partners to encourage collaboration, the result will be a far better future for Bath and North 

East Somerset. 

  
“We face significant change in the years ahead and we need to plan proactively to protect the 

services that matter most to our local residents and to make the most of new opportunities 

and ways of doing things” 

Page 59



18 

 

SECTION THREE – CREATING THE FUTURE 

 

DIRECTORATE PLANS 

 

The Council is organised into three Directorates: People, Place and Resources. This section sets out 

some of the things the Directorates are doing to deliver our 2020 vision.  

 

A strong economy and growth 

 

We will: 

 

• Deliver the Bath City Riverside Enterprise Area Masterplan including the generation of 1650 jobs 

and 920 homes  
 

• Continue to deliver the Core Strategy and Placemaking Plan proposals for Bath, Keynsham, the 

Somer Valley and the rural  areas including the delivery of employment space, housing sites and 

other town developments 
 

• Manage the City Deal on behalf of the West of England, which is allowing us to keep 100% of growth 

in business rates in the Enterprise Area  

 

• Continue to roll out Broadband across the district 

 

• Deliver the Core Strategy targets for jobs and infrastructure for Bath and North East Somerset, 

including the delivery of 3,600 new homes by 2019/20 

 

• Improve transport through the delivery of transport strategies for Keynsham, Chew and Somer 

Valleys 

 

• Collaborate with the 3 West of England Unitary Authorities to develop further devolution proposals 

designed to stimulate economic growth and provision of housing 

 

• Complete the marketing and letting of the new retail units in the Keynsham Civic Centre 

development which is acting as a catalyst for confidence and further development in the area 

 

• Continue to challenge and support schools to promote progression and attainment and ensure that 

young people leave education with an aptitude for study and training and with good employability 

skills 

 

• Continue our nationally recognised Connecting Families programme to support workless families to 

gain training and employment with a view to permanent entry to the employment market 

 

• Continue to target those young people most at risk of becoming NEET so that we support them into 

education, training or employment and prevent long term unemployment and dependency 

 

• Continue to secure education, training and employment opportunities for our Care Leavers so that 

we maintain good outcomes into adulthood 

 

• Commission specialist skills and employment support for those adults less able to access the 

employment market due to ill health or disability. 
 

Page 60



19 

 

A focus on prevention 

 

We will: 

 

• Continue to challenge learning settings to promote educational excellence for all children 

 

• Continue the development of our Local Safeguarding Children’s Board and children’s safeguarding 

functions so that we have robust and effective systems in place to protect children 

 

• Review our services for children and young people most likely to become Looked After particularly 

those aged 12-15 years to improve outcomes 

 

• Implement a new, fully integrated Community Services model for community health and care 

services across B&NES resulting from the Your Care Your Way consultation with communities, 

partners and providers 

 

• Develop and implement an Older People Five Year Strategy which goes beyond health, care and 

housing to encompass all of the services which impact upon older people’s lives 

 

• Re-provide a B&NES Mental Health Unit which combines specialist acute mental health, dementia 

assessment and treatment wards so that we develop a provision which is “future-proofed” and able 

to deliver high quality in-patient care for acute mental illness and dementia 

 

• Continue the development of our Local Safeguarding Adults Board and our adult safeguarding 

functions so that we have robust effective systems in place to protect adults  

 

• Continue to work closely with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) on welfare reform and 

provide free access to the internet and training in libraries 

 

• Continue to work with the Police on local community safety initiatives 

 
• Support the financial aspects of the Care Act and the Your Care Your Way programme especially 

provision of financial support and implementation of new ICT 

 

• Continue to invest in sustainable energy initiatives including Energy @ Home to provide insulation 

and energy saving measures (partly funded by Government grant) plus sustainable energy projects 

in partnership with Bath & West Community Energy 

 

• Inform local planning policy on sustainability issues, develop a new sustainability strategy and 

possibly create a local energy tariff.  Also reduce energy use in council buildings and reduce staff 

travel by embedding flexible working practices 

 

• Carry out the One Council Reviews programme in collaboration with the relevant service and 

department, using “lean systems thinking” principles, which encourage prevention of demand plus a 

greater focus on priorities, and introducing a digital approach with customer self-service wherever 

this makes sense 

 

• Continue to operate the emergency planning service and integrate even more strongly with the 

Police who will use the control room plus locate their front of office staff in the Council One Stop 

Shops 

 

Page 61



20 

 

• Work with partners to develop and support sustainable and affordable housing solutions for those 

who are homeless or in need and deliver 720 affordable homes by March 2019 

 

• Improve air quality through the development of air quality action plans for Keynsham, Saltford and 

Bath by March 2016 
 

• Achieve a 1% year on year increase in participation in physical activity through the delivery of the 

‘Fit for Life’ Active Living Strategy 
 
• Enhance our leisure facilities with a new leisure provider improving Bath’s leisure centre by 

December 2017 and a new centre for Keynsham by March 2019. 

 
  

Page 62



21 

 

A new relationship with customers and communities 
 

We will: 

 

• Lead the Connecting Communities initiative which is helping services to focus on what communities 

most need, partnership working with parishes, but also enabling communities to do more for 

themselves 

 

• Provide advice and information through an integrated approach using the One Stop Shops and 

libraries 

 

• Continue to support community asset transfers where this can be achieved without excessive cost 

to the Council and where community benefits clearly arise 

 

• Review the local Council Tax support scheme for 2017/18 to achieve greater simplicity, better 

targeting of support, and alignment with changes arising from Welfare Reform 

 

• Continue to develop feedback and engagement systems with service users so that the voice of 

children, young people, adults and families influences our practice and provision 

 

• Review children’s social care services to determine if we can develop new models of working which 

build upon our success in Connecting Families, strengthen early help and reduce reliance on 

“statutorily-based” interventions 

 

• Continue to develop Personalisation, Person-Centred planning and personal budgets to enable 

individuals and families to take control of their health and care 

 

• Deliver the B&NES Waste and the West of England Waste Strategies, including the redesign of the 

waste collection service by November 2017.  

 

• Work with Parish Council’s communities and key partners to deliver and adopt Neighbourhood Plans 

by December 2015 and Placemaking Plans by December 2016. 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 63



22 

 

An efficient business 

 

We will: 

 

• Reduce net budgets by at least a further 15% and wherever possible this will be achieved through 

additional income or efficiencies that don’t adversely affect the quality of support services or front 

line services 

 

• Push for greater income generating initiatives to achieve savings, such as through the commercial 

estate, sustainable energy initiatives, and through the creation of a new property company to 

deliver housing 

 

• Review commissioning intentions across the Council to identify opportunities to focus on key 

objectives and achieve economies 

 

• Carry out the One Council Reviews programme which encourage prevention of customer demand 

and a greater focus on priorities 

 

• Introduce a digital approach with customer self-service wherever this makes sense 

 

• Explore further opportunities to collaborate better with other public sector partners. 

 

Key performance indicators and milestones will be set out within more detailed Directorate Plans. We 

will use these indicators and milestones to track the delivery of our 2020 vision. 

 
  

Page 64



23 

 

SECTION FOUR – FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL STRATEGY 

 

The previous Medium Term Service and Resource Plans covered the 3 year period of 2013/14 – 

2015/16 and were in line with both budget priorities and the Council’s policy framework.  

 

Since the national and local elections in May 2015 the Government has not provided any information 

on local government funding beyond 31 March 2016, although the Chancellor announced an 

Emergency Budget Statement on 8 July 2015. This will be followed by a Spending Review leading to 

the Financial Settlement for Local Government around Christmas 2015.  

 

We therefore cannot be certain about local government funding from 2016/17 onwards, although we 

can expect the financial challenge facing the public sector to continue throughout the period of the 

next parliament from 2016/17 to 2019/20. 

 

Whilst the scale and speed of funding reductions are not yet clear, there are a number of factors 

which we can identify that will impact on our funding going forwards: 

 

• Continuing reductions in the national control total for local government funding – we assume 

this will be around 40% over the next four years with an element of front loading. 

• A significant increase in employer’s national insurance contributions to fund the new national 

pension arrangements – equivalent to £2.4M in cash terms. 

• The ongoing impact of new legislation including the Care Act 2014 and the cost of adult social 

care. 

• The need to provide for future pay inflation. 

• The potential impact of changes to interest rates and the revenue cost of meeting the 

Council’s full borrowing requirement. 

• The level of inflationary and demographic cost pressures. 

 

The initial Financial Planning work to look at the future scale of this financial challenge for the Council 

originally estimated that the likely savings, or additional income required, would be around £38M for 

this 4-year period. The position has been reviewed in light of both local and national decisions and 

announcements resulting in a reduction in the estimated financial planning target to just over £30M. 

Given the scale of savings already achieved in the current Medium Term Financial Plan and Budget, it is 

likely that future savings will require some prioritised changes to Council services. 

 

As part of this, the decision of Council to make a contribution of £1.5 million from reserves to meet an 

on-going revenue budget gap in the 2015/16 budget has been addressed during the current financial 

year. 

 

It is too early to accurately predict the full financial impact of the Government’s Spending Review and 

related financial risks, although these have been assessed and may give rise to further savings 

requirements. 

 

A rigorous process is being applied to support the development of the Council budget and medium 

term financial planning process going forwards, including a review of both the Council’s revenue 

budgets and the current Approved Capital Programme.  

Page 65



24 

 

 

The Cabinet will therefore seek to put in place new Directorate Plans setting out a new Medium Term 

Financial Plan to cover the four years from 2016/17 to 2019/20 and will consider a range of options to 

make savings, explore new models of service delivery, deliver innovation and efficiency, and generate 

additional income.  

 

A Strategic Review is taking place to do just this, covering the four strategic priorities: 

o A strong economy and growth 

o A focus on prevention 

o A new relationship with customers and the community 

o An effective business 

 

The Review considers spending across the Council to ensure efficiency savings and income generation 

opportunities are maximised ahead of reductions to Council services. 

 

Page 66



Printed on recycled paper 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING:  Resources Policy Development & Scrutiny Panel 

MEETING:  25th November 2015 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 

PLAN REFERENCE: 

E 9999 

TITLE: Review of 2014/15 Annual Performance Report  

WARD: All 

AN OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

List of attachments to this report: 

2014/15 Annual Performance Report 

 

 

1 THE ISSUE 

1.1 This report invites the Resources Panel to consider  the 2014/15 Annual 

Performance Report. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

The Panel is asked to: 

2.1 Review the Annual Report and suggest any changes that may help ensure this 

document continues to improve and provide useful information the public. 

2.2 Raise any issues that may need to be considered as part of the 2016/17 service 

planning and performance reporting, noting that the Directorate Plans provide 

the context for this. 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 No resource implications. 

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 No specific statutory considerations. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 67



Printed on recycled paper 

 

5 THE REPORT 

Context and Design 

5.1 The Annual Report is a public facing report intended to provide residents and 

customers with a balanced snapshot of performance over the year across the 

whole Council.  

5.2 The Report was drafted during a transitional period for the Council. It is shaped 

by the new public service vision and the four overarching priorities in the draft 

Corporate Strategy, which were under discussion when the Annual Report was 

being written. 

5.3 The content is primarily derived from the 2014/15 Service Delivery Programme, 

which reports progress against the key priorities in the Service Plans. Hyperlinks 

and explanatory footnotes throughout the report provide the reader with access 

to additional information. 

Performance 

5.4 The 2014/15 Annual Report celebrates many instances of good and positive 

performance. Highlights include: 

� Village Agents scheme “highly commended” in the 2014 MJ Achievement 

Awards. 

� Roman Baths won Best Large Visitor Attraction in the South West Tourism 

Excellence Awards.  

� Highest performing Council in the South West for GCSE results and in the 

top 20% of councils nationally. 

� 1st out of 47 local authorities in the annual Stonewall Education Equality 

Index. 

� Outstanding Achievement award for our work in environmental 

sustainability in the West of England Carbon Challenge (WECC) Awards. 

� 771 new affordable homes have been delivered since April 2011, 

exceeding our 4 year target to deliver 610 new affordable homes by 2015. 

� Phase one of the troubled families initiative completed seven months ahead 

of schedule with positive outcomes achieved for 215 families. 

5.5 To ensure we deliver a balanced view of performance, the Report also includes 

areas where we have not performed as well as we would like or where we have 

failed to achieve a key performance target. Reasons for poorer performance are 

provided within the Report together with a brief explanation. 

Page 68



Printed on recycled paper 

Future Reports 

 

5.6 Paragraph 5.4 of the Resources PDS cover report for the Resources Directorate 

Plan 2016-2020 states: 

“The Council will be undertaking a corporate approach to Performance    

 Management in order that we can understand how we are delivering on our    

  commitments. Performance management will be against the 4 corporate 

priorities (a focus on prevention, a strong economy and growth, a new 

relationship with customers and communities and an efficient business) as well 

as the outcomes in the Directorate Plans.”  

We are in the process of refreshing the Corporate Performance Framework in 

line with the above paragraph. This will include how we report performance and 

to whom, and will consider both quarterly and annual reporting. 

6 RATIONALE 

 
6.1 It is recommended by the Governments transparency code that the Council 

published performance information to its residents. 

6.2 The Council will need to be able to report on the delivery of its new Corporate 

Strategy and Directorate plans. 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 None at this time. 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 The Annual Performance Plan was developed in conjunction with Strategic and 

Divisional Directors and approved by Strategic Management Team. 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 

undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 

guidance. 

Contact person  Steve Harman - Strategic Performance Manager, 07530 263207 

Background 

papers 

Hard copies of the Annual Report have been sent to Panel 

Members. 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 

alternative format 

 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

REPORT 2014/15

BATH & NORTH EAST SOMERSET
THE PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND VISIT

Page 71



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

3

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

4

P
re

fa
c
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

W
e
lc

o
m

e
 t
o

 o
u
r 

2
0
14

/1
5
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
 

th
e
 Y

e
a
r

L
as

t 
ye

ar
 w

e 
in

tr
o
d
u
ce

d
 o

u
r 
n
ew

  
v
is

io
n
 f
o

r 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 b

u
ild

s 
o
n
 t
h
e 

so
lid

 fo
u
n
d
at

io
n
s 

w
e’

ve
 a

lre
ad

y 
p
u
t 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
n
su

re
 o

u
r 
re

si
d
en

ts
 

an
d
 c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

co
m

e 
fir

st
 w

h
ile

 
o
ve

rc
o
m

in
g
 o

u
r 
ch

al
le

n
g
es

 to
 m

ak
e
 

B
at

h
 &

 N
o
rt

h
 E

as
t 
S

o
m

er
se

t 
th

e
 

p
la

ce
 to

 li
ve

, 
w

o
rk

 a
n
d
 v

is
it.

 

T
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

a
 s

n
a
p

sh
o
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 f
o
r 

th
e
 la

st
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s 
a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
tin

g
 o

u
r 

a
sp

ir
a
tio

n
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 in

c
re

a
si

n
g
ly

 
c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 f
o
c
u
se

d
. 

It
 is

 a
n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
ity

 t
o
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

so
m

e
 

o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

w
e
 f
a
c
e
 in

 p
u
tt

in
g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 fi

rs
t.

 

W
e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 lo
c
a
l b

u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
n
e
w

 jo
b

s.
 

W
e
 w

ill
 s

te
p

 u
p

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

g
ro

w
 a

n
d

 a
ss

is
t 

in
 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

th
a
t 

w
ill
 e

n
a
b

le
 

th
e
m

 t
o
 d

o
 m

o
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
m

se
lv

e
s.

 
A

n
d

 c
o
n
tin

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

n
e
e
d

 o
u
r 

h
e
lp

. 

A
lth

o
u
g
h
 w

e
 h

a
ve

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 8

0
%

 
o
f 
o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
itm

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 le
a
d

 t
h
e
 

n
a
tio

n
 in

 o
u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
e
y 

a
re

a
s 

fr
o
m

 jo
in

in
g
 u

p
 h

e
a
lth

 
a
n
d

 s
o
c
ia

l c
a
re

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 in

 c
a
re

 a
n
d

 a
d

o
p

tio
n
, 
w

e
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
 t

h
a
t 

a
 lo

t 
m

o
re

 n
e
e
d

s 
to

 
b

e
 d

o
n
e
. 
  
 

F
o

u
r 

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 t

h
e
 d

riv
in

g
 f
o

rc
e
 b

e
h
in

d
 o

u
r 

n
e
w

 v
is

io
n
 a

n
d

 h
e
lp

 s
h
a
p

e
 t

h
e
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

w
e
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
m

..
.

B
a

th
 a

n
d

 N
o

rt
h

 E
a

s
t 

S
o

m
e

rs
e

t 
w

il
l 
b

e
 i
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
ll
y
 

re
n

o
w

n
e

d
 a

s
 a

 b
e

a
u

ti
fu

ll
y
 

in
v
e

n
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
tr

e
p

re
n

e
u

ri
a

l 
2

1
s
t 

c
e

n
tu

ry
 p

la
c

e
 w

it
h

 a
 

s
tr

o
n

g
 s

o
c

ia
l 
p

u
rp

o
s
e

 a
n

d
 

a
 s

p
ir

it
 o

f 
w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
, 

w
h

e
re

 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
s
 i
n

v
it

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

in
k
 b

ig
 

–
 a

 ‘
c

o
n

n
e

c
te

d
’ 

a
re

a
 r

e
a

d
y
 t

o
 

c
re

a
te

 a
n

 e
x
tr

a
o

rd
in

a
ry

 l
e

g
a

c
y
 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

A
 S

tr
on

g
 E

co
n
om

y 
an

d
 G

ro
w

th
A

 F
oc

u
s 

on
 

P
re

ve
n
ti

on
A

 N
ew

 R
el

at
io

n
sh

ip
 

w
it

h
 C

u
st

om
er

s 
 

an
d
 C

om
m

u
n
it

ie
s

A
n
 E

ffi
ci

en
t 

B
u
si

n
es

s

O
 n

ly
 p

ro
m

is
e
 w

h
a
t 

w
e
 c

a
n

 d
e
liv

e
r

N
 u

rt
u

re
 c

re
a
ti
v
it

y
 a

n
d

 i
n

n
o

v
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

E
 x

c
e
lle

n
c
e
 i
n

 e
v
e
ry

th
in

g
 w

e
 d

o

…
u
n
d

e
rp

in
n
e
d

 b
y 

o
u
r  

#
o

n
e
c
o

u
n

c
il 

b
e
h
av

io
u
rs

 t
o
:

a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

e
d

 b
y 

o
u
r 

re
vi

se
d

 C
u

s
to

m
e
r 

C
a
re

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
. 

A
 S

tr
o

n
g

 E
c

o
n

o
m

y

W
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 h
a
rd

 t
o

 b
u
ild

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 e
c
o

n
o

m
y.

 
D

e
sp

ite
 e

xc
e
e
d

in
g

 o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 
a
ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u
se

s 
(7

7
1

 d
u
rin

g
 t

h
e
 la

st
 4

 y
e
a
rs

) 
a
n
d

 m
a
ki

n
g

 e
xc

e
lle

n
t 

p
ro

g
re

ss
, 
th

e
re

 s
til

l r
e
m

a
in

s 
a
n
 e

le
ve

n
 f
o

ld
 d

iff
e
re

n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 

sa
la

ry
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 a

ve
ra

g
e
 c

o
st

 o
f 
a
 h

o
m

e
. 

 T
h
is

 is
 

a
 r

e
a
l c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
tio

n
’s

 
p

rio
rit

ie
s.

W
e
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

in
 t

h
e
 W

e
st

 o
f 

E
n
g

la
n
d

 a
n
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt 
th

e
 r

e
g

io
n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d

 o
ve

r 
£

8
6

m
 t

o
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 o
ve

r 
9

,0
0

0
 jo

b
s 

in
 o

u
r 

a
re

a
. 

M
a
jo

r 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s 

a
re

 e
ith

e
r 

u
n
d

e
rw

a
y 

o
r 

p
la

n
n
e
d

 a
c
ro

ss
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 R

a
d

st
o

c
k,

 
K

e
yn

sh
a
m

 a
n
d

 B
a
th

 Q
u
a
ys

. 
T

h
is

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
o

u
r 

lo
n
g

e
r 

te
rm

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

to
 in

c
re

a
se

 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

e
c
o

n
o

m
y 

b
y 

3
 b

ill
io

n
 b

y 
2

0
2

9
.

A
n
 in

te
g

ra
l p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

is
 is

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
h
e
 

tr
a
n
sp

o
rt

a
tio

n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
re

a
. 

W
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
d

 t
o

 d
e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

lo
n
g

 
te

rm
 a

sp
ira

tio
n
 f
o

r 
a
 n

e
w

 p
a
rk

 a
n
d

 r
id

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
a
st

 o
f 
B

a
th

 a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
n
 in

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 

to
 t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 a
n
d

 w
e
 a

re
 g

iv
in

g
 lo

c
a
l p

e
o

p
le

 a
 

g
e
n
u
in

e
 s

a
y 

o
n
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
o

p
tio

n
s.

  
O

ve
r 

th
e
 

n
e
xt

 1
2

 m
o

n
th

s 
w

e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 s
e
e
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 b
u
s 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 3

7
9

 t
o

 B
ris

to
l r

o
u
te

 
a
n
d

 b
e
tt

e
r 

b
u
s 

st
o

p
s 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
yn

sh
a
m

 a
n
d

 
P

a
u
lto

n
. 

A
 F

o
c

u
s
 o

n
 P

re
v
e

n
ti

o
n

A
lth

o
u
g

h
 s

a
tis

fa
c
tio

n
 w

ith
 li

fe
 in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 is

 h
ig

h
 

a
n
d

 w
e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 m

a
n
y 

n
a
tio

n
a
lly

 r
e
c
o

g
n
is

e
d

 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

th
e
re

 s
til

l r
e
m

a
in

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

d
iff

e
re

n
c
e
s 

in
 li

fe
 e

xp
e
c
ta

n
c
y 

d
e
p

e
n
d

in
g

 w
h
e
re

 y
o

u
 li

ve
. 

To
 a

d
d

re
ss

 t
h
is

 w
e
 h

a
ve

 a
g

re
e
d

 a
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a
lth

 
a
n
d

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y 

w
h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

a
 t

h
re

e
 

p
ro

n
g

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
: 

h
e
lp

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
ta

y 
h
e
a
lth

y,
 im

p
ro

vi
n
g

 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 li

ve
s 

a
n
d

 c
re

a
tin

g
 f
a
ire

r 
lif

e
 c

h
a
n
c
e
s.

W
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ri
o

rit
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 v

e
ry

 s
u
c
c
e
ss

fu
l 

C
o

n
n
e
c
tin

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s 

se
rv

ic
e
 –

 a
s 

a
 d

ire
c
t 

re
su

lt 
 

o
f 
th

is
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 b

a
c
k 

in
 s

c
h
o

o
l, 

yo
u
th

 c
rim

e
 is

 
d

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
re

 o
ff 

b
e
n
e
fit

s 
a
n
d

 in
 w

o
rk

.

O
u
r 

fo
c
u
s 

w
ill
 b

e
 o

n
 p

re
ve

n
ta

tiv
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 s
ta

y 
w

e
ll 

fo
r 

lo
n
g

e
r,
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rly
 

th
e
 e

ld
e
rly

. 
O

ve
r 

3
,0

0
0

 p
e
o

p
le

 h
a
ve

 b
e
n
e
fit

e
d

 
fr

o
m

 a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 jo

in
tly

 r
u
n
 b

y 
S

iro
n
a
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 
p

e
o

p
le

 li
ve

 h
e
a
lth

ie
r 

liv
e
s.

 W
e
 h

a
ve

 in
tr

o
d

u
c
e
d

 
a
 n

e
w

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 
a
n
d

 o
u
r 

vi
lla

g
e
 a

g
e
n
ts

 h
a
ve

 h
e
lp

e
d

 o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 
in

 t
h
e
 C

h
e
w

 v
a
lle

y 
a
re

a
. 

W
e
 r

e
m

a
in

 a
m

o
n
g

 t
h
e
 b

e
st

 f
o

r 
a
d

o
p

tio
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 9
6

%
 o

f 
o

u
r 

se
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
re

 
e
ith

e
r 

g
o

o
d

 o
r 

o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

.

A
 n

e
w

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

s
h

ip
 w

it
h

 C
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

I a
m

 d
e
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

C
o

n
n
e
c
tin

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

F
o

ru
m

s 
a
re

 n
o

w
 o

p
e
ra

tin
g

 in
 m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s 

o
f 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o

m
e
rs

e
t.

 T
h
e
se

 F
o

ru
m

s 
a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 lo

c
a
l i

ss
u
e
s 

su
c
h
 a

s 
ru

ra
l t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 -
 g

iv
in

g
 lo

c
a
l p

e
o

p
le

 a
 r

e
a
l s

ta
ke

 
in

 t
h
e
ir 

o
w

n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s.

  
A

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt 
o

f 
c
ro

ss
 

p
a
rt

y 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
e
 h

a
ve

 r
e
c
e
n
tly

 e
st

a
b

lis
h
e
d

 
a
 n

e
w

 B
a
th

 C
ity

 F
o

ru
m

 t
o

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
c
o

lla
b

o
ra

tio
n
 in

 t
h
e
 C

ity
. 

O
u
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n
ity

 A
lc

o
h
o

l P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 in
 M

id
so

m
e
r 

N
o

rt
o

n
 g

o
e
s 

fr
o

m
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
 t

o
 s

tr
e
n
g

th
. 

W
o

rk
in

g
 

w
ith

 lo
c
a
l t

ra
d

e
rs

 a
n
d

 S
tr

e
e
t 

M
a
rs

h
a
lls

 w
e
 

h
a
ve

 s
e
e
n
 a

 1
7

%
 r

e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 a
n
ti-

 s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a
vi

o
u
r.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o

w
 6

1
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 s
a
fe

ty
 

zo
n
e
s 

h
e
lp

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
e
e
l s

a
fe

r 
in

 t
h
e
ir 

o
w

n
 

n
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o

d
s.

W
e
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n
ity

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 e

ve
n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 
w

o
rk

 in
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

. 
A

lm
o

st
 2

4
0

 v
o

lu
n
te

e
rs

 
fr

o
m

 lo
c
a
l b

u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

to
o

k 
p

a
rt

 w
ith

 m
a
n
y 

a
g

re
e
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
se

 
c
o

m
m

u
n
ity

 in
iti

a
tiv

e
s.

A
n

 E
ffi

c
ie

n
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s

W
e
 a

re
 a

ll 
a
w

a
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
re

 a
re

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 
p

re
ss

u
re

s 
o

n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 fi

n
a
n
c
e
s 

so
 if

 w
e
 a

re
 t

o
 

e
n
su

re
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

e
liv

e
r 

w
h
a
t 

is
 n

e
e
d

e
d

, 
w

e
 n

e
e
d

 
to

 o
p

e
ra

te
 a

s 
a
n
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
t 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

. 
 

W
e
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
d

 t
o

 e
st

a
b

lis
h
in

g
 a

 lo
n
g

 t
e
rm

 
fin

a
n
c
ia

l p
la

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 p
ro

te
c
tin

g
 h

ig
h
 

p
rio

rit
y 

fr
o

n
t 

lin
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
h
ils

t 
h
e
lp

in
g

 t
h
e
 

vu
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 c
o

n
tin

u
in

g
 t

o
 in

ve
st

 in
 t

h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 

I a
m

 p
le

a
se

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 r
e
p

o
rt

 t
h
a
t 

sp
e
c
ifi

c
 

sa
vi

n
g

s 
o

f 
o

ve
r 

£
1

0
m

 h
a
ve

 a
lre

a
d

y 
b

e
e
n
 f
o

u
n
d

 
b

u
t 

a
 lo

t 
m

o
re

 n
e
e
d

s 
to

 b
e
 f
o

u
n
d

 t
o

 b
a
la

n
c
e
 t

h
e
 

b
o

o
ks

. 
To

 d
o

 t
h
is

 w
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
tin

u
in

g
 t

o
 e

xp
lo

re
 

sh
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d

 s
h
a
re

d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t,

 
re

d
u
c
e
 b

u
re

a
u
c
ra

c
y 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
in

g
 n

e
w

 
te

c
h
n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 c

o
st

s 
w

h
ils

t 
im

p
ro

vi
n
g

 
c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
h
o

w
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

O
n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o

p
s 

– 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
ve

 
b

e
e
n
 a

 h
u
g

e
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

 -
 e

p
ito

m
is

e
 t

h
is

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
.

W
e
 w

ill
 d

e
liv

e
r 

w
h
a
t 

w
e
 p

ro
m

is
e
 a

n
d

 g
iv

e
 lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
 g

e
n
u
in

e
 s

a
y 

in
 t

h
e
 k

e
y 

is
su

e
s 

th
a
t 

a
ff
e
c
t 

lo
c
a
l f

a
m

ili
e
s.

D
r 

J
o

 F
a

rr
a

r 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
c
u
tiv

e
 o

f 
B

a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o

m
e
rs

e
t 

C
o

u
n
c
il

Page 72



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

5

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

6

T
h
is

 r
e
p

o
rt

 p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

a
 s

n
a
p

s
h

o
t 

o
f 
o
u
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 

a
g
a
in

st
 t
h
e
se

 p
rio

rit
ie

s;
 it

 s
h
o
w

s 
h
o
w

 f
a
r 

w
e
 h

av
e
  

c
o
m

e
 in

 d
e
liv

e
rin

g
 o

u
r 

n
ew

 v
is

io
n
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 la

st
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s 
a
n
d

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
h
o
w

 w
e
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

vi
n
g

  
o
u
r 

a
sp

ira
tio

n
 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

n
 in

c
re

a
si

n
g
ly

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 a
n
d

 c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

fo
c
u
se

d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
at

 
lis

te
n
s 

to
 it

s 
c
iti

ze
n
s.

 

A
 p

rim
e 

ex
a
m

p
le

 is
 o

u
r 
C

o
n
n
e
c
ti
n
g

 C
o

m
m

u
n
it
ie

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e,
 w

h
ic

h
 d

e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
h
o
w

 w
e 

a
re

 
d
ev

e
lo

p
in

g
 “

a 
n
ew

 r
e
la

tio
n
sh

ip
 w

ith
 c

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s”

 
b
y 

h
e
lp

in
g
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 h

a
rn

e
ss

 t
h
e 

sk
ills

 a
n
d
 a

b
ilit

ie
s 

o
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 in
 t
h
e
ir 

lo
c
al

 a
re

a 
to

 a
d
d
re

ss
 t
h
e
ir 

co
n
ce

rn
s 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
lo

se
r 
p
u
b
lic

 w
o
rk

in
g
. 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 h

as
 a

g
ai

n
 b

ee
n
 p

ro
m

is
in

g
. 

In
 li

g
h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 
in

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
tin

u
e
s 

to
 o

p
e
ra

te
, 
th

is
 is

 a
n
 e

xc
e
lle

n
t 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

s 
o
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

 t
h
at

 
d

e
sp

ite
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
o
n
g
o
in

g
 fi

n
a
n
c
ia

l p
re

ss
u
re

s,
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 d

e
liv

e
rin

g
 o

n
 it

s 
c
o
m

m
itm

e
n
t 
to

 p
u
t 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

fir
st

, 
w

h
ile

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 fi

rs
t 

c
la

ss
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
itm

e
n
ts

 w
e
 m

a
d

e
 t
o

 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 in

 o
u
r 

2
0
14

/1
5
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

p
la

n
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 in

 f
u
ll

th
e
 r
e
m

a
in

in
g
 2

0
%

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 f
o
r 
th

e
 m

o
st

 p
a
rt

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 f
o
r 
th

e
 m

o
st

 p
a
r

S
E

L
E

C
T
E

D
 H

IG
H

L
IG

H
T
S

2
0
14

/1
5

  V
illa

g
e 

A
g
en

ts
 s

ch
em

e 
“h

ig
h
ly

 c
o

m
m

e
n
d

e
d

” 
in

 t
h
e 

2
01

4
 M

J 
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 
A

w
ar

d
s.

   R
o
m

an
 B

at
h
s 

w
o
n
 B

e
s
t 

L
a
rg

e
 V

is
it
o

r 
A

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 in

 t
h
e 

S
o
u
th

 W
es

t 
To

u
ris

m
 

E
xc

el
le

n
ce

 A
w

ar
d
s.

 

   H
ig

h
e
s
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 C
o
u
n
ci

l i
n
 t
h
e 

S
o
u
th

 
W

es
t 
fo

r 
G

C
S

E
 r
es

u
lts

 a
n
d
 in

 t
h
e 

to
p
 2

0
%

  
o
f c

o
u
n
ci

ls
 n

at
io

n
al

ly
.

   O
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g

 A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

aw
ar

d
 fo

r 
o
u
r 
w

o
rk

 in
 e

nv
iro

n
m

en
ta

l s
u
st

ai
n
ab

ilit
y 

 
in

 t
h
e 

W
es

t 
o
f E

n
g
la

n
d
 C

ar
b
o
n
 C

h
al

le
n
g
e
 

(W
E
C

C
) A

w
ar

d
s.

  9
9
.2

5
%

 c
u
st

o
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n
 w

ith
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr
o
l.

   7
7
1
 n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 h
o
m

es
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 

d
el

iv
er

ed
 s

in
ce

 A
p
ril

 2
01

1,
 e

xc
ee

d
in

g
 o

u
r 

4
 y

ea
r 
ta

rg
et

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 6

10
 n

ew
 a

ffo
rd

ab
le

 
h
o
m

es
 b

y 
2
01

5
.

   P
h
as

e 
o
n
e 

o
f t

h
e 

tr
o
u
b
le

d
 fa

m
ilie

s 
in

iti
at

iv
e
 

(C
o
n
n
ec

tin
g
 F

am
ilie

s 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
) c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
se

ve
n
 m

o
n
th

s 
ah

ea
d
 o

f s
ch

ed
u
le

 w
ith

 
p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d

 f
o

r 
 

2
15

 f
a
m

ili
e
s.

  1
s
t 

o
u
t 
o
f 4

7
 lo

ca
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

in
 t
h
e 

an
n
u
al

 
S

to
n
ew

al
l E

d
u
ca

tio
n
 E

q
u
al

ity
 In

d
ex

1 .

   W
o

n
 n

at
io

n
al

 C
C

T
V

 T
ea

m
 o

f t
h
e 

Ye
ar

 a
w

ar
d
.

W
h
ile

 w
e 

h
av

e 
ce

le
b
ra

te
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 

ac
h
ie

ve
m

e
n
ts

 d
u
rin

g
 t
h
e 

la
st

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s,
  

w
e 

re
co

g
n
is

e 
th

e
re

 is
 m

o
re

 w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e 
d
o
n
e.

 
S

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
h
e
al

th
 in

e
q
u
al

iti
e
s 

ex
is

t 
ac

ro
ss

 
d
iff

e
re

n
t 
p
a
rt

s 
o
f t

h
e 

au
th

o
rit

y,
 lo

w
 w

ag
e
s 

a
n
d

 
a
n
 e

xp
e
n
si

ve
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 m

a
rk

et
 c

re
at

e 
af

fo
rd

a
b
ilit

y 
is

su
e
s 

fo
r 
m

a
n
y 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 e

d
u
c
at

io
n
al

 
at

ta
in

m
e
n
t 
g
a
p
s 

fo
r 
d
is

ad
va

n
ta

g
e
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

b
e
in

g
 ju

st
 a

 fe
w

 o
f t

h
e 

ch
al

le
n
g
e
s 

w
e 

fa
ce

. 

W
e 

re
m

ai
n
 fu

lly
 a

n
d
 e

n
e
rg

et
ic

al
ly

 c
o
m

m
itt

e
d

 
to

 e
m

p
o
w

e
rin

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

a
n
d
 m

e
et

in
g
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d
s 

o
f o

u
r 
re

si
d
e
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 b

e
lie

ve
 t
h
at

 a
s 

yo
u
 r
e
ad

 t
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

, 
yo

u
 w

ill 
ag

re
e 

th
at

 w
e 

a
re

 
cl

e
a
rly

 h
e
ad

in
g
 in

 t
h
e 

rig
h
t 
d
ire

ct
io

n.

A
 S

tr
o
n
g
 E

c
o
n
o
m

y 
a
n
d

 G
ro

w
th

Lo
ca

l E
co

n
o
m

y 

O
u
r 

lo
c
a
l e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
h
a
s 

ex
p

e
rie

n
c
e
d

 s
o
m

e
 fl

u
c
tu

at
io

n
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 la

st
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
t 

o
ve

ra
ll 

h
a
s 

m
a
n
a
g
e
d

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 b
u
o
ya

n
t 
w

ith
 m

a
n
y 

o
f 
th

e
 m

e
a
su

re
s 

u
se

d
 t
o

 
g
a
u
g
e
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lth

 o
f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
re

fle
c
tin

g
 a

 p
o
si

tiv
e
 p

o
si

tio
n
.

1
 T

h
e
 In

d
e
x 

is
 a

 c
o

m
p

re
h
e
n
si

ve
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 e

xe
rc

is
e
 f
o

r 
lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
sh

o
w

c
a
si

n
g
 h

o
w

 w
e
ll 

th
e
y 

c
e
le

b
ra

te
 d

iff
e
re

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 t
a
c
k
le

 h
o

m
o

p
h
o

b
ia

 a
n
d

 b
ip

h
o

b
ia

 in
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 

a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 L

G
B

T
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 in
 t

h
e
ir 

lo
c
a
l c

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s.

 T
h
e
 2

0
15

 In
d

e
x 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
st

 c
o

m
p

e
tit

iv
e
 t
o
 d

a
te

 w
ith

 4
7
 lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
ta

k
in

g
 p

a
rt

 –
 t

h
e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 e
ve

r.

 b
u
t 

 t
o

 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

G
ro

w
th

+
4

%

(S
ep

te
m

be
r 

2
0
14

)

To
ta

l n
um

be
r 

of
 b

us
in

es
se

s 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
to

 7
0,

47
1.

 

To
p 

se
ct

or
 r

em
ai

ns
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l, 
S

ci
en

tifi
c 

&
 

Te
ch

ni
ca

l A
ct

iv
iti

es
.

N
ew

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

S
ta

rt
 U

p
s

-7
.0

%

(D
ec

em
be

r 
2
0
14

)

A
bb

ey
 w

ar
d 

ha
s 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 
le

ve
l o

f 
st

ar
t-

up
s 

w
hi

le
 C

he
w

 V
al

le
y 

ex
pe

ri
en

ce
d 

th
e 

 

gr
ea

te
st

 d
ec

re
as

e

S
el

f-
E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 

1
4

%

(D
ec

em
be

r 
2
0
14

)

In
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 1
%

 o
ve

r 

la
st

 1
2
 m

on
th

s;
 s

tr
on

ge
r 

co
nc

en
tr

at
io

n 
th

an
  

lo
ca

l, 
re

gi
on

al
 &

  

na
tio

na
l c

om
pa

ra
to

rs

E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t

7
3
.3

%

(D
ec

em
be

r 
2
0
14

)

0.
5
%

 lo
w

er
 t
ha

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 

2
01

3
 a

nd
 lo

w
er

 S
ou

th
 W

es
t 

av
er

ag
e 

(7
6.

0
%

) b
ut

 n
ea

rly
 

1%
 a

bo
ve

 t
he

 n
at

io
na

l 

av
er

ag
e 

(7
2.

4
%

)

16
 t

o
 1

8
 N

E
E

T
 

3
.5

%

(N
ov

 2
01

4
 –

  

Ja
n 

2
01

5
)

R
ed

uc
ed

 f
ro

m
 3

.8
%

 f
or

 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

ri
od

 la
st

 y
ea

r;
 

co
m

pa
re

s 
fa

vo
ur

ab
ly

 t
o 

th
e 

En
gl

an
d 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 7

.0
%

U
n

em
p

lo
ye

d
 P

eo
p

le
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

ed 0
.7

%

(M
ar

ch
 2

0
14

)

JS
A

 c
la

im
an

ts
 r

ed
uc

ed
 

fr
om

 1
.5

%
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
14

; 

lo
w

es
t 
le

ve
l o

f 
cl

ai
m

an
ts

 

ev
er

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 in
 B

&
N

E
S

R
es

id
en

t 
W

a
g

es
 –

  

To
ta

l 
W

ee
k

ly
 

£
3
8
3
.3

0
(2

0
14

)

R
ed

uc
ed

 f
ro

m
 £

41
1.

5
0
  

in
 2

0
13

 a
nd

 r
em

ai
ns

 lo
w

er
  

th
an

 t
he

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

  

re
gi

on
al

 a
ve

ra
ge

A
p

p
re

n
ti

ce
sh

ip
s 

 

b
y 

C
o
u

n
ci

l

2
8
 

Tw
o 

ap
pr

en
tic

es
 w

er
e 

fin
al

is
ts

 in
 t
he

 B
ri
st

ol
 

an
d 

B
at

h 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

A
pp

re
nt

ic
e 

of
 t
he

  

Ye
ar

 a
w

ar
ds

S
k
ill

s 
&

 Q
u
al

ifi
ca

ti
on

s

4
4
.0

%
 

N
V
Q

 4
+

(2
0
14

)

In
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 2
.3

%
 s

in
ce

 

2
01

2
; g

re
at

er
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n
  

of
 r

es
id

en
ts

 w
ith

 N
VQ

 4
  

th
an

 r
eg

io
na

l a
nd

  

na
tio

na
l c

om
pa

ra
to

rs
 

R
et

a
il 

V
a
ca

n
cy

 R
a
te

3
.4

%

(D
ec

em
be

r 
2
0
14

)

Va
ca

nc
y 

ra
te

 in
cr

ea
se

d
 

0
.7

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

; 
it 

re
m

ai
ns

 b
el

ow
 t
he

 n
at

io
na

l 

av
er

ag
e 

re
fle

ct
in

g 
th

e 

st
re

ng
th

 o
f 
B

at
h’

s 
 

re
ta

il 
of

fe
r

H
o
u

se
 P

ri
ce

s 

+
7.

6
%

ye
ar

 t
o 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
15

H
ou

se
 p

ri
ce

s 
ar

e 
4

6
%

 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

ra
ge

, 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 
6

%
 s

in
ce

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
14

A
ff

or
d
ab

le
 H

om
es

 

C
om

p
le

te
d 7
7
1

 
(M

ar
ch

 2
0
15

)

E
xc

ee
de

d 
ou

r 
4
 y

ea
r 

ta
rg

et
 t
o 

de
liv

er
 6

10
 n

ew
 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

om
es

 b
et

w
ee

n
 

A
pr

il 
2
0
11

 a
nd

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
15

O
u

r 
k
e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
: 
L
o
w

e
r 

g
ro

w
th

 le
ve

ls
 t
h
a
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
st

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
g
io

n
; 
fa

lli
n
g
 w

a
g
e
s 

a
n
d

 lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 

o
u
r 

n
at

io
n
a
l c

o
m

p
et

ito
rs

; 
a
n
d

 h
o
u
se

 p
ric

e
s 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 d

o
u
b

le
 t
h
e
 n

at
io

n
a
l a

ve
ra

g
e
 c

re
at

in
g

 
is

su
e
s 

a
ro

u
n
d

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
o
f 
liv

in
g
.

Page 73



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

7

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

8

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

9

S
u
b

-R
e
g
io

n
a
l  

W
o
rk

in
g

 

W
e 

ar
e 

a 
st

ro
n
g
 p

ar
tn

er
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 

W
es

t 
o
f E

n
g
la

n
d
 L

o
ca

l E
n
te

rp
ris

e
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 (
L
E
P

). 

T
h
e
 k

ey
 f
o
c
u
s 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e
 W

e
st

 o
f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
’s

 fi
rs

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 
P

la
n
. 
A

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt 
o
f 
th

is
 p

la
n
, 
th

e
 W

e
st

 o
f 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d

 £
8
6
.2

 m
ill
io

n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
15

/1
6
 t
o

 
a
c
c
e
le

ra
te

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 c
re

at
e
 n

ew
 jo

b
s.

 
In

 B
&

N
E

S
, 
o
u
r 

p
rio

rit
y 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 t
h
e
 B

a
th

 
C

it
y
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 A

re
a
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
si

g
n
at

e
d

 a
s 

a
n
 a

re
a
 o

f 
g
ro

w
th

 b
y 

th
e
 L

E
P

 a
n
d

 h
a
s 

th
e
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

9
,0

0
0
 jo

b
s 

a
n
d

 3
,4

0
0
 h

o
m

e
s 

in
 B

at
h
 b

y 
2
0
3
0
, 
p

la
yi

n
g
 a

 k
ey

 
ro

le
 in

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 m

u
c
h
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
io

n
 fo

r 
th

e
 a

re
a’

s 
flo

u
ris

h
in

g
 h

ig
h
-v

a
lu

e
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 s
e
c
to

rs
. 

T
h
e
 fi

n
a
l v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 V

is
io

n
 R

e
p

o
rt

 
fo

r 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ris

e
 A

re
a
 w

a
s 

e
n
d

o
rs

e
d

 b
y 

C
a
b

in
et

 
in

 N
o
ve

m
b

e
r.

B
at

h
 is

 b
e
n
e
fit

in
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 L

E
P

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 o

u
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 B

at
h
 C

ity
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e
 E

n
te

rp
ris

e
 A

re
a
. 

In
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r, 
in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

llo
c
at

e
d

 t
o

 
B

at
h
 Q

u
ay

s 
w

ith
 £

2
5
 m

ill
io

n
 f
u
n
d

in
g
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
a
lly

 
aw

a
rd

e
d

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

re
at

io
n
 o

f 
a
 n

ew
 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 q
u
a
rt

e
r. 

O
th

e
r 

fu
n
d

in
g
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

llo
c
at

e
d

 f
o
r 

a
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 

d
e
d

ic
at

e
d

 ‘g
ro

w
th

 h
u
b
’ 
to

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 a

d
vi

c
e
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
ey

 
n
e
e
d

 t
o
 g

ro
w

, 
a
n
d

 a
 r

af
t 
o
f 
n
ew

 o
r 

m
o
d

e
rn

is
e
d

 
a
n
d

 e
xt

e
n
d

e
d

 c
o
lle

g
e
s 

th
at

 w
ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 m
u
c
h
-

n
e
e
d

e
d

 b
o
o
st

 t
o
 s

ki
lls

 a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o
p

le
 h

av
e
 a

c
c
e
ss

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ki
lls

 t
h
ey

 n
e
e
d

 f
o
r 

fu
tu

re
 jo

b
s,

 i.
e.

, 
n
u
c
le

a
r, 

a
d

va
n
c
e
d

 e
n
g
in

e
e
rin

g
, 

c
re

at
iv

e,
 h

ig
h
 t
e
c
h
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ke
y 

g
ro

w
in

g
 

in
d

u
st

rie
s 

in
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
. 

In
 a

d
d

iti
o
n
, 
L
E

P
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d

 
to

 a
 la

rg
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
b

u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n
d

 t
o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 e

xp
a
n
d

 
a
n
d

 c
re

at
e
 n

ew
 jo

b
s.

T
h
e
 I
n
v
e
s
t 

B
ri

s
to

l 
&

 B
a
th

 (
IB

B
) 
se

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d

 
a
n
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

a
d

s 
a
n
d

 in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

su
c
c
e
ss

e
s 

w
ith

 a
 3

5
%

 in
c
re

a
se

 in
 a

ss
o
c
ia

te
d

 
jo

b
 g

e
n
e
ra

tio
n
, 
ex

c
e
e
d

in
g
 k

ey
 t
a
rg

et
s.

 A
 n

ew
 

M
e
m

o
ra

n
d

u
m

 o
f 
U

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d

 
b

et
w

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 r
e
la

tin
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 5

 y
e
a
r 

B
u
si

n
e
ss

 P
la

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 L

E
P.

 

C
u
rr

e
n
tly

 IB
B

 h
a
s 

10
0
 a

c
tiv

e
 le

a
d

s 
a
n
d

 5
5
 a

c
tiv

e
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
tia

l t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
ve

r 
3
,0

0
0

 
jo

b
s 

in
 t
h
e
 W

e
st

 o
f 
E

n
g
la

n
d
.

W
e
 a

re
 d

ev
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n
tin

g
 

o
u
r 

n
ew

 G
e
tt

in
g

 A
ro

u
n

d
 B

a
th

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y.

 S
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
u
p

g
ra

d
e
s 

to
 B

at
h’

s 
tr

a
n
sp

o
rt

 
n
et

w
o
rk

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 B

a
th

 
T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
a
c
k
a
g

e
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

xt
e
n
si

o
n
 o

f 
N

ew
b

rid
g
e
 P

a
rk

 &
 R

id
e
 b

y 
24

8
 s

p
a
c
e
s 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
tio

n
 o

f 
va

ria
b

le
 m

e
ss

a
g
e
 s

ig
n
s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

b
et

te
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 f
o
r 

ro
a
d

 u
se

rs
.

T
h
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y 

a
u
tu

m
n
 2

0
15

, 
sl

ig
h
tly

 la
te

r 
th

a
n
 p

la
n
n
e
d

 d
u
e
  

to
 d

e
la

ys
 in

 im
p

le
m

e
n
tin

g
 r

e
a
l t

im
e
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
  

at
 b

u
s 

st
o
p

s.
 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
ss

fu
l b

id
 f
o
r 

a
d

d
iti

o
n
a
l f

u
n
d

in
g

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l S

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 T

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 F
u
n
d

 
P

ro
je

c
t,
 t
h
e
 n

ex
t 
12

 m
o
n
th

s 
w

ill
 s

e
e
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 
to

 b
u
s 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 M

id
so

m
e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n
 /

 
R

a
d

st
o
c
k 

to
 B

ris
to

l b
u
s 

ro
u
te

 (
S

e
rv

ic
e
 3

7
9

) a
n
d

 
b

u
s 

st
o
p

 in
fr
a
st

ru
c
tu

re
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

o
u
te

 b
et

w
e
e
n
 

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

 a
n
d

 P
a
u
lto

n
.

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 

M
aj

o
r 
re

g
en

er
at

io
n
 s

ch
em

es
 a

re
 

u
n
d
er

w
ay

 o
r 
p
la

n
n
ed

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e 

ar
ea

. 

T
h
e
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

n
 p

a
g
e
 9

 il
lu

st
ra

te
s 

th
e
 im

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 

o
f 
o
u
r 

m
a
in

 s
c
h
e
m

e,
 t
h
e
 B

a
th

 C
it

y
 R

iv
e
rs

id
e

 
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e
 A

re
a

. 

W
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 A
re

a
: 

 
 £

6
.2

 m
ill
io

n
 B

a
th

 Q
u

a
y
s
 W

a
te

rs
id

e
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 fl
o
o
d

 d
ef

e
n
c
e
s 

to
 t
h
e
 n

o
rt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o
u
th

 b
a
n
ks

 o
f 
th

e
 R

iv
e
r 

A
vo

n
 b

et
w

e
e
n
 C

h
u
rc

h
ill
 B

rid
g
e,

 a
n
d

 
M

id
la

n
d

 B
rid

g
e
 is

 u
n
d

e
rw

ay
 (
ke

y 
to

 t
h
e
 

d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 E

n
te

rp
ris

e
 A

re
a
).

 
 G

ra
d

e
 II

* 
L
is

te
d

 V
ic

to
ri

a
 B

ri
d

g
e

 
re

o
p

e
n
e
d

 in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
  

a
 £

3
.4

 m
ill
io

n
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t.

 
 D

e
s
tr

u
c
to

r 
B

ri
d

g
e
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d

 
to

 m
a
ke

 w
ay

 f
o
r 

a
 n

ew
 m

o
d

e
rn

 t
w

o
-w

ay
 

st
ru

c
tu

re
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 B

at
h
  

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 

 
 D

e
c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 g

a
s 

h
o
ld

e
rs

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

a
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 h
a
s 

b
e
n
e
fit

e
d

 f
ro

m
  

fu
rt

h
e
r 

u
se

 o
f 
R

ev
o
lv

in
g
 In

fr
a
st

ru
c
tu

re
  

F
u
n
d

 m
o
n
ey

 a
llo

c
at

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 L

E
P.

 

 
 A

n
 o

p
e
n
 d

e
si

g
n
 c

o
m

p
et

iti
o
n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d

 f
o
r 

a
 n

e
w

 b
ri

d
g

e
 f

o
r 

B
a
th

 
Q

u
a
y
s
; 
si

x 
p

re
st

ig
io

u
s 

te
a
m

s 
a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g

 
o
n
 d

e
si

g
n
s 

to
 s

u
b

m
it 

d
u
rin

g
 2

0
15

.

E
ls

ew
h
e
re

 in
 B

at
h
, 
a
 £

10
0
,0

0
0
 r

e
ju

ve
n
at

io
n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s 

re
st

o
re

d
 t
h
e
 h

is
to

ric
 la

n
d

sc
a
p

e
 o

f 
Q

u
e
e
n

 S
q

u
a
re

, 
a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 
c
o
n
n
e
c
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

p
e
d

e
st

ria
n
s 

a
n
d

 c
yc

lis
ts

. 
P

la
n
s 

to
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 R

o
a
d

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 G

ra
n

d
 

P
a
ra

d
e
 a

n
d

 U
n

d
e
rc

ro
ft

 a
re

 u
n
d

e
rg

o
in

g
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

c
o
n
su

lta
tio

n
, 
a
lth

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 R

o
a
d

 p
u
b

lic
 

re
a
lm

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
ts

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Page 74



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

10

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

11

T
h
e
re

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 t
ra

ve
l w

ith
 t
h
e
 in

tr
o
d

u
c
tio

n
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

ic
 

ve
h
ic

le
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 p

o
in

ts
 a

t 
C

h
a
rlo

tt
e
 S

tr
e
e
t 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

, 
O

d
d

 D
o
w

n
 P

a
rk

 &
 R

id
e
 (
P

&
R

),
 L

a
n
sd

o
w

n
 P

&
R

 a
n
d

 
M

id
so

m
e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e.
 A

d
d

iti
o
n
a
l c

h
a
rg

in
g

 
p

o
in

ts
 a

re
 p

la
n
n
e
d

 f
o
r 

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

 F
o
x 

&
 H

o
u
n
d

s 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
n
d

 N
ew

b
rid

g
e
 P

&
R

. 

A
 c

yc
le

 h
ire

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

B
at

h
 S

p
a
 U

n
iv

e
rs

ity
 w

a
s 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d

 la
st

 s
u
m

m
e
r 

to
g
et

h
e
r 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

o
f 
a
 n

ew
 li

n
k 

to
 t
h
e
 T

w
o
 T

u
n
n
e
ls

 G
re

e
n
w

ay
 p

at
h
 a

t 
C

la
u
d

e
 A

ve
n
u
e
 in

 O
ld

fie
ld

 P
a
rk

, 
a
n
d

 B
at

h
e
a
st

o
n
 

B
rid

g
e
 a

n
d

 1
.5

km
 o

f 
sh

a
re

d
 o

ff-
ro

a
d

 p
at

h
 o

p
e
n
e
d

 
in

 S
e
p
te

m
b

e
r.

V
is

ito
r 

E
c
o
n
o
m

y 

To
u
ris

m
 –

 K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s2
 

D
A

Y
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S

A
N

N
U

A
L
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
4

V
IS

IT
O

R
S

 T
O

 T
O

P
 

1
0
 A

T
T
R

A
C

T
IO

N
S

E
M

P
LO

Y
E
D

 I
N

 T
O

U
R

IS
M

 (
2

0
12

 F
IG

U
R

E
S

)

O
V

E
R

N
IG

H
T
 V

IS
IT

O
R

S
3

2
F
ig

u
re

s 
o

b
ta

in
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 N

a
tio

n
a
l T

o
u
ri
sm

 B
o

a
rd

 w
ith

 2
0
13

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 r
e
c
e
n
t 
d

a
ta

 a
va

ila
b

le
.

3
 B

a
th

 T
o

u
ri
sm

 P
lu

s 
sh

o
w

s 
vi

si
to

r 
a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
tio

n
 o

c
c
u
p

a
n
c
y 

ra
te

s 
a
re

 u
p

 b
y 

7.
7
%

 f
o

r 
2
0
14

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
1
3
, 
a
n
d

 r
e
ve

n
u
e
 u

p
 b

y 
9

%
.

F
in

a
l o

ve
ra

ll 
va

lu
e
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
to

u
ri
sm

 fi
g

u
re

s 
fo

r 
2
0
14

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

va
ila

b
le

 in
 t

h
e
 a

u
tu

m
n
.

4
S

e
e
 n

o
te

 2
 a

b
o
ve

.

O
u
ts

id
e 

o
f B

at
h

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
K

e
y
n

s
h

a
m

 
T
h
e
 n

ew
 T

o
w

n
 H

a
ll,

 O
n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p
, 
L
ib

ra
ry

 
a
n
d

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
ffi

c
e
s 

h
av

e
 o

p
e
n
e
d

 t
o
 a

 f
av

o
u
ra

b
le

 
re

c
e
p
tio

n
. 
K

ey
n
sh

a
m

’s
 n

ew
 T

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 S
tr

at
e
g
y 

 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

n
ew

 
a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 d

u
rin

g
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
15

.

R
a
d

s
to

c
k
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
to

 t
ra

n
sf

o
rm

 R
a
d

st
o
c
k 

to
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 w

ith
  

£
1
 m

ill
io

n
 in

ve
st

m
e
n
t 
to

 r
ev

ita
lis

e
 t
h
e
 lo

c
a
l 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
A

s 
w

e
ll 

a
s 

a
n
 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 r

o
a
d

 la
yo

u
t 
a
n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 r

e
a
lm

, 
L
in

d
e
n
 

H
o
m

e
s’

 w
ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 7

0
 n

ew
 h

o
m

e
s,

 u
p

 t
o
 2

8
2

 
sq

u
a
re

 m
et

e
rs

 o
f 
n
ew

 s
h
o
p

s,
 8

4
 s

q
u
a
re

 m
e
te

rs
 

fo
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 u
se

s 
a
n
d

 a
 p

u
b

lic
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

.

M
id

s
o

m
e
r 

N
o

rt
o

n
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

W
ill
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 s

h
o
p

p
in

g
 h

e
a
rt

, 
c
re

at
e
 a

 
m

ix
e
d

 u
se

 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 m
a
ke

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 o
f 

ex
is

tin
g
 lo

c
a
l a

tt
ra

c
tio

n
s.

 O
p
tio

n
s 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

 c
e
n
tr

e
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

 a
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

at
io

n
 h

a
s 

g
o
n
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

 
n
ew

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
.

T
h
e
 C

ity
 o

f 
B

at
h
 is

 r
a
n
ke

d
 1

3
th

 in
 t
h
e
 t
o
p

 2
0
 li

st
 o

f 
U

K
 c

iti
e
s 

vi
si

te
d

 b
y 

o
ve

rs
e
a
s 

vi
si

to
rs

 (1
6
th

 in
 2

0
11

).
 

W
h
ile

 t
h
e
 2

0
14

 B
at

h
 V

is
ito

r 
S

u
rv

ey
 s

h
o
w

s 
th

at
 

th
e
re

 is
 a

n
 in

c
re

a
se

 in
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
st

ay
in

g
 

vi
si

to
rs

 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

ity
 u

si
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
d

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
io

n
, 

B
at

h
 w

a
s 

ra
n
ke

d
 b

y 
fa

r 
th

e
 m

o
st

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
c
ity

 f
o
r 

a
 s

p
e
c
ia

l s
h
o
p

p
in

g
 t
rip

 a
n
d

 o
ve

ra
ll 

th
e
 

c
ity

 a
c
h
ie

ve
d

 a
 s

at
is

fa
c
tio

n
 r

at
in

g
 o

f 
o
ve

r 
71

%
, 

in
d

ic
at

in
g
 t
h
at

 a
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
vi

si
to

rs
 

a
re

 li
ke

ly
 t
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d

 a
 v

is
it 

to
 B

at
h
 t
o
 o

th
e
rs

. 

T
h
e
 R

o
m

a
n
 B

at
h
s 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 o
ve

r 
o
n
e
 m

ill
io

n
  

vi
si

to
rs

 in
 2

0
14

/1
5
. 

It 
a
g
a
in

 w
o
n
 t
h
e
 B

e
s
t 

L
a
rg

e
 V

is
it
o

r 
A

tt
ra

c
ti
o

n
 

G
o

ld
 A

w
a
rd

 in
 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 W
e
st

 T
o
u
ris

m
 

E
xc

e
lle

n
c
e
 A

w
a
rd

s,
 a

n
d

 is
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
p

 t
h

re
e

 
vi

si
to

r 
at

tr
a
c
tio

n
s 

in
 t
h
e
 U

K
 T

rip
 A

d
vi

so
r 

Tr
av

e
lle

rs
’ 
 

C
h
o
ic

e
 A

w
a
rd

s.

Page 75



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

12

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

13

H
o
u
si

n
g
 

H
o
u
si

n
g
 –

 K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s

P
la

n
n
in

g
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 –

 K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s 
(2

01
4
/1

5
)

H
o
u
si

n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

c
o
n
tin

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 in

 h
ig

h
 d

e
m

a
n
d
. 

W
e
 a

re
 e

n
su

rin
g
 lo

c
a
l c

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

a
re

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 
w

ith
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e
d

 h
o
u
si

n
g
 m

a
rk

et
 t
h
at

 p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

a
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 q

u
a
lit

y 
h
o
u
si

n
g
 o

p
tio

n
s,

 in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

af
fo

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 in

 s
u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 c

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

w
h
e
re

 p
e
o
p

le
 c

h
o
o
se

 t
o
 r

e
si

d
e.

 

W
e
 h

av
e
 m

a
d

e
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 in

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

vi
si

o
n
 o

f 
af

fo
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
si

n
g
, 
w

ith
 o

ve
r 

7
7
0

  
n
ew

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 la

st
  

fo
u
r 

ye
a
rs

, 
2
6

%
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

et
. 

O
ve

r 
4
0

0
 h

o
u
si

n
g
 u

n
its

 w
e
re

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 in

 B
at

h
 

W
e
st

e
rn

 R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 w

ith
 2

,2
81

 c
o
n
se

n
te

d
 o

ve
ra

ll 
a
n
d

 u
til

is
in

g
 H

o
m

e
s 

a
n
d

 C
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

A
g
e
n
c
y 

fu
n
d

in
g
 f
o
r 

af
fo

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u
si

n
g
. 

C
a
rr

sw
o
o
d

 V
ie

w
, 
B

at
h’

s 
fir

st
 o

ffi
c
ia

l G
yp

sy
 &

 
Tr

av
e
lle

r 
si

te
 lo

c
at

e
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
w

e
r 

B
ris

to
l R

o
a
d
, 

is
 la

rg
e
ly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 1

3
 p

itc
h
e
s 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

a
llo

c
at

e
d

 t
o
 f
a
m

ili
e
s.

 
 7
7
1
 n

ew
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 s

in
c
e
 A

p
ril

 2
0
11

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

ex
c
e
e
d

e
d

 o
u
r 

4
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

et
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

 
6
10

 n
ew

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s 

b
y 

2
0
15

.

 
 7
7
 e

m
p
ty

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s 

w
e
re

 r
e
c
o
ve

re
d

 
tin

 2
0
14

/1
5
 a

g
a
in

st
 a

 t
a
rg

et
 o

f 
5
0
.

 
 O

n
ly

 1
3
 h

o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 a

t 
th

e 
e
n
d
 o

f M
a
rc

h
 2

01
5
.

 
 O

ve
r 

4
0
.0

%
 o

f 
a
ll 

h
o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
d

vi
c
e
 

a
n
d

 p
re

ve
n
tio

n
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
e
s 

w
e
re

 
su

c
c
e
ss

fu
l i

n
 p

re
ve

n
tin

g
 o

r 
re

lie
vi

n
g

 
h
o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 (
ta

rg
et

 3
3
.3

%
 o

r 
a
b

o
ve

).

 
 9
4
.8

7
%

 o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s 

w
e
re

 m
a
d

e
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 3
3
 d

ay
s,

 
(t
a
rg

et
 a

t 
le

a
st

 9
0
.0

%
).

 
 9

0
.9

%
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 le

ft
 

th
e
ir 

lo
d

g
in

g
 p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 m
o
ve

d
 o

n
 

in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
tly

 in
 a

 p
la

n
n
e
d

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

(t
a
rg

et
 a

t 
le

a
st

 8
0

%
).

 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
ith

 lo
c
a
l h

o
u
se

 p
ric

e
s 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 d

o
u
b

le
 t
h
e
 n

at
io

n
a
l a

ve
ra

g
e,

 
af

fo
rd

a
b

ili
ty

 is
 a

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
is

su
e,

 c
re

at
in

g
 

p
ric

e
 h

ik
e
s 

in
 t
h
e
 r

e
n
ta

l m
a
rk

et
 a

n
d

 
a
d

d
iti

o
n
a
l p

re
ss

u
re

 o
n
 s

o
c
ia

l  
h
o
u
si

n
g
 d

e
m

a
n
d
. 

 
 7
3
.2

4
%

 o
f 
m

a
jo

r 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n
s 

d
et

e
rm

in
e
d

 w
ith

in
 1

3
 w

e
e
ks

 (
ta

rg
et

 5
0

%
  

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r)
.

 
 74

.4
4
%

 o
f 
m

in
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n
s 

d
et

e
rm

in
e
d

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
e
e
ks

 (
ta

rg
et

 6
5
%

  
o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r)
.

 
 8
0
.1

3
%

 o
f 
o
th

e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n
s 

d
et

e
rm

in
e
d

 w
ith

in
 8

 w
e
e
ks

 (
ta

rg
et

 8
0

%
  

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r)
.

 
 1
0

0
%

 o
f 
c
o
u
n
ty

 m
at

te
r 

a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

d
et

e
rm

in
e
d

 w
ith

in
 1

3
 w

e
e
ks

 (
ta

rg
et

 4
0
.0

%
  

o
r 

h
ig

h
e
r)
.

 
 9
2

.3
6
%

 o
f 
b

u
ild

in
g
 r

e
g
u
la

tio
n
 a

p
p

lic
at

io
n
s 

d
e
a
lt 

w
ith

 w
ith

in
 3

 w
e
e
ks

 o
f 
in

iti
a
l s

u
b

m
is

si
o
n
 

(k
ey

 in
d

ic
at

o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

.

 
 3
2

.4
%

 o
f 
p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p

e
a
ls

 a
llo

w
e
d

 
(t
a
rg

et
 n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 3

5
.0

%
).

 
 9

9
.2

5
%

 c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

sa
tis

fa
c
tio

n
 

(c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

fe
e
d

b
a
c
k 

so
u
g
h
t 
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

tio
n
 o

f 
 

ev
e
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t)
.

O
u
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
t 
is

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p

 fi
ve

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 in
 t
h
e
 

U
K

, 
in

 t
e
rm

s 
o
f 
d

e
a
lin

g
 w

ith
 t
h
e
 la

rg
e
st

 v
o
lu

m
e
s 

 
o
f 
m

a
jo

r 
a
p

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

m
o
st

 q
u
ic

kl
y5

. 

P
re

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 A

p
p

ro
va

ls
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
tiv

e
ly

 t
a
ke

n
 

u
p

 b
y 

th
e
 d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

d
u
st

ry
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rly
 f
o
r 

la
rg

e
 s

c
a
le

 c
o
m

p
le

x 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 w

ith
 3

3
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d

 f
o
r 

2
0
14

/1
5
. 

O
u
r 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e 

w
o
n
 a

 n
at

io
n
al

 R
o
ya

l T
o
w

n
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 In

st
itu

te
 a

w
a
rd

 fo
r 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 E

xc
e
lle

n
ce

 
2
01

5
: 
E

xc
e
lle

n
ce

 in
 D

e
ci

si
o
n
-m

a
ki

n
g
. 
T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
p
ic

ke
d
 u

p
 t
h
e 

aw
a
rd

 fo
r 
th

e 
G

re
e
n
 P

a
rk

 H
o
u
se

 
p
ro

je
ct

 in
 B

at
h,

 t
h
e 

re
d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f a

 s
ite

 fo
r 
a
 

4
61

 b
e
d
 s

tu
d
e
n
t 
ac

co
m

m
o
d
at

io
n
 b

lo
ck

 a
n
d
 c

af
é.

 
T
h
is

 c
o
m

p
le

x 
m

aj
o
r 
a
p
p
lic

at
io

n
 w

as
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 in

 
le

ss
 t
h
a
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
ks

 w
ith

 a
 le

g
al

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
la

ce
 

a
n
d
 a

ll 
p
re

-c
o
m

m
e
n
ce

m
e
n
t 
co

n
d
iti

o
n
s 

re
so

lv
e
d
.

5
 T

h
e
 2

0
14

 A
n
n
u
a
l P

la
n
n
in

g
 S

u
rv

e
y 

w
a
s 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

 b
y 

G
L
 H

e
a
rn

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 B

ri
tis

h
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y 
F
e
d

e
ra

tio
n
 a

n
d

 in
vo

lv
e
d

 2
5
2
 L

o
c
a
l P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

u
th

o
ri
tie

s,
 a

p
p

lic
a
n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
ir
 

a
d

vi
so

rs
, 
a
n
d

 a
n
a
ly

se
d

 o
ve

r 
4
,0

0
0
 in

d
iv

id
u
a
l a

p
p

lic
a
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o

d
 A

p
ri
l 2

0
1
3
 t
o
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
14

; 
it 

is
 t

h
o

u
g

h
t 
to

 b
e
 t

h
e
 la

rg
e
st

 in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 
a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
  

p
la

n
n
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
 e

ve
r 

u
n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
.

Page 76



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

15

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

14

G
re

e
n
e
r 

Fu
tu

re
 

E
n
er

g
y 

E
ffi

ci
en

cy
 –

 K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s

8
3
%

 o
f 
re

si
d

e
n
ts

 h
av

e
 a

lre
a
d

y 
a
c
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

th
e
ir 

e
n
e
rg

y 
u
se

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s 

a
 w

ill
in

g
n
e
ss

 t
o

 
a
c
t 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

(2
0

0
9
 V

o
ic

e
b

o
x 

S
u
rv

ey
)

1
0

%
 r

e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

’ 
c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

a
g
a
in

st
 t
h
e
 2

0
12

/1
3
 b

a
se

lin
e.

 

3
1
%

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

‘in
-w

o
rk

’ 
c
a
r 

m
ile

s 
a
c
h
ie

ve
d

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
10

, 
sa

vi
n
g
 £

2
0

0
k.

C
o
u
n
ci

l g
ra

n
ts

 fo
r 
so

lid
 w

al
l i

n
su

la
tio

n
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

m
e
as

u
re

s 
h
av

e 
b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

ve
d
 fo

r 
24

 h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

s,
 

a 
n
u
m

b
e
r 
w

e 
h
o
p
e
d
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e 

h
ig

h
e
r 
h
o
w

ev
e
r 
th

e
 

st
a
rt

 o
f o

u
r 
e
n
e
rg

y 
sa

vi
n
g
s 

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
ct

 
w

as
 d

e
la

ye
d
 s

o
 w

e 
a
re

 o
n
ly

 ju
st

 b
e
g
in

n
in

g
 t
o

 
d
e
liv

e
r 
h
o
m

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

. 
T
h
e 

ta
rg

et
 w

e 
se

t 
fo

r 
2
01

4
/1

5
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
ve

d
 t
o
 n

ex
t 
ye

a
r 
a
n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
p
p
lic

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 
th

e 
£
70

0
,0

0
0
 fu

n
d
in

g
 p

o
t 
w

ill 
b
e
 

ac
ce

p
te

d
 in

 2
01

5
/1

6
. 

O
ve

r 
3
5
0
 h

o
u
se

h
o
ld

s 
h
av

e 
ex

p
re

ss
e
d
 a

n
 in

te
re

st
 

in
 e

n
e
rg

y 
sa

vi
n
g
 m

e
as

u
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e
ir 

h
o
m

e
s 

a
n
d

 
re

si
d
e
n
ts

 c
a
n
 n

o
w

 g
et

 fr
e
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 a

d
vi

ce
 

fr
o
m

 o
u
r 
n
ew

 E
n
e
rg

y
 a

t 
H

o
m

e
 A

d
vi

ce
 S

e
rv

ic
e.

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

’s
 n

ew
 C

iv
ic

 C
e
n
tr
e 

is
 o

n
e 

o
f t

h
e 

m
o
st

 
e
n
e
rg

y-
ef

fic
ie

n
t 
b
u
ild

in
g
s 

in
 t
h
e 

co
u
n
tr

y 
w

ith
 7

5
0

 
so

la
r 
p
a
n
e
ls

, 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 t
o
 p

o
w

e
r 
al

m
o
st

 7
0
 h

o
m

e
s.

 
T
h
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 h
as

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f a

w
a
rd

s 
in

cl
u
d
in

g
: 
R

o
ya

l I
n
st

itu
te

 o
f B

rit
is

h
 A

rc
h
ite

ct
s’

 (
R

IB
A

) 
S

o
u
th

 W
e
st

 A
w

a
rd

; 
S

o
u
th

 W
e
st

 S
u
st

ai
n
a
b
ilit

y 
A

w
a
rd

; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e 

B
rit

is
h
 C

o
u
n
ci

l f
o
r 
O

ffi
ce

s 
S

o
u
th

 
W

e
st

 a
n
d
 S

o
u
th

 W
al

e
s 

A
w

a
rd

 fo
r 
B

e
st

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

W
o
rk

p
la

ce
. 
In

 a
d
d
iti

o
n,

 t
h
e 

b
u
ild

in
g
’s

 IT
 h

as
 b

e
e
n
 

h
ig

h
ly

 c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e 
R

o
ya

l I
n
st

itu
te

  
o
f C

h
a
rt

e
re

d
 S

u
rv

ey
o
rs

 S
o
u
th

 W
e
st

 A
w

a
rd

s.

B
a
th

 &
 W

e
s
t 

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 E

n
e
rg

y
 in

st
al

le
d
 a

 
2.

3
M

W
 s

o
la

r 
a
rr

ay
 a

t 
W

ilm
in

g
to

n
 F

a
rm

 (a
ss

is
te

d
 b

y 
a 

£
5
0
0
k 

P
o
lic

y 
L
o
a
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l) 
a
n
d
 a

 3
8
K

W
 

a
rr

ay
 o

n
 t
h
e 

O
n
e 

S
to

p
 S

h
o
p
 b

u
ild

in
g
 in

 M
a
n
ve

rs
 

S
tr
e
et

. 
T
h
e
se

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
a
re

 a
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

ad
d
iti

o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e 

11
M

W
 t
o
ta

l r
e
n
ew

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y 
al

re
ad

y 
in

st
al

le
d
 in

 t
h
e 

d
is

tr
ic

t.

O
ve

r 
3
0
0
 it

em
s 

o
f f

u
rn

itu
re

 fr
o
m

 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 fo

rm
er

 
o
ffi

ce
s 

in
 K

ey
n
sh

am
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 o

ffe
re

d
 fo

r 
re

u
se

 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e 

‘W
A

R
P

it’
 p

ro
je

ct
 to

 s
ta

ff,
 s

ch
o
o
ls

 a
n
d

 
co

m
m

u
n
ity

 g
ro

u
p
s,

 e
n
ab

lin
g
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l t
o
 a

vo
id

 
21

 to
n
n
es

 o
f w

as
te

 g
o
in

g
 to

 la
n
d
fil

l, 
6
4
 to

n
n
es

 o
f 

C
O

2
 b

ei
n
g
 e

m
itt

ed
 a

n
d
 t
h
e 

co
st

 o
f b

u
yi

n
g
 t
h
is

 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t, 
w

ith
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

ed
 v

al
u
e 

o
f £

11
3
k.

 L
ig

ht
in

g
 

an
d
 h

ea
tin

g
 c

o
nt

ra
ct

s 
u
n
d
er

 t
h
e 

S
c
h
o

o
l’s

 C
a
rb

o
n

 
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 h

av
e 

d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

ro
u
n
d
 8

0
 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ffi
c
ie

n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
o
rt

h
 £

15
0
k.

T
h
e
 t
h
ird

 B
a
th

 G
re

e
n

 H
o

m
e
s
 o

p
e
n
 h

o
m

e
s 

ev
e
n
t 
sa

w
 o

ve
r 

7
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 v
is

it 
1
8
 e

c
o

-h
o

m
e
s
 a

c
ro

ss
 

th
e
 c

ity
. 
T
h
e
 B

&
N

E
S

 E
n

e
rg

y
 a

t 
H

o
m

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

m
o
te

s 
e
n
e
rg

y 
ef

fic
ie

n
c
y,

 b
e
tt

e
r 

h
e
at

in
g
 a

n
d

 
re

n
ew

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y 
a
c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
c
h
ie

ve
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b

le
 w

a
rm

th
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 f
u
e
l p

o
ve

rt
y.

 

A
 F

o
c
u
s 

o
n
 P

re
ve

n
tio

n

O
ld

er
 a

n
d
 V

u
ln

er
ab

le
 P

eo
p
le

H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 in

 B
at

h
 &

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
 is

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 

g
o
o
d
, 
w

ith
 8

4
%

 o
f 
re

si
d

e
n
ts

 r
e
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 
lif

e
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
, 

o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 in
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y.
 

L
if
e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 a

t 
b

ir
th

 is
 8

0
.9

 f
o
r 

m
e
n
 a

n
d

 8
4
.5

 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
, 

h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l (

8
0
.1

 m
a
le

s
/8

3
.8

 f
e
m

a
le

s)
 a

n
d

 n
at

io
n
a
l  

(7
9
.4

 m
a
le

s
/8

3
.1

 f
e
m

a
le

s)
 a

ve
ra

g
e
s 

(d
at

a
 f
o
r 

2
0
11

 t
o
 2

0
13

).

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
 e

x
p

e
c
ta

n
c
y
 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 m
a
le

s 
(6

6
.0

 y
e
a
rs

) a
n
d

 f
e
m

a
le

s 
(6

8
.5

 y
e
a
rs

) i
s 

h
ig

h
e
r 

 
th

a
n
 n

at
io

n
a
l l

ev
e
ls

 (
6
3
.3

 m
a
le

s 
a
n
d

 6
3
.9

 f
e
m

a
le

s)
,  

a
n
d

 r
e
g
io

n
a
l l

ev
e
ls

 f
o
r 

(6
5
.3

 f
o
r 

m
a
le

s 
a
n
d

 6
5
.5

  
fo

r 
fe

m
a
le

s)
.

H
o

w
e
v
e
r,
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
va

ria
tio

n
s 

in
 li

fe
 e

xp
e
c
ta

n
c
y 

ex
is

t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 s

o
c
io

-e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 in

e
q

u
a
lit

y;
 f
o
r 

so
m

e
o
n
e
 li

vi
n
g
 in

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 d
e
p

riv
e
d

 a
re

a
 o

f 
B

&
N

E
S

, 
th

ey
 c

a
n
 e

xp
e
c
t 
to

 d
ie

 a
t 
a
 y

o
u
n
g
e
r 

a
g
e
 

th
a
n
 s

o
m

e
o
n
e
 in

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 a
ffl

u
e
n
t 
a
re

a
 o

f 
B

&
N

E
S

 
(8

.6
 y

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

m
e
n
 a

n
d

 4
.7

 y
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
)6 .

6
6
 

6
8
.5

 
O

u
r 

J
o

in
t 

H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
fr
e
sh

e
d

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t7
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
a
lth

 
a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s 
o
f 
p

e
o
p

le
 in

 B
at

h
 a

n
d

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o
w

s 
g
o
o
d

 h
e
a
lth

8
 is

 u
n
e
q

u
a
lly

 
sh

a
re

d
 a

n
d

 in
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s 

ex
is

t 
b

et
w

e
e
n
 d

iff
e
re

n
t 
g
e
o
g
ra

p
h
ic

a
l a

re
a
s,

 c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s,

 s
o
c
ia

l a
n
d

 e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

g
ro

u
p

s.
 F

o
r 

in
st

a
n
c
e,

 p
e
o
p

le
 li

vi
n
g
 in

 T
w

e
rt

o
n
 h

av
e
 a

 lo
w

e
r 

lif
e
 e

xp
e
c
ta

n
c
y 

th
a
n
 t
h
o
se

 w
h
o
 li

ve
 ju

st
 fi

ve
 

b
u
s 

st
o
p

s 
aw

ay
. 

T
h
e
 r

ev
is

e
d

 s
tr

at
e
g
y 

se
ts

 o
u
t 
o
u
r 

vi
si

o
n
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 h

e
a
lth

 in
e
q

u
a
lit

y 
a
n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

 h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 b

y:

1
H

e
lp

in
g
 p

e
o
p

le
  

to
 s

ta
y 

h
e
a
lth

y
Im

p
ro

vi
n
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
 

o
f 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 li
ve

s
2

C
re

at
in

g
 f
a
ire

r 
 

lif
e
 c

h
a
n
c
e
s

3

T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l h
as

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 a

n
 O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

A
ch

ie
ve

m
e
n
t 
aw

a
rd

 fo
r 
its

 w
o
rk

 in
  

e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l s
u
st

ai
n
a
b
ilit

y 
in

 t
h
e 

W
e
st

  
o
f E

n
g
la

n
d
 C

a
rb

o
n
 C

h
al

le
n
g
e 

(W
E

C
C

)  
A

w
a
rd

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
b
ro

ad
 r
a
n
g
e 

o
f e

n
e
rg

y 
 

ef
fic

ie
n
cy

 a
n
d
 c

a
rb

o
n
 r
e
d
u
ct

io
n
 a

ct
iv

iti
e
s 

ta
ki

n
g
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

in
 c

o
u
n
ci

l b
u
ild

in
g
s 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

co
m

m
u
n
ity

 a
n
d
 a

 S
ilv

e
r 
S

ta
r 
ac

cr
e
d
ita

tio
n
 

fo
r 
o
u
r 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

n
 in

 t
h
e 

W
e
st

 o
f 

E
n
g
la

n
d
 B

u
si

n
e
ss

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
n
 A

w
a
rd

s.

6
F
ig

u
re

s 
b

a
se

d
 o

n
 li

fe
 e

xp
e
c
ta

n
c
y 

a
t 
b

ir
th

 f
o

r 
m

e
n
 a

n
d

 w
o

m
e
n
 in

 t
h
e
 lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o

r 
2
0
11

-2
0
1
3
, 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lth

 E
n
g

la
n
d

.

7
 T

h
e
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d

s 
A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
t 
(J

S
N

A
) i

s 
a
 s

in
g

le
 p

o
rt

a
l f

o
r 

fa
c
ts

, 
fig

u
re

s 
a
n
d

 in
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
 a

b
o

u
t 
o

u
r 

lo
c
a
l a

re
a
, 
its

 c
o

m
m

u
n
iti

e
s 

a
n
d

 p
o

p
u
la

tio
n
, 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 

u
se

d
 b

y 
a
n
yo

n
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
s 

a
n
 in

te
re

st
 in

 o
r 

m
a
ke

s 
d

e
c
is

io
n
s 

a
b

o
u
t 
B

a
th

 a
n
d

 N
o

rt
h
 E

a
st

 S
o

m
e
rs

e
t.

8
 T

h
e
 W

o
rl
d

 H
e
a
lth

 O
rg

a
n
is

a
tio

n
 d

e
fin

e
s 

h
e
a
lth

 a
s 

“a
 s

ta
te

 o
f 
c
o

m
p

le
te

 p
h
ys

ic
a
l, 

m
e
n
ta

l a
n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l w
e
llb

e
in

g
”.

 P
e
o

p
le

 w
ith

 g
o

o
d

 h
e
a
lth

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t
o
 h

a
ve

 c
o

n
tr

o
l o

f 
th

e
ir 

liv
e
s,

 

liv
e
 li

fe
 t
o
 t

h
e
 f
u
ll 

a
n
d

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 in
 t

h
e
ir 

c
o

m
m

u
n
iti

e
s.

Page 77



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

16

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

17

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
-o

ri
e
n

ta
te

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d

 lo
c
a
l 

d
o

m
ic

ili
a
ry

 c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ev
e
lo

p
e
d

 
to

 c
o
m

b
at

 lo
n
e
lin

e
ss

 a
n
d

 is
o
la

tio
n
 t
o
 in

c
re

a
se

 
th

e
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
si

lie
n
c
e
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s,

 a
n
d

 in
 t
h
e
 lo

n
g
e
r-

te
rm

 r
e
d

u
c
e
  

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
m

e
n
ta

l i
ll-

h
e
a
lth

. 

A
s 

a
n
 e

xa
m

p
le

, 
o
u
r 

p
ilo

t 
R

u
ra

l S
u
p

p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 w

e
ll 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
N

u
rs

e
s,

  
w

h
o
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 d

o
m

ic
ili
a
ry

 
c
a
re

 a
g
e
n
c
y 

d
e
liv

e
rin

g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e.

 

W
o
rk

 is
 n

o
w

 u
n
d

e
rw

ay
 t
o
 in

c
re

a
se

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p

ro
vi

d
e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
et

h
e
r 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

fo
r 

ex
a
m

p
le

, 
vi

lla
g
e
 a

g
e
n
ts

, 
lo

c
a
l t

ra
n
sp

o
rt

 
c
o
m

p
a
n
ie

s 
w

h
o
 c

o
u
ld

 h
e
lp

 o
ve

rc
o
m

e
 s

o
m

e
  

o
f 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s 

ex
p

e
rie

n
c
e
d

 in
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

in
 r

u
ra

l a
re

a
s.

 

O
u
r 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 C

o
lle

g
e

9
 o

p
e
n
e
d

 in
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 
o
ff
e
rin

g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
rs

e
s 

a
ro

u
n
d

 e
a
rly

 
in

te
rv

e
n
tio

n
 a

n
d

 s
e
lf-

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 m

e
n
ta

l h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 
a
 n

ew
 e

xp
a
n
d

e
d

 S
o

c
ia

l 
P

re
s
c
ri

b
in

g
1
0
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

o
p

e
n
e
d

 in
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 m
e
n
ta

l w
e
llb

e
in

g
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 
in

 K
ey

n
sh

a
m

.

S
o
c
ia

l S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
re

 in
 h

ig
h
 d

e
m

a
n
d
, 
p

ro
c
e
ss

in
g

 
o
ve

r 
5
,0

0
0
 r

e
q

u
e
st

s 
fo

r 
h
e
lp

 in
 t
h
e
 la

st
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s.
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

se
rs

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

rs
 h

av
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
lif

e
 a

n
d

 h
ig

h
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 le

ve
ls

 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

at
io

n
a
l a

ve
ra

g
e.

W
e
 h

av
e
 in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 a
 n

ew
 A

d
u
lt 

S
o
c
ia

l C
a
re

 
se

rv
ic

e
 m

o
d

e
l t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 in

te
g
ra

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t
h
at

 
w

ill
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d

 s
af

e
g
u
a
rd

 o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 
p

e
o
p

le
 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 in
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 
b
y 

p
la

c
in

g
 g

re
at

e
r 

e
m

p
h
a
si

s 
o
n
 p

re
ve

n
tio

n
 a

n
d

 e
a
rly

 in
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
. 

F
o
r 

ex
a
m

p
le

, 
C

u
ro

’s
 I
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

t 
L

iv
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
c
a
n
 m

a
ke

 t
h
e
 d

iff
e
re

n
c
e
 b

et
w

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
o
n
e
 

st
ay

in
g
 in

 t
h
e
ir 

o
w

n
 h

o
m

e
 a

n
d

 h
av

in
g
 t
o
 g

o
 in

to
 

re
si

d
e
n
tia

l c
a
re

, 
a
n
d

 w
o
n
 t
h
e
 o

ve
ra

ll 
p

riz
e
 a

t 
th

e
 

N
at

io
n
a
l H

o
u
si

n
g
 F

e
d

e
ra

tio
n’

s 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

  
Im

p
a
c
t 
A

w
a
rd

s.

A
 P

rim
a
ry

 C
a
re

 E
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 

S
u
p

p
o
rt

 W
o
rk

e
r 

is
 a

ls
o
 in

 p
la

c
e
 a

s 
w

e
 in

iti
at

e
 t
a
lk

s 
a
b

o
u
t 
a
n
 

in
te

g
ra

te
d

 m
o
d

e
l o

f 
e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

ith
 m

e
n
ta

l h
e
a
lth

 n
e
e
d

s 
a
n
d

 t
h
o
se

 w
ith

 
a
 le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d

/o
r 

a
u
tis

m
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

d
e
si

g
n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 c
a
re

 
se

rv
ic

e
s.

 T
h
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
Y
o

u
r 

C
a
re

, 
Y
o

u
r 

W
a
y
 

w
a
s 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d

 jo
in

tly
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 B
&

N
E

S
 

C
lin

ic
a
l C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

 in
 F

e
b

ru
a
ry

.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

o
ve

ra
ll 

fr
a
m

ew
o
rk

 o
f 
c
o
n
tr

o
l f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 w

a
s 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 a
s 

e
x
c
e
lle

n
t.

 L
o
c
a
l 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

a
re

 r
e
fle

c
te

d
 in

 n
ew

 P
o
lic

in
g

 
P

la
n
s 

w
ith

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 S
af

et
y 

fu
n
d

in
g
 in

ve
st

in
g

 
in

 a
 ‘
R

ef
e
rr

a
l t

o
 Im

p
ro

ve
 S

af
et

y’
 G

P
 p

ro
je

c
t 
fo

r 
d

o
m

e
st

ic
 a

b
u
se

. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tly

 it
 is

 e
st

im
at

e
d

 t
h
at

 o
n
ly

 
1
 i
n

 5
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 a

b
u
se

 in
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s.

 
 3
,3

7
3
 c

lie
n
ts

 r
ef

e
rr

e
d

 t
o
 S

iro
n
a’

s 
H

e
a
lth

y 
L
ife

st
yl

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 
 5
1
.1

%
 o

f 
th

o
se

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 N

H
S

 
h
e
a
lth

 c
h
e
c
k 

to
o
k 

u
p

 t
h
e
ir 

h
e
a
lth

 c
h
e
c
k 

(t
a
rg

et
 5

0
.0

%
);
 h

e
a
lth

 c
h
e
c
ks

 h
av

e
 a

ls
o

 
b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y 

C
a
re

rs
’ 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 
A

c
tiv

at
o
rs

11
 s

u
p

p
le

m
e
n
tin

g
 t
h
o
se

 a
lre

a
d

y 
a
c
h
ie

ve
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e.

 
 7
6
.0

%
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 e

lig
ib

le
 f
o
r 

b
re

a
st

 
sc

re
e
n
in

g
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
re

e
n
e
d
.

 
 7
5
.8

%
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n
 e

lig
ib

le
 f
o
r 

c
e
rv

ic
a
l 

sc
re

e
n
in

g
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

c
re

e
n
e
d
.

 
 9
1
.6

%
 t
a
ke

 u
p

 r
at

e
 o

f 
M

M
R

 v
a
c
c
in

at
io

n
 

at
 a

g
e
 5

 (
ta

rg
et

 a
t 
le

a
st

 9
0
.0

%
).

 
 6

0
.0

%
 o

f 
n
ew

 m
u
m

s 
a
re

 b
re

a
st

 f
e
e
d

in
g
 6

 
to

 8
 w

e
e
ks

 a
ft
e
r 
b
irt

h
 (t

a
rg

et
 a

t 
le

as
t 
6
0
.0

%
).

 
 7
5
.0

%
 o

f 
se

c
o
n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l a

n
d

 8
3
.0

%
 

o
f 
p

rim
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l c

h
ild

re
n
 e

n
jo

y 
p

h
ys

ic
a
l 

a
c
tiv

ity
.

 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,
 a

p
p

ro
xi

m
at

e
ly

 5
6

%
 o

f 
a
d

u
lts

 a
re

 
o
b

e
se

 o
r 

o
ve

rw
e
ig

h
t 
c
o
st

in
g
 t
h
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
 

e
st

im
at

e
d

 £
4
9
 m

ill
io

n
 in

 2
0
15

.

 
8
7
%

 o
f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 a

re
 s

til
l a

t 
h
o
m

e
 9

1
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r 
d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 h

o
sp

ita
l.

 
2
 i
n

 3
 s

o
c
ia

l c
a
re

 u
se

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

e
lf-

d
ire

c
te

d
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 o
r 

d
ire

c
t 
p

ay
m

e
n
ts

.

 
 7
6
%

 o
f 
a
d

u
lts

 w
ith

 m
e
n
ta

l h
e
a
lth

 n
e
e
d

s 
a
re

 in
 s

et
tle

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
io

n
 

(in
c
re

a
se

 o
f 
16

%
 f
ro

m
 2

0
13

/1
4

) a
n
d

 1
2
%

 a
re

 in
 p

a
id

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
(n

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
).

 
 6
8
%

 o
f 
a
d

u
lts

 w
ith

 a
 le

a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 a
re

 in
 s

et
tle

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
io

n
 

(in
c
re

a
se

 o
f 
5
%

 f
ro

m
 2

0
13

/1
4

) a
n
d

 1
0

%
 a

re
 in

 p
a
id

 e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t 
(in

c
re

a
se

 o
f 
1%

).

 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 s

h
ift

 t
h
e
 e

m
p

h
a
si

s 
fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
vi

si
o
n
 o

f 
re

si
d

e
n
tia

l a
n
d

 n
u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 t
o
w

a
rd

s 
in

c
re

a
si

n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p

le
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 in
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 n
e
e
d

s 
 

to
 c

o
n
tin

u
e,

 t
h
e
 la

tt
e
r 

p
ro

ve
n
, 
in

 m
o
st

 in
st

a
n
c
e
s,

 t
o
 b

e
 a

 m
o
re

 c
o
st

 e
ff
e
c
tiv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 a

n
d

 m
o
re

 
b

e
n
e
fic

ia
l t

o
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 o
ve

ra
ll 

h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
.

A
d
u
lts

 H
ea

lth
 a

n
d
 S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e 

– 
K

ey
 F

ac
ts

 a
n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s

9
 T

h
e
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 C

o
lle

g
e
 is

 a
n
 e

xp
a
n
si

o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

o
tio

n
 o

f 
(m

e
n
ta

l h
e
a
lth

) R
e
c
o
ve

ry
 C

o
lle

g
e
s 

a
n
d

 s
e
e
k
s 

to
 s

h
ift

 c
a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
ys

 t
o
 p

re
ve

n
tio

n
, 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
, 
re

si
lie

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 

in
c
lu

si
o

n
 o

n
 a

 lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 b
a
si

s.

1
0

 S
o

c
ia

l p
re

sc
ri
b

in
g
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

a
 p

a
th

w
a
y 

to
 r

e
fe

r 
c
lie

n
ts

 t
o
 n

o
n
-c

lin
ic

a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 n
o

n
-m

e
d

ic
a
l i

ss
u
e
s 

th
a
t 
m

a
y 

b
e
 c

a
u
si

n
g
 o

r 
e
xa

c
e
rb

a
tin

g
 h

e
a
lth

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

su
c
h
 a

s 

d
e
b

t,
 p

o
o

r 
h
o

u
si

n
g
, 
m

e
n
ta

l i
ll 

h
e
a
lth

, 
so

c
ia

l i
so

la
tio

n
, 
lin

k
in

g
 c

lie
n
ts

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
ro

m
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e
ir 

w
e
llb

e
in

g
, 
to

 e
n
c
o

u
ra

g
e
 s

o
c
ia

l i
n
c
lu

si
o

n
, 
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
e
lf-

c
a
re

 w
h
e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
n
d

 t
o
 b

u
ild

 r
e
si

lie
n
c
e
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 in

d
iv

id
u
a
l.

11
 H

e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 a

ss
e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
c
tio

n
 p

la
n
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

a
re

rs
.

12
 E

xe
rc

is
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 li

fe
-e

xp
e
c
ta

n
c
y 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
iti

e
s 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 w

ith
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
h
e
a
lth

-r
is

k 
fa

c
to

rs
. 

1
3

 A
n
yo

n
e
 a

g
e
d

 o
ve

r 
1
6
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o
 s

lim
m

in
g
 o

n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l b

y 
th

e
ir 

G
P

 o
r 

a
 h

e
a
lth

 o
r 

so
c
ia

l c
a
re

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l. 

F
re

e
 v

o
u
c
h
e
rs

 a
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t
o
 e

ith
e
r 

sl
im

m
in

g
 w

o
rl
d

 o
r 

w
e
ig

h
t 

w
a
tc

h
e
rs

 f
o

r 
a
 1

2
 w

e
e
k 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

ith
 t

h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
a
 5

%
-1

0
%

 w
e
ig

h
t 
lo

ss
. 
L
ife

st
yl

e
 a

d
vi

so
rs

 a
re

 o
ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 c

lie
n
ts

 w
ith

 a
 B

M
I o

f 
>

2
5
 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 lo

se
 w

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d

 

le
a
rn

 h
o
w

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 a
 h

e
a
lth

ie
r 

w
e
ig

h
t.

14
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

ve
 t

h
e
 in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

u
tli

n
e
d

 in
 t

h
e
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lth

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
E

n
g

la
n
d

, 
2
0
1
3

-2
0
1
6
.

15
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t 
a
t 
O

d
d

 D
o
w

n
 P

la
yi

n
g
 F

ie
ld

s 
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
o
ve

r 
£

3
m

 in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
b

y 
B

a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o

m
e
rs

e
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il,

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n
g

la
n
d

, 
B

ri
tis

h
 C

yc
lin

g
, 
T

h
e
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 a
n
d

 W
a
le

s 

C
ri
c
ke

t 
B

o
a
rd

, 
R

u
g

b
y 

F
o

o
tb

a
ll 

U
n
io

n
, 
th

e
 P

re
m

ie
r 

L
e
a
g

u
e
 a

n
d

 T
h
e
 F

A
 F

a
c
ili

tie
s 

F
u
n
d

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 e
n
su

re
 a

 le
g

a
c
y 

fo
r 

th
e
 w

h
o

le
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

fo
r 

g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
s 

to
 c

o
m

e
.

A
c
tiv

e
 a

n
d

 H
e
a
lth

y 
L
ife

st
yl

e
s

A
ct

iv
e 

H
ea

lth
 –

 K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s 
(2

01
3
/1

4
 u

n
le

ss
 s

ta
te

d
)

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g
 h

e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 is

 c
e
n
tr

a
l t

o
 o

u
r 

F
it
 f

o
r 

L
if
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y,

 w
h
ic

h
 a

im
s 

to
 in

c
re

a
se

 t
h
e
 

le
ve

l o
f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n
d

 h
e
a
lth

y 
lif

e
st

yl
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s 

o
n
 o

ff
e
r 

fo
r 

a
ll 

B
&

N
E

S
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

. 
O

ve
r 

3
,0

0
0

 
c
lie

n
ts

 w
e
re

 r
ef

e
rr

e
d

 t
o
 S

iro
n
a’

s 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

if
e
s
ty

le
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (
H

L
S

) i
n
 2

0
13

/1
4
, 
n
e
a
rly

 t
w

o
 t
h
ird

s 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 f
e
m

a
le

, 
9
6

%
 w

e
re

 a
g
e
d

 4
4
 a

n
d

 
a
b

o
ve

, 
a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
in

g
 t

w
o
 fi

ft
h
s 

w
e
re

 id
e
n
tifi

e
d

 
a
s 

b
e
in

g
 in

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 d
e
p

riv
e
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 
B

&
N

E
S

. 
T
h
e
 H

L
S

 r
ef

e
rr

a
ls

 r
e
su

lte
d

 in
 6

,1
2
6
 in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 

se
rv

ic
e
 s

p
e
c
ifi

c
 r

ef
e
rr

a
ls

. 
F
o
r 

in
st

a
n
c
e
:

• 
 2

,3
0
5
 r

ef
e
rr

a
ls

 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

P
a
s
s
p

o
rt

 t
o

 H
e
a
lt
h

12
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e,
 w

ith
 a

n
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
o
m

p
le

te
rs

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

;

• 
 1,

8
3
3
 r

ef
e
rr

a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 S

to
p

 S
m

o
ki

n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
;

• 
 1,

5
0

6
 r

ef
e
rr

a
ls

 f
o
r 

W
e
ig

h
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t1

3
 

se
rv

ic
e
s;

 a
n
d

 

• 
 3
4
3
 r

ef
e
rr

a
ls

 f
o
r 

F
o
o
d

 a
n
d

 H
e
a
lth

 c
o
u
rs

e
s

A
n
 e

st
im

at
e
d
 6

,8
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
g
e
d
 1

8
 t
o
 6

4
 y

e
a
rs

 
a
re

 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 a

lc
o
h
o
l i

n
 B

at
h
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 E

as
t 

S
o
m

e
rs

et
; 
in

 2
01

3
/1

4
; 
o
n
ly

 6
.6

%
 o

f t
h
e
se

 w
e
re

 in
 

tr
e
at

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
al

co
h
o
l m

is
u
se

. 

W
ith

 a
lc

o
h
o
l t

h
e 

th
ird

 g
re

at
e
st

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ris
k 

to
 h

e
al

th
, 

(a
ft
e
r 
sm

o
ki

n
g
 a

n
d
 r
ai

se
d
 b

lo
o
d
 p

re
ss

u
re

), 
re

d
u
ci

n
g

 
al

co
h
o
l-r

e
la

te
d
 h

a
rm

 b
y 

e
n
co

u
ra

g
in

g
 a

 m
o
re

 
se

n
si

b
le

 d
rin

ki
n
g
 c

u
ltu

re
 w

ill 
h
e
lp

 u
s 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 
o
u
r 

st
at

u
to

ry
 d

u
ty

14
, 
w

h
ile

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s 
th

e 
vi

si
o
n
 in

 
o
u
r 
re

fr
e
sh

e
d
 A

lc
o

h
o

l 
H

a
rm

 R
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

fo
r 
“a

 c
u
ltu

ra
l e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 
w

h
e
re

 e
ve

ry
o
n
e 

c
a
n
 

h
av

e 
fu

n
 a

n
d
 e

n
jo

y 
th

e
m

se
lv

e
s 

sa
fe

ly
, 
w

ith
 o

r 
w

ith
o
u
t 
al

co
h
o
l”.

T
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
ft
e
r 

th
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 h

u
g
e
ly

 
p

o
p

u
la

r 
C

yc
le

 C
irc

u
it 

at
 O

d
d

 D
o
w

n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

se
e
n
 t
h
o
u
sa

n
d

s 
o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

ta
ke

 p
a
rt

 in
 c

yc
lin

g
 e

ve
n
ts

, 
c
o
n
st

ru
c
tio

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
ew

 3
G

 A
st

ro
 P

itc
h
, 
p

av
ili
o
n
, 
c
h
a
n
g
in

g
 r

o
o
m

s,
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 r
o
o
m

 a
n
d

 c
af

é
 a

t 
O

d
d

 D
o

w
n

 P
la

y
in

g
 

F
ie

ld
s

15
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

Page 78



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

18

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

19

O
ve

r 
1,

5
0

0
 p

e
o
p

le
 h

av
e
 t
a
ke

n
 p

a
rt

 in
 T

R
Y

 
A

c
ti
v
e

1
6
 a

c
tiv

iti
e
s 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

ta
rg

et
 w

a
rd

s 
su

c
h
 a

s 
O

d
d

 D
o
w

n
, 
Tw

e
rt

o
n
, 

S
o
u
th

d
o
w

n
, 
P

a
u
lto

n
 a

n
d

 K
ey

n
sh

a
m

. 
T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 a

b
o
ve

 t
a
rg

et
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 it

s 
fir

st
 y

e
a
r 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t 

ta
rg

et
.

D
u
rin

g
 2

01
4
/1

5
, 
o
u
r 
F
a
m

ily
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

17
 (
F
IS

) r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 1

1,
47

5
 e

n
q
u
iri

e
s 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 

p
u
b
lic

, 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
ct

in
g
 o

n
 b

e
h
al

f o
f f

a
m

ilie
s 

a
n
d

 
p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
al

s 
re

q
u
e
st

in
g
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 
th

e 
fa

m
ilie

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
. 
9
8
%

 o
f t

h
e
se

 
w

e
re

 v
ia

 e
m

ai
l o

r 
te

le
p
h
o
n
e,

 b
u
t 
so

m
e 

e
n
q
u
iri

e
s 

w
e
re

 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 
‘T

e
ll 

U
s 

O
n
ce

’ 
re

fe
rr

al
 

sy
st

e
m

 a
n
d
 d

u
rin

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 o
u
tr
e
ac

h
 e

ve
n
ts

 a
t 

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
C

e
n
tr
e
s 

a
n
d
 s

ch
o
o
ls

. 

S
p
e
ci

al
is

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

(fo
r 
fa

m
ilie

s 
w

h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
av

e 
a
 

re
g
u
la

r 
w

ag
e 

o
r 
in

co
m

e,
 o

r 
a
re

 s
tr

u
g
g
lin

g
 t
o
 m

a
ke

 
e
n
d
s 

m
e
et

) d
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

 t
o
ta

l o
f 4

0
4
 o

n
e 

to
 o

n
e
 

se
ss

io
n
s 

w
ith

 fa
m

ilie
s 

a
n
d
 t
h
e 

F
IS

 T
e
a
m

 v
is

ite
d
 o

ve
r 

10
0
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

at
io

n
s 

at
 m

e
et

in
g
s,

 e
ve

n
ts

 
a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 b
rie

fin
g
s 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h
e 

w
o
rk

 o
f t

h
e
 

se
rv

ic
e 

a
n
d
 it

s 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

, 
to

u
ch

in
g
 b

as
e 

w
ith

 o
ve

r 
1,

5
0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

.

T
h
e 

va
st

 m
aj

o
rit

y 
o
f c

u
st

o
m

er
s 

ar
e 

h
ap

p
y 

w
ith

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
th

ey
 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 fr

o
m

 F
IS

 w
ith

 8
4
%

 o
f 

re
sp

o
n
d
en

ts
 s

ta
tin

g
 w

e 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

n
sw

er
 a

ll 
o
f 

th
ei

r 
q
u
es

tio
n
s:

 t
h
ey

 te
ll 
u
s 

w
e 

ar
e 

q
u
ic

k 
to

 r
es

p
o
n
d
, 

w
e 

lis
te

n,
 w

e 
p
ro

vi
d
e 

a 
ve

ry
 h

ig
h
 le

ve
l o

f g
o
o
d

 
cu

st
o
m

er
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

n
d
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

el
l i
nf

o
rm

ed
. 
T
h
e 

FI
S

 
Te

am
 h

as
 n

o
t 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

n
e 

co
m

p
la

in
t 
th

is
 y

ea
r.

O
u
r 
F
IS

 o
n
lin

e 
p
re

se
n
ce

 g
o
e
s 

fr
o
m

 s
tr
e
n
g
th

 t
o

 
st

re
n
g
th

. 
In

 t
h
e 

la
st

 y
e
a
r 
o
u
r 
fa

m
ily

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 

d
ire

ct
o
ry

, 
1
 B

ig
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 li

st
s 

a
p
p
ro

xi
m

at
e
ly

 2
,5

0
0
 o

rg
a
n
is

at
io

n
s,

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d

 
ac

tiv
ity

 p
ro

vi
d
e
rs

 in
 t
h
e 

lo
c
al

 a
re

a,
 r
e
ce

iv
e
d
 3

24
,2

3
9

 
vi

si
ts

, 
w

h
ile

 o
u
r 
F
a
c
e
b

o
o

k
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t,
 li

n
ke

d
 d

ire
ct

ly
 

w
ith

 8
0
 o

rg
a
n
is

at
io

n
s 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s,

 h
ad

 o
ve

r 
27

,0
0
0
 v

is
its

 a
n
d
 R

a
in

b
o

w
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
18

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 

re
-l
au

n
ch

e
d
 in

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r, 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 6

,1
8
9
 v

is
its

. 

W
e
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

fu
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 o
u
r 

w
o
rk

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 

21
5
 f
a
m

ili
e
s 

w
e
 id

e
n
tifi

e
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

p
h
a
se

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

n
e
c
ti
n

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s

1
9
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

ev
e
n
 

m
o
n
th

s 
a
h
e
a
d

 o
f 
sc

h
e
d

u
le

, 
c
o
n
fir

m
in

g
 o

u
r 

lo
c
a
l 

in
iti

at
iv

e
 a

s 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
st

 p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 in

 t
h
e
 U

K
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s 

le
d

 t
o
 a

n
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 f
o
c
u
s 

o
n
 t
h
e
 im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

le
ss

n
e
ss

 a
n
d

 h
o
m

e
le

ss
n
e
ss

 a
s 

is
su

e
s 

th
at

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 p

o
o
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

S
p

e
c
ifi

c
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fr
o
m

 p
h
a
se

 o
n
e
 in

c
lu

d
e
:

 
 R

e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 u
n
a
u
th

o
ris

e
d

 s
c
h
o
o
l a

b
se

n
c
e,

 
ex

c
lu

si
o
n
s,

 a
n
ti-

so
c
ia

l b
e
h
av

io
u
r 

a
n
d

 c
rim

e
  

b
y 

m
in

o
rs

 f
o
r 

1
8
2
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 
 3
3
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 h
av

e
 m

o
ve

d
 o

ff
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 
b

e
n
e
fit

s 
a
n
d

 in
to

 c
o
n
tin

u
o
u
s 

e
m

p
lo

ym
e
n
t

W
e
 h

av
e
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 e

a
rly

 s
ta

rt
e
r 

fo
r 

p
h
a
se

 
tw

o
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e,
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 e

xp
a
n
d

e
d

  
to

 c
o
ve

r 
71

0
 f
a
m

ili
e
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 n

ex
t 
fiv

e
 y

e
a
rs

.

1
6
 Tr

y 
A

c
tiv

e
 w

ith
 B

a
th

 R
u
g

b
y 

F
o

u
n
d

a
tio

n
 u

se
s 

c
yc

lin
g
, 
ru

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
u
g

b
y 

/ 
o

u
t-

d
o

o
r 

fit
n
e
ss

 t
o
 g

e
t 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
tiv

e
 a

n
d

 h
e
a
lth

ie
r.

17
 T

h
e
 F

a
m

ily
 In

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s 

d
e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 in
 2

0
0
1
 t
o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 S
e
c
tio

n
 1

2
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

c
a
re

 A
c
t 
2
0

0
6

; 
to

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
, 
a
d

vi
c
e
 a

n
d

 a
ss

is
ta

n
c
e
 t
o
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d

 t
o

 

e
n
su

re
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d

 p
ro

sp
e
c
tiv

e
 p

a
re

n
ts

 c
a
n
 a

c
c
e
ss

 t
h
e
 f
u
ll 

ra
n
g

e
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 t

h
e
y 

m
a
y 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
ir 

c
h
ild

re
n
 p

h
ys

ic
a
lly

, 
e
m

o
tio

n
a
lly

 a
n
d

 s
o

c
ia

lly
.

1
8

 O
u
r 

lo
c
a
l o

n
lin

e
 s

e
a
rc

h
a
b

le
 o

ff
e
r 

p
ro

vi
d

e
s 

lo
ts

 o
f 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
o

rg
a
n
is

a
tio

n
s,

 a
c
tiv

iti
e
s 

a
n
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 0
-2

5
 y

e
a
rs

 w
ith

 s
p

e
c
ia

l e
d

u
-

c
a
tio

n
a
l n

e
e
d

s,
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 a
n
d

 t
h
o

se
 r

e
q

u
ir
in

g
 a

d
d

iti
o

n
a
l h

e
lp

.

1
9

 C
o

n
n
e
c
tin

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s 

w
a
s 

e
st

a
b

lis
h
e
d

 in
 A

p
ri
l 2

0
13

 a
s 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o
 t

h
e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’
s 

Tr
o

u
b

le
d

 F
a
m

ili
e
s 

In
iti

a
tiv

e
. 
It
’s

 c
o

re
 p

u
rp

o
se

 is
 t
o
 e

n
a
b

le
 f
a
m

ili
e
s 

w
ith

 

m
u
lti

p
le

 c
o

m
p

le
x 

n
e
e
d

s 
to

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

th
e
y 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 r

e
si

lie
n
c
e
, 
h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 w
e
llb

e
in

g
 w

ith
in

 t
h
e
ir 

c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y.

2
0

 S
H

IN
E

 (
S

e
lf 

H
e
lp

 In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n
c
e
 N

u
tr

iti
o

n
 a

n
d

 E
xe

rc
is

e
) i

s 
a
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 w
e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 f
o

r 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 1
0
 t
o
 1

7
 in

c
o

rp
o

ra
tin

g
 n

u
tr

iti
o

n
a
l k

n
o
w

le
d

g
e
, 

p
h
ys

ic
a
l a

c
tiv

it
y 

a
n
d

 b
e
h
a
vi

o
u
r 

c
h
a
n
g

e
. 
C

o
u
rs

e
s 

ru
n
 in

 B
a
th

, 
K

e
yn

sh
a
m

 a
n
d

 N
o

rt
o

n
 R

a
d

st
o

c
k
.

2
1 P

ro
je

c
t 
2
8
 s

e
e
k
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 h

o
lis

tic
 p

a
c
k
a
g

e
s 

o
f 
c
a
re

 t
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 in
 t

h
e
 B

&
N

E
S

 w
ith

 p
ro

b
le

m
a
tic

 s
u
b

st
a
n
c
e
 m

is
u
se

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e
d

s.

2
2
  5

2
.1

 p
e
rs

o
n
s 

u
n
d

e
r 

1
8
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 h

o
sp

ita
l d

u
e
 t
o
 a

lc
o

h
o

l-
sp

e
c
ifi

c
 c

o
n
d

iti
o

n
s,

 c
ru

d
e
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
0

0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

tio
n

; 
2
0
11

/1
2
 t
o
 2

0
1
3

/1
4

; 
th

is
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 1
8
 s

ta
ys

 p
e
r 

ye
a
r,
 

d
o
w

n
 f
ro

m
 2

3
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 p

e
ri
o

d
.

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
an

d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

eo
p
le

’s
 h

ea
lth

 a
t 
a 

g
la

n
ce

:

H
e
a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
s
 

g
e
n

e
ra

lly
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

b
u
t

1
 i
n

 4
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
g

e
d

 4
-5

 y
e
a
rs

 a
n

d
 1

 i
n

 3
 

a
g

e
d

 1
0

-1
1
 a

re
 o

v
e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

o
b

e
s
e

L
e
v
e
l 
o

f 
c
h

ild
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

 
b
u
t 

a
ro

u
n

d
 3

,4
0

0
 c

h
ild

re
n

 (
1
2

.0
%

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

u
n

d
e
r 

1
6
 y

e
a
rs

) 
a
re

 l
iv

in
g

 i
n

 p
o

v
e
rt

y

C
h

ild
re

n
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

  
c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

t 
a
 l
o

w
e
r 

ra
te

 t
h

a
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

b
u
t

in
p

a
ti
e
n

t 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
s
 b

e
c
a
u

s
e
 o

f 
 

s
e
lf
-h

a
rm

 a
re

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
  

E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

H
o

s
p

it
a
l 
a
d

m
is

s
io

n
 r

a
te

 f
o

r 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 
m

is
u

s
e
 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

e
 E

n
g

la
n

d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e

b
u
t

a
d

m
is

s
io

n
 r

a
te

 f
o

r 
a
lc

o
h
o

l 
s
p

e
c
ifi

c
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 i
s
 w

o
rs

e
 t

h
a
n
 E

n
g

la
n
d

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
m

e
a
su

re
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o

 
a
d

d
re

ss
 t
h
e
se

 h
e
a
lth

 c
o
n
c
e
rn

s,
 f
o
r 

in
st

a
n
c
e,

 t
h
e
 

S
H

IN
E

 w
e
ig

h
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

2
0
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
d

 t
o
 t
a
c
kl

e
 w

e
ig

h
t 
is

su
e
s 

 
in

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

g
e
d

 1
0
 t
o
 1

7
 y

e
a
rs

. 
16

.0
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 

in
 y

e
a
r 

6
 w

e
re

 c
la

ss
ifi

e
d

 a
s 

o
b

e
se

 in
 2

0
13

/1
4
, 
 

a
n
 in

c
re

a
se

 o
f 
1.

2
%

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
a
r. 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
5
 r

ef
e
rr

a
ls

 in
 t
h
e
 fi

rs
t 
ye

a
r 

o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e.
 A

n
d

 t
h
e
 fi

rs
t 
B

at
h
 &

 N
o
rt

h
 

E
a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
 L

o
c
a
l F

o
o
d

 S
tr

at
e
g
y 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

ev
e
lo

p
e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n

ew
 L

o
c
a
l F

o
o
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
n
ta

in
in

g
 a

c
tio

n
s 

d
e
si

g
n
e
d

 t
o

 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 c
h
ild

h
o
o
d

 o
b

e
si

ty
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 a
c
c
e
ss

 t
o
 h

e
a
lth

y 
fo

o
d
.

W
e
 h

av
e
 m

a
d

e
 g

o
o
d

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 in

 t
a
c
kl

in
g

 
su

b
st

a
n
c
e
 a

b
u
se

. 
P

ro
je

c
t 

2
8

2
1
 h

a
s 

a
c
h
ie

ve
d

 
ve

ry
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

fu
l o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

w
ith

 9
4
%

 o
f 
yo

u
n
g

 
p

e
o
p

le
 le

av
in

g
 t
re

at
m

e
n
t 
d

ru
g
 f
re

e
 o

r 
a
s 

a
n
 

o
c
c
a
si

o
n
a
l u

se
r 

(n
at

io
n
a
l fi

g
u
re

 7
9

%
) a

n
d

 w
e
 h

av
e
 

c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
d

 a
 n

ew
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ith
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
2
8
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 t
h
at

 w
ill
 o

ff
e
r 

c
o
u
n
se

lli
n
g

 
a
n
d

 in
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
 f
o
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 c

h
a
rg

e
d

 
w

ith
 d

ru
g
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 c

h
a
rg

in
g
 t
h
e
m

. 

F
e
e
d

b
a
c
k 

fr
o
m

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 u

si
n
g
 t
re

at
m

e
n
t 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

is
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
tly

 p
o
si

tiv
e
 a

n
d

 s
at

is
fa

c
tio

n
  

is
 h

ig
h
.

O
u
r 

re
fr
e
sh

e
d

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

e
e
ks

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 

c
h
ild

re
n
 g

ro
w

 u
p

 f
re

e
 f
ro

m
 a

lc
o
h
o
l r

e
la

te
d

 
h
a
rm

. 
U

n
d

e
r 

18
 a

d
m

is
si

o
n
 r

at
e
s2

2
 t
o
 h

o
sp

ita
l f

o
r 

a
lc

o
h
o
l s

p
e
c
ifi

c
 c

o
n
d

iti
o
n
s 

h
av

e
 f
a
lle

n
 h

o
w

ev
e
r 

w
e
 s

til
l h

av
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

ra
te

s 
th

a
n
 n

at
io

n
a
lly

, 
w

ith
 

a
p

p
ro

xi
m

at
e
ly

 4
5
%

 o
f 
a
d

m
is

si
o
n
s 

c
h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d

e
r 

16
 a

n
d

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

rit
y 

o
f 
a
d

m
is

si
o
n
s 

g
irl

s.

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 in

 t
h
e
 m

o
st

 d
e
p

riv
e
d

 q
u
in

til
e
s 

o
f 

B
at

h
 a

n
d

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
 a

re
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
tly

 
m

o
re

 li
ke

ly
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
m

itt
e
d

 t
o
 h

o
sp

ita
l f

o
r 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 

sp
e
c
ifi

c
 c

o
n
d

iti
o
n
s 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 h
ig

h
e
r 

ra
te

s 
 

o
f 
a
d

m
is

si
o
n
 in

 b
o
th

 M
id

so
m

e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n
  

a
n
d

 R
a
d

st
o
c
k.

Q
u

o
te

s
 f

ro
m

 a
 f

e
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d

:

It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

o
o

d
 h

a
v
in

g
 s

o
m

e
o

n
e

 

to
 t

a
lk

 t
o

 w
h

o
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 l
is

te
n

s
 a

n
d

 

g
e
ts

 t
h

in
g

s
 d

o
n

e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 j
u

s
t 

b
ru

s
h

in
g

 i
t 

to
 o

n
e
 s

id
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 

d
o

n
’t

 k
n

o
w

 w
h

a
t 

to
 d

o
..
. 

 

M
u

m
, 
a
g

e
d

 3
9

M
y
 k

e
y
w

o
rk

e
r’

s
 d

o
w

n
 t

o
 e

a
rt

h
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
s
h

e
 m

a
k
e
s
 m

e
 f

e
e
l 

re
la

x
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

fo
rt

a
b

le
, 
d

o
e
s
 

n
o

t 
ju

d
g

e
. 
M

y
 s

o
n
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
e
r,
 h

e
 d

o
e
s
n
’t

 t
a
k
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
y.

 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
r

M
e
 a

n
d

 m
y
 f

a
th

e
r 

d
id

 n
o

t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

 m
u

c
h

, 
a
n

d
 I
 r

e
a
lly

 

n
e
v
e
r 

g
o

t 
o

u
t 

o
f 
b

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

id
 

a
n
y
th

in
g

…
 (

s
in

c
e
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 k
e
y
 

w
o

rk
e
r)

 I
 b

e
lie

v
e
 m

y
 f

a
m

ily
 h

a
v
e

 

g
o

tt
e
n
 c

lo
s
e
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e
re

’s
 l
e
s
s
  

s
tr

e
s
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

h
o

u
s
e
.

Y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

, 
a
g

e
d

 1
7

Page 79



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
0

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
1

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

eo
p
le

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
sa

fe
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

w
e
re

 m
o
st

 
re

c
e
n
tly

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 a
s 

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

. 
W

e
 h

av
e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h
e
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 t
h
at

 w
a
s 

d
ra

w
n
 

u
p

 in
 r

e
sp

o
n
se

 t
o
 O

fs
te

d
’s

 in
sp

e
c
tio

n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

sa
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
13

. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s 

re
su

lte
d

 in
 im

p
o
rt

a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s 

to
 t
h
e
 

d
e
si

g
n
 o

f 
sy

st
e
m

s 
a
n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 w

ay
 w

e
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

yo
u
n
g

 
p

e
o
p

le
. 
F
o
r 

ex
a
m

p
le

, 
c
o
n
tin

u
e
d

 in
ve

st
m

e
n
t 
in

 
E

a
rly

 H
e
lp

 a
n
d

 C
o
n
n
e
c
tin

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

st
re

n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 o

f 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

e
e
n
 o

u
r 

E
a
rly

 H
e
lp

 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n
d

 S
o
c
ia

l W
o
rk

 t
e
a
m

s 
h
a
s 

se
e
n
 a

 
p

o
si

tiv
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 o

u
r 

a
b

ili
ty

 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
ith

 f
a
m

ili
e
s 

at
 a

n
 e

a
rly

 s
ta

g
e
 a

n
d

 t
o
 a

ls
o
 w

o
rk

 e
ff
e
c
tiv

e
ly

 
w

ith
 f
a
m

ili
e
s 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
ey

 a
re

 s
u
b

je
c
t 
to

 a
 C

h
ild

 
P

ro
te

c
tio

n
 (
C

P
) p

la
n
, 
re

su
lti

n
g
 in

 a
 1

3
%

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 

in
 C

P
 a

c
tiv

ity
 d

u
rin

g
 2

0
14

/1
5
.

T
h
e 

p
as

t 
ye

a
r 
h
as

 a
ls

o
 s

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
ct

io
n
 in

 t
h
e
 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e 

o
f C

P
 c

as
e
s 

th
at

 a
re

 r
e
-r

ef
e
rr

e
d

  
w

ith
in

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s 
o
f a

 p
re

vi
o
u
s 

c
as

e 
cl

o
su

re
. 

T
h
is

 s
u
g
g
e
st

s 
th

at
 w

h
ile

 t
h
e 

le
n
g
th

 o
f o

u
r 
C

h
ild

re
n
 

In
 N

e
e
d
 in

te
rv

e
n
tio

n
s 

m
ig

h
t 
b
e 

lo
n
g
e
r 
th

a
n
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
al

 a
u
th

o
rit

ie
s,

 t
h
is

 lo
n
g
e
r 
d
u
ra

tio
n
 h

as
 a

llo
w

e
d

  
a 

b
et

te
r 
q
u
al

ity
 o

f i
n
te

rv
e
n
tio

n
 a

n
d
 a

ss
is

te
d

  
in

 a
 m

o
re

 s
u
st

ai
n
e
d
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
  

fa
m

ily
 s

itu
at

io
n.

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l S

af
e
g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
B

o
a
rd

 h
a
s 

o
ve

rs
e
e
n
 t
h
e
 d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h
e
 

B
&

N
E

S
 M

is
si

n
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 S

tr
at

e
g
y 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 
S

ex
u
a
l E

xp
lo

ita
tio

n
 (
C

S
E

) S
tr

at
e
g
y 

a
n
d

 P
ro

to
c
o
l, 

a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 e

xt
e
n
si

ve
 m

u
lti

-a
g
e
n
c
y 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t
o

 
a
ll 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s 
o
n
 C

S
E
. 
W

e
 h

av
e
 e

st
a
b

lis
h
e
d

 
th

e
 W

ill
o
w

 P
ro

je
c
t,
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

s 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

id
e
n
tifi

e
d

 a
s 

b
e
in

g
 a

t 
ris

k 
o
f 
C

S
E

 o
r 

w
h
o
 r

e
q

u
ire

 
‘r
et

u
rn

 h
o
m

e
 in

te
rv

ie
w

s’
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 p
e
rio

d
 

m
is

si
n
g
. 
T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 in
c
lu

d
e
s 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
yo

u
th

 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 w
h
o
 h

av
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
sk

ill
s 

in
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

ith
 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
.

O
u
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

lo
o
ke

d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 (
L

A
C

) a
n
d

 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

e
re

 m
o
st

 r
e
c
e
n
tly

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 
a
s 

g
o

o
d

. 
T
h
e
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n
 o

f 
E

a
rly

 H
e
lp

 h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 a

 s
u
st

a
in

e
d

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 c

o
m

in
g
 in

to
 c

a
re

, 
w

ith
 fi

g
u
re

s 
fa

lli
n
g
 f
ro

m
 1

4
5
 t
o
 1

31
 o

ve
r 

th
e
 p

a
st

 
12

 m
o
n
th

s.
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 a

 c
o
n
si

d
e
ra

b
le

 
ris

e
 in

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
10

 t
o
 1

5
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

 c
h
ild

re
n
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
e
d
, 
c
o
m

p
ris

in
g
 a

lm
o
st

 h
a
lf 

(4
8
%

) o
f 

o
u
r 

L
A

C
 p

o
p

u
la

tio
n
, 
(a

n
d

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
tly

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

th
e
 n

at
io

n
a
l a

ve
ra

g
e
 o

f 
3
7
%

).

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 –
 K

e
y
 F

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 F

ig
u

re
s
 (

2
0
14

/1
5

)

 
 2
1
.9

%
 r

e
p

e
at

 r
ef

e
rr

a
ls

 w
ith

in
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s,
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 o

f 
2
.7

%
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
a
r 

(t
a
rg

et
 w

a
s 

le
ss

 t
h
a
n
 2

2
.0

%
).

 
 0
.9

%
 o

f c
h
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 p

la
n
s 

la
st

in
g
 2

 y
e
a
rs

 o
r 
m

o
re

 (t
a
rg

et
 w

as
 le

ss
 t
h
a
n
 1

0
.0

%
).

 
 8
.6

%
 c

h
ild

re
n
 m

o
ve

d
 f
ro

m
 t
a
rg

et
e
d

 p
re

ve
n
tio

n
 (
ta

rg
et

 w
a
s 

le
ss

 t
h
a
n
 1

0
.0

%
).

 
 9
3
.0

%
 o

f 
lo

o
ke

d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 c

a
se

s 
w

e
re

 r
ev

ie
w

e
d

 w
ith

in
 r

e
q

u
ire

d
 t
im

e
sc

a
le

s 
(t
a
rg

et
 a

t 
le

a
st

 8
7.

0
%

).

H
o

w
e
v
e
r

 
 L
e
ss

 t
h
a
n
 h

a
lf 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

e
re

 s
e
e
n
 b

y 
a
 s

o
c
ia

l w
o
rk

e
r 

w
ith

in
 5

 w
o
rk

in
g
 d

ay
s 

o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
l.

 
 A

ve
ra

g
e
 o

f 
9
 m

o
n
th

s 
fr
o
m

 r
ef

e
rr

a
l t

o
 c

a
se

 b
e
in

g
 c

lo
se

d
.

 
 A

 s
ix

th
 o

f 
a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
ith

in
 4

5
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

ay
s.

2
3
  T

h
e
 D

o
o

r 
S

te
p

 C
lu

b
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 is

 a
 n

e
w

 in
iti

a
tiv

e
 b

a
c
ke

d
 b

y 
th

e
 g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 S
p

o
rt

 E
n
g

la
n
d

 t
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 d

is
a
d

va
n
ta

g
e
d

 y
o

u
th

s 
w

ith
 a

 m
e
m

o
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 q
u
a
lit

y 

e
xp

e
ri
e
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 d
e
si

g
n
e
d

 t
o
 k

e
e
p

 t
h
e
m

 in
vo

lv
e
d

 in
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 d
e
ve

lo
p

 t
h
e
ir 

sp
o

rt
in

g
 h

a
b

it 
fo

r 
lif

e
. 
B

a
th

 R
u
g

b
y 

F
o

u
n
d

a
tio

n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

h
o

se
n
 t
o
 h

e
a
d

 u
p

 t
h
e
  

d
e
liv

e
ry

 in
 t

h
e
 B

&
N

E
S

 a
re

a
.

O
u
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

st
 t
h
e
 a

d
o
p
tio

n
 a

n
d

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

 in
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 i
n

 C
a
re

 a
n

d
 A

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 T

a
b

le
s
 s

h
o
w

s 
w

e
 a

re
 t
h
e
 t

o
p

 s
c
o

ri
n

g
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
tim

e
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

w
a
it 

to
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
, 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’s

 k
ey

 t
a
rg

et
 a

re
a
s.

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

st
 t
h
e
 e

d
u
c
at

io
n
a
l 

at
ta

in
m

e
n
t 
in

d
ic

at
o
rs

 is
 a

ls
o
 v

e
ry

 g
o
o
d
, 
p

la
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 t
h
e
 t

o
p

 1
0

%
 o

r 
b

et
te

r 
a
g
a
in

st
 E

n
g
la

n
d
’s

 
p

rin
c
ip

a
l l

o
c
a
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s.

IN
 2

0
13

/1
4…

B
&

N
E

S
E
N

G
L

A
N

D
D

IF
FE

R
E
N

C
E

A
d

o
p
tio

n
s 

in
 B

&
N

E
S

 o
ve

r 
3
 m

o
n
th

s 
q

u
ic

ke
r 

th
a
n
 a

ve
ra

g
e

5
2
6
 d

a
y
s

6
2
8
 d

a
y
s

-1
0
2
 d

a
y
s

A
d

o
p
tio

n
s 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 in
 le

ss
 t
h
a
n
 2

1
 m

o
n
th

s
74

.0
%

5
1
.0

%
+

2
3
.0

%

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
u
n
d

e
r 

16
 L

A
C

 in
 s

a
m

e
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
2
+

 y
e
a
rs

7
6
.0

%
6
7.

0
%

+
9
.0

%

3
9
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

g
e
d

 1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 w

e
re

 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 
L

o
d

g
in

g
s
 S

c
h

e
m

e
, 
8
2
%

 o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 
in

 w
o
rk

, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
e
d

u
c
at

io
n
.

o
f 
c
a
re

 le
av

e
rs

 
a
re

 in
 s

u
ita

b
le

 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d

at
io

n

in
 e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n
t,
 

e
d

u
c
at

io
n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
(2

0
13

/1
4
 fi

g
u
re

s)

1
0
0

%
7
8
.6

%

T
h
e
 y

o
u
th

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 C
o
n
n
ex

io
n
s 

h
av

e
 m

e
rg

e
d

 
in

to
 o

n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e
 Y

o
u

th
 C

o
n

n
e
c
t 

b
a
n
n
e
r, 

m
a
ki

n
g
 it

 e
a
si

e
r 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
ro

ss
 

B
&

N
E

S
 t
o
 a

c
c
e
ss

 t
h
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 t
h
ey

 n
e
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 

n
a
m

e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
o
n
n
e
c
t 
w

a
s 

c
h
o
se

n
 b

y 
yo

u
n
g

 
p

e
o
p

le
 t
h
e
m

se
lv

e
s.

 D
o

o
r 

S
te

p
 C

lu
b

s
2
3
 a

re
 

o
p

e
ra

tin
g
 a

t 
S

o
u
th

si
d

e
 a

n
d

 P
e
a
se

d
o
w

n
 Y

o
u
th

 
H

u
b

s 
e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

ith
 4

0
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

g
e
d

  
14

-2
5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 e
a
c
h
 w

e
e
k.

O
fs

te
d

 h
a
s 

ra
te

d
 7

 o
f 
o
u
r 

9
 C

h
ild

re
n’

s 
C

e
n
tr

e
s 

a
s 

g
o

o
d

. 
T
h
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
s 

h
a
d

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
w

ith
 3

,8
81

 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

g
e
d

 0
 t
o
 4

 y
e
a
rs

 in
 2

0
14

/1
5
, 
ju

st
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 o

f 
th

is
 a

g
e
 

liv
in

g
 in

 B
&

N
E

S
 (
ex

c
lu

d
e
s 

F
irs

t 
S

te
p

s 
C

h
ild

re
n’

s 

C
e
n
tr

e,
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 e
xt

e
rn

a
lly

 c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
d

).
 

W
e
 id

e
n
tifi

e
d

 4
8
5
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 c
h
ild

re
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e
n
t 
o
r 

re
fe

rr
a
l a

s 
h
av

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

re
at

e
st

  
n
e
e
d

 a
n
d

 w
e
re

 a
b

le
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 8

4
%

 (4
0
8

) o
f 
th

e
m

. 
A

lm
o
st

 7
0

%
 o

f 
th

e
se

 c
h
ild

re
n
 s

h
o
w

e
d

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 

o
f 
so

m
e
 k

in
d

 a
ft
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 in

te
rv

e
n
tio

n
 f
ro

m
 

ta
rg

et
e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s.

A
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l E
d

u
c
at

io
n
a
l N

e
e
d

s 
a
n
d

 
D

is
a
b

ili
ty

 r
ef

o
rm

s,
 w

e
 h

av
e
 in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 E
d

u
c
at

io
n
, 

H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 C
a
re

 (
E

H
C

) p
la

n
s 

a
n
d

 “
O

n
e
 P

a
g
e
 

P
ro

fil
e
s”

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 
E

H
C

 
p

la
n
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d

 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s 

in
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 
m

a
n
n
e
r 

a
n
d

 a
re

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
ke

n
 w

ith
 t
h
e
 in

vo
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
fa

m
ili
e
s 

d
e
sp

ite
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 r

ef
e
rr

a
l n

u
m

b
e
rs

.

Page 80



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
2

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
3

 
 A

t 
3
.5

%
2
4
, 
w

e
 h

av
e
 t

h
e
 t

h
ir

d
 l
o

w
e
s
t 

N
E

E
T

 (
N

o
t 
in

 E
d

u
c
at

io
n
, 
E

m
p

lo
ym

e
n
t 

o
r 

Tr
a
in

in
g

) f
o
r 

th
e
 1

6
 t
o
 1

8
 a

g
e
 g

ro
u
p

 
a
c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 r

e
g
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
a
re

 
fa

vo
u
ra

b
ly

 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
ve

ra
g
e
  

o
f 
7.

0
%

.

 
 7
6
.3

%
 o

f 
A

 L
ev

e
l s

tu
d

e
n
ts

 a
c
h
ie

ve
d

 
3
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
 L

e
v
e
ls

 a
t 

g
ra

d
e
 A

* 
to

 E
, 

a
n
 in

c
re

a
se

 o
f 
2
.1

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
  

o
n
 2

0
12

/1
3
 (
E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
ve

ra
g
e
 7

9
.5

%
).

 
 6
1.

9
%

 o
f p

u
p
ils

 a
ch

ie
ve

d
 5

 o
r 

m
o

re
 

G
C

S
E

s
 o

r 
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 
a
t 
g

ra
d

e
 A

* 
to

 C
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

s
, t

h
e 

h
ig

h
es

t 
re

tu
rn

 fo
r 
th

e 
S

o
u
th

 W
es

t 
an

d
 in

 t
h
e 

to
p

 
2
0
%

 o
f c

o
u
n
ci

ls
 n

at
io

n
al

ly
.

 
 74

.0
%

 o
f 
p

rim
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l c

h
ild

re
n
 

a
c
h
ie

ve
d

 a
 g

o
o

d
 L

e
v
e
l 
4
B

 i
n

 r
e
a
d

in
g

, 
w

ri
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 m
a
th

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

n
at

io
n
a
l a

ve
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
7.

0
%

, 
a
n
d

 o
n
e
 in

 
fo

u
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d

 L
ev

e
l 5

.

 
 6
2

.2
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

tt
a
in

e
d

 a
 g

o
o
d

 le
ve

l 
o
f 
d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
w

ith
in

 t
h
e
 E

a
rly

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 
G

o
a
ls

, 
a
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
12

%
 

p
o
in

ts
 o

n
 2

0
13

 a
n
d

 a
b

o
ve

 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 
av

e
ra

g
e
 (
6
0
.0

%
).

K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s 
– 

E
d
u
ca

tio
n
 (A

ca
d
em

ic
 Y

ea
r 
2
01

3
/1

4
)

P
E
R

C
E
N

TA
G

E
 O

F 
P

U
P

IL
S

 A
C

H
IE

V
IN

G
…

N
O

N
-F

S
M

 
P

U
P

IL
S

F
S

M
 P

U
P

IL
S

G
A

P

5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

C
 g

ra
d

e
s 

at
 G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n
g
lis

h
 &

 m
at

h
s

6
7.

2
%

3
3
.2

%
3
4
.0

%

L
ev

e
l 4

 o
r 

a
b

o
ve

 in
 r

e
a
d

in
g
, 
w

rit
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
at

h
s

8
6
.0

%
6

8
.0

%
1
8
.0

%

G
o
o
d

 L
ev

e
l o

f 
d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
at

 t
h
e
 E

Y
F
S

3
3
.2

%

H
o

w
e
v
e
r 

th
e 

g
a
p
 b

et
w

e
e
n
 t
h
e 

at
ta

in
m

e
n
t 
o
f p

u
p
ils

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r 
fr
e
e 

sc
h
o
o
l m

e
al

s 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir 

p
e
e
rs

 is
 o

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

w
id

e
st

 in
 t
h
e 

co
u
n
tr

y 
in

 t
h
e 

e
a
rly

 y
e
a
rs

’ 
fo

u
n
d
at

io
n
 s

ta
g
e 

(E
Y

FS
) a

n
d
 a

t 
th

e 
e
n
d
 o

f K
ey

 S
ta

g
e
s 

2
 a

n
d
 4

:

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n

t 
g

a
p

s
 a

t 
a
ll 

s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ile

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 a

ll 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
 t

h
e
ir

 f
u

ll 
p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
re

 k
e
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

24
  F

ig
u
re

s 
a
re

 a
n
 a

ve
ra

g
e 

fo
r 
N

o
ve

m
b

e
r 
2
0
14

 t
o
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
15

 a
n
d
 o

n
ly

 in
c
lu

d
e 

yo
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 a

re
 k

n
o
w

n
 t
o
 t
h
e 

lo
c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
i.e

., 
th

o
se

 e
d

u
c
a
te

d
 in

 g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t-

fu
n
d

e
d

 

sc
h
o

o
ls

 –
 t
h
e
y 

d
o
 n

o
t 
c
o
u
n
t 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 e

d
u
c
a
te

d
 in

 p
ri
va

te
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

, 
th

o
se

 t
a
k
in

g
 a

 g
a
p
 y

e
a
r 
o
r 
th

o
se

 in
 c

u
st

o
d

y,
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y 

a
ff
e
c
t 
th

e 
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y 

o
f o

u
r 
N

E
E

T
 fi

g
u
re

.

2
5
 C

o
n
n
e
c
tin

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

is
 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e 
to

 f
o
rg

e 
c
lo

se
r 
lin

ks
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d
 o

u
r 
c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s,

 s
im

p
lif

yi
n
g
 h

o
w

 w
e 

w
o
rk

 w
ith

 lo
c
a
l g

ro
u
p

s 
a
n
d

 

re
si

d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 h

e
lp

 c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

d
o
 m

o
re

 f
o
r 
th

e
m

se
lv

e
s 

a
n
d
 fi

n
d
 n

e
w

 w
a
ys

 t
o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 t
h
e
ir 

lo
c
a
l p

ri
o
ri
tie

s.

2
6
  IR

IS
 is

 a
 g

e
n
e
ra

l p
ra

c
tic

e
-b

a
se

d
 d

o
m

e
st

ic
 v

io
le

n
c
e 

a
n
d
 a

b
u
se

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 r

e
fe

rr
a
l p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e 
a
im

e
d
 a

t 
w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 e

xp
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 a

b
u
se

 f
ro

m
 a

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p

a
rt

n
e
r,
 

e
x-

p
a
rt

n
e
r 
o
r 
a
d

u
lt 

fa
m

ily
 m

e
m

b
e
r.

A
 N

ew
 R

e
la

tio
n
sh

ip
 w

ith
 

C
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
n
d

 C
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s

S
af

er
 a

n
d
 S

tr
o
n
g
er

 C
o
m

m
u
n
iti

es

C
o

n
n

e
c
ti
n

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
2
5
 F

o
ru

m
s 

a
re

 n
o
w

 
o
p

e
ra

tin
g
 in

 C
h
ew

 V
a
lle

y,
 K

ey
n
sh

a
m

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 

S
o
m

e
r 

V
a
lle

y.
 T

h
e
se

 F
o
ru

m
s 

h
av

e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 w
ith

 
lo

c
a
l p

a
ris

h
e
s 

a
n
d

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 h

e
a
lth

 
a
n
d

 c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 lo

c
a
l 

p
e
o
p

le
 t
o
 h

av
e
 t
h
e
ir 

sa
y 

o
n
 lo

c
a
l p

o
lic

in
g
. 
O

n
e
 

o
f 
th

e
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

id
e
n
tifi

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 C

h
ew

 V
a
lle

y 
A

re
a
 F

o
ru

m
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 a
n
d

 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s 

re
c
e
n
tly

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 £

6
0
,0

0
0
 in

 
g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 t
o
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e
 lo

c
a
l s

o
lu

tio
n
s 

to
 t
h
e
 p

ro
b

le
m

s 
o
f 
tr

a
n
sp

o
rt

 a
c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 r

u
ra

l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

o
f 
th

e
 V

a
lle

y.

A
t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
e
st

 o
f 
C

o
u
n
c
il,

 a
n
 a

ll-
p

a
rt

y 
w

o
rk

in
g

 
g
ro

u
p

 d
re

w
 t
o
g
et

h
e
r 

a
n
 e

vi
d

e
n
c
e
 b

a
se

 f
o
r 

st
re

n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 r
e
p

re
se

n
ta

tio
n
 a

n
d

 c
iv

ic
 

g
o
ve

rn
a
n
c
e
 in

 B
at

h
. 
It 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 p
re

se
n
ta

tio
n
s 

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s 

a
s 

w
e
ll 

a
s 

a
sk

in
g
 lo

c
a
l p

e
o
p

le
 f
o
r 

vi
ew

s.
 A

s 
a
 r

e
su

lt 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s 

n
o
w

 e
st

a
b

lis
h
e
d

 
a
 n

ew
 B

at
h
 C

ity
 F

o
ru

m
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
ru

m
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 n
ew

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 f
o
r 

g
re

at
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 c
o
lla

b
o
ra

tio
n
 b

et
w

e
e
n
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s 

w
ith

in
 t
h
e
 c

ity
. 
“A

sk
 t
h
e
 L

e
a
d

e
r”

 
ev

e
n
ts

 a
ls

o
 t
o
o
k 

p
la

c
e
 in

 S
o
m

e
r 

V
a
lle

y,
  

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

/C
h
ew

 V
a
lle

y 
a
n
d

 B
at

h
 a

s 
w

e
ll 

 
a
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

 n
ew

 o
n
lin

e
 f
a
c
ili
ty

.

W
e
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 C
rim

e
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
r 

(P
C

C
) t

o
 b

u
ild

 s
af

e
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s.

 
P

o
lic

e
 f
ro

n
td

e
sk

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

fu
lly

 
in

c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d

 in
to

 t
h
e
 K

ey
n
sh

a
m

 O
n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

 
a
n
d

 d
is

c
u
ss

io
n
s 

a
re

 u
n
d

e
rw

ay
 f
o
r 

a
 s

im
ila

r 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 B
at

h
. 
T
h
e
 P

C
C

’s
 n

ew
 L

ig
h
th

o
u
se

 
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

a
 b

et
te

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 t
o
 v

ic
tim

s 
o
f 

c
rim

e,
 w

ith
 In

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

D
o
m

e
st

ic
 V

io
le

n
c
e
 

A
d

vi
so

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n
d

 C
u
ro

 s
ta

ff
 n

o
w

 c
o
-l
o
c
at

e
d
, 

a
n
d

 t
h
e
 n

ew
 I
R

IS
2
6
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
e
lp

s 
vi

c
tim

s 
o
f 

d
o
m

e
st

ic
 a

b
u
se

 b
y 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 b

et
te

r 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

G
P

 r
ef

e
rr

a
ls

.

In
 t
h
e
 la

st
 A

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 Y

e
a
r, 

8
1
%

 o
f 
p

rim
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 9
6
%

 o
f 
se

c
o
n
d

a
ry

 p
u
p

ils
 a

tt
e
n
d

e
d

 g
o

o
d

 
o
r 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 
T
h
e
re

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 e
xt

e
n
si

o
n
s 

to
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 u
n
d

e
r 

o
u
r 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y 
o
f 
o
u
r 

sc
h
o
o
l e

st
at

e
 a

n
d

 b
et

te
r 

se
rv

e
 t
h
e
 

n
e
e
d

s 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

.

Page 81



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

24

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
5

A
 lo

t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 p
e
o
p

le
 f
e
e
l s

af
e
 w

h
e
n
 t
h
ey

 le
av

e
 t
h
e
ir 

h
o
m

e
s,

 e
sp

e
c
ia

lly
 a

t 
n
ig

h
t,
 

a
n
d

 w
e
 h

av
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

 2
6

%
 r

e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
rim

e
s 

lin
ke

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N

ig
h
t 
T
im

e
 E

c
o
n
o
m

y2
7
 a

c
ro

ss
 

th
e
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
b

et
w

e
e
n
 2

0
0
7/

0
8
 a

n
d

 2
0
12

/1
3
.

 
 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 6
1
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

Z
o

n
e
s
 a

c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
rit

y 
to

 h
e
lp

 
vu

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
 f
e
e
l a

n
d

 b
e
 s

af
e
r 

w
h
e
n
 

th
ey

 g
o
 o

u
t.

 
 B

at
h
 c

e
le

b
ra

te
d

 it
s 

th
ird

 c
o
n
se

c
u
tiv

e
 r

e
n
ew

a
l 

o
f 
th

e
 P

u
rp

le
 F

la
g

2
8
 a

w
a
rd

; 
it 

h
a
s 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 

o
f 
g
o
o
d

 p
ra

c
tic

e
 in

iti
at

iv
e
s 

to
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 it

s 
n
ig

h
t 
tim

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 T

a
xi

 M
a
rs

h
a
lls

, 
S

af
e
 a

n
d

 S
o
u
n
d

 p
a
ra

m
e
d

ic
 r

e
sp

o
n
se

 t
e
a
m

, 
S

tr
e
et

 P
a
st

o
rs

, 
P

u
b
w

at
c
h
 a

n
d

 N
ig

h
tw

at
c
h
 

(6
0

%
 o

f 
o
ff
e
n
d

e
rs

 h
av

e
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 w

ith
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l m

is
u
se

).

 
 41

 p
re

m
is

e
s 

w
e
re

 t
e
st

e
d

 a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
o
u
r 

u
n
d

e
ra

g
e
 s

a
le

s 
m

o
n
ito

rin
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
s 

a
n
d

 a
n
 o

p
e
ra

tio
n
 w

a
s 

c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
in

 p
u
b

s 
w

ith
 1

8
 a

n
d

 1
9
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s 
w

ith
o
u
t 
th

e
ir 

a
g
e
 

id
e
n
tifi

c
at

io
n
 t
o
 s

e
e
 if

 t
h
e
 r

ig
h
t 
q

u
e
st

io
n
s 

w
e
re

 a
sk

e
d

 in
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

et
e
rm

in
e
 if

 y
o
u
n
g

 
p

e
o
p

le
 w

e
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
d

 c
o
rr

e
c
tly

.

 
 O

u
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

lc
o

h
o

l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 in
 

M
id

so
m

e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n
 g

o
e
s 

fr
o
m

 s
tr

e
n
g
th

 t
o

 
st

re
n
g
th

 a
n
d

 h
a
s 

se
e
n
 a

 1
7
%

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 
a
n
ti-

so
c
ia

l b
e
h
av

io
u
r, 

a
g
a
in

 w
ith

 s
ig

n
ifi

c
a
n
t 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

ig
h
t 
tim

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y 
th

ro
u
g
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 f
o
c
u
se

d
 a

c
tiv

ity
, 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
 t
ra

d
e
rs

 a
n
d

 li
c
e
n
se

 h
o
ld

e
rs

 
a
n
d

 in
tr

o
d

u
c
tio

n
 o

f 
S

tr
e
et

 M
a
rs

h
a
lls

 a
n
d

 
D

e
si

g
n
at

e
d

 P
u
b

lic
 P

la
c
e
 O

rd
e
r.

 
 A

 n
ew

 d
e
fib

ril
la

to
r 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n

a
c
tiv

at
e
d

 in
 B

at
h
 c

ity
 c

e
n
tr

e.
  

W
ith

in
 5

 d
ay

s 
o
f 
in

st
a
lla

tio
n
, 
 

tw
o
 li

ve
s 

h
a
d

 s
av

e
d
. 

 
 A

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 in
 p

la
c
e
  

fo
r 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
fib

ril
la

to
rs

 t
o

  
b

e
 in

st
a
lle

d
 a

c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
.

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
s

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

’s
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

 a
n
d

 L
ib

ra
ry

 o
p

e
n
e
d

 
o
n
 s

c
h
e
d

u
le

, 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

 w
ith

 a
 n

ew
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 s
p

a
c
e
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e
ss

 t
o
 a

n
 in

c
re

a
se

d
 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

u
n
d

e
r 

o
n
e
 r

o
o
f.

C
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
tin

g
 o

u
r 

ex
is

tin
g
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

s 
in

 
B

at
h
 a

n
d

 M
id

so
m

e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n
, 
th

ey
 a

ll 
n
o
w

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 

a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

se
le

c
te

d
 t
o
 m

e
et

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d

s 
o
f 
e
a
c
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 
a
n
d

 h
av

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 o
ve

r 
24

6
,0

0
0
 v

is
its

.

T
h
e
re

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 a

ro
u
n
d

 7
17

,0
0

0
 v

is
its

 t
o
 li

b
ra

rie
s 

w
ith

 s
o
m

e
 6

7
9
,0

0
0
 it

e
m

s 
is

su
e
d
. 
A

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
o
d

e
rn

is
in

g
 t
h
e
 li

b
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e,

 a
 n

ew
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 
L
ib

ra
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
sy

st
e
m

2
9
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 

a
n
d

 w
ill
 b

e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y 
L
ib

ra
rie

sW
e
st

3
0
. 

T
h
is

 w
ill
 im

p
ro

ve
 b

o
th

 s
ta

ff
 b

a
se

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d

 
se

lf-
se

rv
e
 o

p
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

L
ib

ra
ry

 c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

. 

O
u
r 

ke
y 

C
u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 t
e
a
m

s 
a
n
d

 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

sw
itc

h
b

o
a
rd

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
-l
o
c
at

e
d

 
to

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 a

n
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 a
n
d

 e
xt

e
n
d

e
d

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 c
o
n
ta

c
tin

g
 u

s 
b
y 

p
h
o
n
e.

 
In

 t
o
ta

l t
h
e
se

 t
e
a
m

s 
re

c
e
iv

e
d

 3
9

0
,0

0
0
 e

xt
e
rn

a
l 

c
a
lls

 la
st

 y
e
a
r. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

su
rv

ey
s 

fo
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
n
n
e
c
t,
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

s 
a
n
d

 L
ib

ra
rie

s 
sh

o
w

s 
th

e
 m

a
jo

rit
y 

o
f 
c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 t
h
in

k 
o
u
r 

st
a
n
d

a
rd

 o
f 
c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e
 is

 e
x
c
e
lle

n
t.

O
u
r 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
n
lin

e
 p

ay
m

e
n
t 
o
p
tio

n
s 

(e
P

ay
) 

h
a
s 

a
ls

o
 in

c
re

a
se

d
, 
re

su
lti

n
g
 in

 n
e
a
rly

 1
0

0
,0

0
0

 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l p

ay
m

e
n
ts

. 

C
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
re

 in
c
re

a
si

n
g
ly

 u
si

n
g
 s

o
c
ia

l m
e
d

ia
 

w
ith

 2
6
%

 o
f 
a
ll 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 
to

 C
u
st

o
m

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s 

o
n
lin

e
 o

r 
vi

a
 e

m
a
il,

 (
a
ro

u
n
d

 4
8
,0

0
0
 e

m
a
il 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
s 

a
n
d

 o
n
lin

e
 f
o
rm

 s
u
b

m
is

si
o
n
s)

.

T
w

it
te

r 
fo

llo
w

e
rs

  
d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

 
1
2
 m

o
n

th
s
..
.

2
7
 N

ig
h
t 
tim

e 
e
c
o
n
o
m

y 
c
rim

e 
re

fe
rs

 t
o
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s 

o
f v

io
le

n
t 
c
rim

e 
a
n
d
 c

rim
in

a
l d

a
m

a
g

e 
o

c
c
u
rr

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e 

h
o
u
rs

 o
f 2

0
:0

0
 a

n
d
 0

4
:0

0
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e 

o
u
ts

id
e 

o
f t

h
e 

h
o
m

e 
n
o
t 

o
th

e
rw

is
e 

d
e
fin

e
d
 a

s 
d

o
m

e
st

ic
 v

io
le

n
c
e 

o
r 
h
a
te

 c
rim

e.

2
8
 T

h
e 

P
u
rp

le
 F

la
g
 s

ta
tu

s 
is

 s
im

ila
r 
to

 B
lu

e 
F
la

g
 f
o
r 
b

e
a
c
h
e
s,

 it
 in

d
ic

a
te

s 
th

a
t 
B

a
th

 C
ity

 C
e
n
tr

e 
is

 a
 s

a
fe

, 
in

c
lu

si
ve

 a
n
d
 d

iv
e
rs

e 
e
n
te

rt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
c
e
n
tr

e
s 

fo
r 
a
ll 

vi
si

to
rs

.

2
9
 A

 li
b

ra
ry

 m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
sy

st
e
m

 is
 s

o
ft

w
a
re

 t
h
a
t 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d
 t
o
 h

a
n
d

le
 b

a
si

c 
h
o
u
se

ke
e
p

in
g
 f
u
n
c
tio

n
s 

o
f a

 li
b

ra
ry

, 
i.e

, 
a
c
q

u
is

iti
o
n
, 
c
a
ta

lo
g
in

g
, 
c
irc

u
la

tio
n
, 
se

ri
a
ls

 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
in

g

3
0

 L
ib

ra
ri
e
sW

e
st

 is
 o

n
e 

o
f t

h
e 

le
a
d

in
g
 p

u
b

lic
 li

b
ra

ry
 c

o
n
so

rt
ia

 in
 t
h
e 

U
K

 a
n
d
 is

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 B

a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t,
 B

ri
st

o
l, 

N
o
rt

h
 S

o
m

e
rs

e
t,
 S

o
m

e
rs

e
t,

S
o
u
th

 G
lo

u
c
e
st

e
rs

h
ire

 a
n
d
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f P
o

o
le

 a
n
d
 D

o
rs

e
t 
C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

lib
ra

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 It
 is

 s
e
e
n
 a

s 
a
n
 e

xa
m

p
le

 o
f g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
tic

e 
w

h
e
re

 a
u
th

o
ri
tie

s 
w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 
 

to
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ie
s 

o
f s

c
a
le

 a
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 
b

e
tt

e
r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

fo
r 
c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

.

A
ll 

p
u
b

lic
 P

C
s 

in
 li

b
ra

rie
s 

a
re

 n
o
w

 
fr
e
e
 f
o
r 

u
se

 b
y 

lib
ra

ry
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 
in

 li
n
e
 w

ith
 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

c
c
e
ss

 P
C

s 
in

 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

s;
 a

n
d

 f
re

e
 

W
i-
F
i i

s 
p

ro
vi

d
e
d

 in
 t
h
e
 t
h
re

e
 m

a
in

 
lib

ra
rie

s,
 p

lu
s 

P
a
u
lto

n
 a

n
d

 W
e
st

o
n
, 

a
n
d

 a
ll 

o
u
r 

O
n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

s.

1
0
,8

0
0

2
 M

IL
L
IO

N
h
its

 o
n
 t
h
e
 w

e
b

si
te

b
si

te

L
iv

e
 w

e
b

c
a
st

in
g
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
  

ex
te

n
d

e
d

 t
o
 in

c
lu

d
e
 f
u
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

  
C

a
b

in
et

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 H

e
a
lth

 a
n
d

  
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a
rd

 m
e
et

in
g
s 

a
n
d

  
h
a
s 

re
c
e
iv

e
d

 o
ve

r 
4
6
,0

0
0
 h

it
s
. 

A
 n

ew
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n’

s 
w

e
b

si
te

  
w

a
s 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d

 la
st

 M
ay

.

N
ew

 R
e
g
is

te
r 

O
ffi

c
e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 o

p
e
n
e
d

 a
t 

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

 O
n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

 a
n
d

 t
h
e
 R

o
ya

l U
n
ite

d
 

H
o
sp

ita
l, 

m
a
ki

n
g
 it

 e
a
si

e
r 

fo
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s 

to
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

b
ir
th

s 
a
n
d

 d
e
at

h
s 

a
n
d

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g
 a

c
c
e
ss

 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

re
g
is

tr
a
r 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

.

Page 82



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
6

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
7

E
nv

iro
n
m

en
t

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
in

ta
in

s 
2
5
0
 h

e
c
ta

re
s 

o
f 
fo

rm
a
l p

a
rk

la
n
d

 a
n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s,

 9
0

0
km

 o
f 
p

u
b

lic
 r

ig
h
ts

 
o
f 
w

ay
 a

n
d

 a
 la

rg
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
sp

o
rt

s 
p

itc
h
e
s.

 S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 p
la

y
 a

re
a
s
 is

 a
m

o
n
g
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 in
 

S
o
u
th

 W
e
st

 a
n
d

 o
u
r 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l S
e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h

e
s
t 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
ti
n

g
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d

 
o

p
e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s
 in

 V
o
ic

e
b

o
x 

S
u
rv

ey
s 

c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
b

et
w

e
e
n
 2

0
0
8
 a

n
d

 2
0
11

.

P
u

b
lic

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e
s
 a

n
d

 P
la

y
 A

re
a
s
 –

  
K

e
y
 F

a
c
ts

 a
n

d
 F

ig
u

re
s

 
 6
4
%

 o
f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h
at

 p
la

y 
a
re

a
s 

fo
r 

yo
u
n
g
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

m
a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
n
d

 o
f 
g
o
o
d

 q
u
a
lit

y.

 
 O

v
e
r 

5
0

%
 o

f 
yo

u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

a
rk

s 
a
s 

b
e
in

g
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
ir 

to
p

 3
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

(o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 ju

st
 o

ve
r 

 
2
5
%

 c
h
o
se

 it
 a

s 
th

e
ir 

to
p

 p
rio

rit
y)

.

B
at

h
 a

n
d

 N
o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 a

 
b

o
u
q

u
et

 o
f 
to

p
 h

o
n

o
u

rs
 in

 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

w
e
st

 in
 

B
lo

o
m

 A
w

a
rd

s 
a
n
d

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt 
a
re

 c
o
m

p
et

in
g
 in

 
th

e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s 

c
at

e
g
o
ry

 in
 2

0
15

/1
6
. 

W
e
 w

o
n
 fi

ve
 G

re
e
n

 F
la

g
 a

w
a
rd

s 
in

 2
0
15

 in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

o
n
e
 f
o
r 

R
o
ya

l V
ic

to
ria

 P
a
rk

 a
n
d

 H
ay

c
o
m

b
e
 

c
re

m
at

o
riu

m
. 

W
o
rk

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 t
h
e
 G

re
e
n
 F

la
g
 H

e
rit

a
g
e
 P

a
rk

 
st

a
n
d

a
rd

 f
o
r 

R
o
ya

l V
ic

to
ria

 P
a
rk

 a
n
d

 in
c
re

a
se

 t
h
e
 

le
ve

l o
f 
a
c
tiv

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 in
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
c
h
ie

ve
 

a
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 D
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
aw

a
rd

 is
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
vi

ew
 

a
s 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
a
ss

e
ss

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
et

 s
c
e
n
e
 a

n
d

 p
u
b

lic
 

re
a
lm

 h
av

e
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
e
d

 w
e
ll.

 C
o
n
tin

u
e
d

 c
lo

se
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 b

et
w

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 B

at
h
 B

u
si

n
e
ss

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
t 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
a
n
d

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 im
p

ro
vi

n
g
 a

re
a
s 

o
f 
th

e
 c

ity
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

le
a
n
si

n
g
 T

a
sk

 a
n
d

 F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p

 h
a
s 

le
d

 t
o
 in

c
re

a
si

n
g
ly

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d

 c
u

s
to

m
e
rs

. 

W
e
 h

av
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
 n

ew
 m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l s

tr
e
et

 
sc

ru
b

b
in

g
 e

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 in
st

a
lle

d
 8

5
 s

o
la

r 
c
o
m

p
a
c
tin

g
 b

ig
 b

e
lly

 b
in

s 
to

 h
e
lp

 u
s 

w
o
rk

 m
o
re

 
ef

fic
ie

n
tly

 in
 k

e
e
p

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
et

s 
c
le

a
n
 a

n
d

 s
to

p
 

b
ird

s 
a
n
d

 a
n
im

a
ls

 s
c
av

e
n
g
in

g
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 b

in
s.

 

S
ta

ff
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

in
e
d

 t
o
 q

u
a
lif

y 
in

 w
o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
 

p
e
st

ic
id

e
s 

so
 w

e
 c

a
n
 d

ev
e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
ve

 o
u
r 

w
e
e
d

 s
p

ra
yi

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

3
1 B

a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 
C

o
u
n
c
il,

 B
M

T
 Is

is
, 
C

u
ro

, 
F
u
tu

re
 P

u
b

lis
h
in

g
, 
th

e 
U

n
iv

e
rs

iti
e
s 

o
f B

a
th

 a
n
d
 B

a
th

 S
p

a
, 
U

N
IT

E
, 
V
o

lu
n
te

e
r 
C

e
n
tr

e,
 W

ith
y 

K
in

g
 a

n
d
 W

ill
m

o
tt

 D
ix

o
n
.

W
o
rk

 is
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

ith
 T

o
w

n
 a

n
d

 P
a
ris

h
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 
a
n
d

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

’ 
g
ro

u
p

s 
a
n
d

 v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

u
th

o
rit

y.
 

2
5
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

c
tiv

iti
e
s 

to
o
k 

p
la

c
e
 

o
ve

r 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

w
ith

 a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 
a
ss

e
ts

 s
u
c
h
 a

s 
p

la
y 

a
re

a
s,

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 g
a
rd

e
n
s 

a
n
d

 h
a
lls

 b
e
n
e
fit

in
g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

xt
ra

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

. 

2
3
9
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 lo

c
a
l e

m
p

lo
ye

rs
3
1
 w

e
re

 
in

vo
lv

e
d

 w
ith

 m
a
n
y 

a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
o
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 

su
p

p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt 
o
f 
ta

ki
n
g

  
p

a
rt

 in
 t
h
e
 C

h
a
lle

n
g
e.

W
e
 a

re
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

 b
ra

n
d

 n
ew

 s
ka

te
 p

a
rk

 a
t 
 

R
o
ya

l V
ic

to
ria

 P
a
rk

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 o

p
e
n
 A

u
g
u
st

 2
0
15

. 
 

L
o
c
a
l r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 s

ka
tin

g
  

c
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 h
av

e
 h

e
lp

e
d

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 d

e
si

g
n
. 

N
ew

 p
la

y 
e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 in

st
a
lle

d
 a

t 
m

a
n
y 

 
o
f 
o
u
r 

c
h
ild

re
n’

s 
p

la
y 

a
re

a
s,

 a
n
d

 w
e
 h

av
e
 a

ls
o

 
h
av

e
 in

st
a
lle

d
 n

ew
 o

u
td

o
o
r 

fit
n
e
ss

 e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
d

u
lts

 in
 K

ey
n
sh

a
m

. 

A
ll 

o
f 
o
u
r 

p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n
ve

n
ie

n
c
e
s 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 
to

 c
re

at
e
 n

ew
 m

o
d

e
rn

 f
a
c
ili
tie

s 
w

ith
 d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 
a
c
c
e
ss

 a
n
d

 b
a
b
y 

c
h
a
n
g
in

g
. 
O

n
ly

 o
n
e
 f
a
c
ili
ty

 
re

m
a
in

s 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y 
 

th
e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
2
0
15

/1
6
.

W
as

te
 a

n
d
 R

ec
yc

lin
g
 –

 K
ey

 F
ac

ts
 a

n
d
 F

ig
u
re

s 
(2

01
4
/1

5
)

  8
2

.0
%

 h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 w
a
st

e
 r

e
u
se

, 
re

c
yc

lin
g
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o
ve

ry
 r

at
e
 (
ta

rg
et

 7
5
.5

%
 o

r 
m

o
re

).

  1
8
.0

%
 o

f 
m

u
n
ic

ip
a
l w

a
st

e
 la

n
d

fil
le

d
 (
ta

rg
et

 3
0
.0

%
 o

r 
le

ss
).

  4
9
4
.4

2
k
g

 o
f 
h
o
u
se

h
o
ld

 r
e
si

d
u
a
l w

a
st

e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 (
ta

rg
et

 4
8
0
.0

kg
 o

r 
le

ss
).

  4
8
.0

%
 h

o
u
se

h
o
ld

 r
e
u
se

, 
re

c
yc

lin
g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
o
st

in
g
 r

at
e
 (
ta

rg
et

 5
0
.0

%
 o

r 
m

o
re

).

W
e
 c

o
n
tin

u
e
 t
o
 a

c
tiv

e
ly

 p
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d

 e
xp

a
n
d

 o
u
r 

re
c
yc

lin
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s.

 1
4
0
 n

ew
 c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 h
av

e
 s

ig
n
e
d

 u
p

 
fo

r 
o
u
r 

n
ew

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 f
o
o
d

 w
a
st

e
 r

e
c
yc

lin
g
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

W
e
 h

av
e
 in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 f
o
o
d

 w
a
st

e
 c

o
lle

c
tio

n
s 

fr
o
m

 fl
at

s 
a
n
d

 a
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
id

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

W
e
st

 o
f 

E
n
g
la

n
d

 A
u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

to
 t
h
e
 D

C
LG

 r
e
c
yc

lin
g
 in

c
e
n
tiv

e
 f
u
n
d

 t
o
 in

c
re

a
se

 f
o
o
d

 w
a
st

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 

su
c
c
e
ss

fu
l. 

P
h
a
se

 4
 o

f 
in

tr
o
d

u
c
in

g
 r

e
u
sa

b
le

 r
u
b

b
is

h
 b

a
g
s 

to
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 li

tt
e
r 

c
re

at
e
d

  
b
y 

sc
av

e
n
g
in

g
 b

ird
s 

a
n
d

 a
n
im

a
ls

 in
 t
h
e
 c

ity
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
n
d

  
a
n
 a

d
d

iti
o
n
a
l 2

,4
0

0
 r

e
u
sa

b
le

 r
u
b

b
is

h
 b

a
g
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

  
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s 

in
 W

e
st

m
o
re

la
n
d

 a
n
d

 O
ld

fie
ld

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
  

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p

ro
b

le
m

s 
w

ith
 w

a
st

e
 s

p
ill
in

g
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
et

s.

W
e
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ki

n
g
 t
a
rg

et
e
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
s 

to
 e

n
su

re
  

th
at

 r
e
si

d
e
n
ts

 t
a
ke

 r
e
sp

o
n
si

b
ili
ty

 f
o
r 

p
re

se
n
tin

g
 t
h
e
ir 

o
w

n
 w

a
st

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

  
to

 a
vo

id
 c

a
u
si

n
g
 c

le
a
n
lin

e
ss

 is
su

e
s.

Page 83



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
8

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

2
9

A
n
 E

ffi
c
ie

n
t 
B

u
si

n
e
ss

S
av

in
g
s 

an
d
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts

P
u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n
 a

n
d
 H

ea
lth

 Im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t

A
 n

ew
 c

o
p
y 

o
f 
th

e
 A

p
p

ro
ve

d
 T

ra
d

e
rs

’ 
B

u
y
 w

it
h

 C
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e
 D

ire
c
to

ry
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 p

u
b

lis
h
e
d
.

3
2
 F
o

o
d
 b

u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

a
re

 g
iv

e
n
 a

 ‘
h
yg

ie
n
e 

ra
tin

g
’ 
w

h
e
n
 in

sp
e
c
te

d
 b

y 
a 

fo
o
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

ffi
c
e
r 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e 

lo
c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e 

h
yg

ie
n
e 

ra
tin

g
 s

h
o
w

s 
h
o
w

 c
lo

se
ly

 t
h
e 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 is
 m

e
e
tin

g
 t
h
e
 

re
q

u
ire

m
e
n
ts

 o
f f

o
o
d
 h

yg
ie

n
e 

la
w

 (
F
o

o
d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s 
A

g
e
n
c
y)

.

3
3
 T

h
e 

E
a
t 
O

u
t 
E

a
t 
W

e
ll 

A
w

a
rd

 h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
w

a
rd

 f
o

o
d
 o

u
tle

ts
 t
h
a
t 
p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e
ir 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 w
ith

 h
e
a
lth

ie
r 
c
h
o

ic
e
s.

 It
 h

a
s 

th
re

e 
le

ve
ls

 –
 B

ro
n
ze

, 
S

ilv
e
r 
a
n
d
 G

o
ld

 –
 a

n
d

 

is
 s

ym
b

o
lis

e
d
 b

y 
a
n
 a

p
p

le
 lo

g
o
 in

 t
h
e 

sh
a
p

e 
o
f a

 h
e
a
rt

. 
C

lic
k 

h
e
re

 f
o
r 
a 

lis
t 
o
f a

w
a
rd

 h
o

ld
e
rs

.

3
4
A

u
to

m
a
tic

 n
u
m

b
e
r 
p

la
te

 r
e
c
o

g
n
iti

o
n
 is

 a
 s

u
rv

e
ill
a
n
c
e 

m
e
th

o
d
 t
h
a
t 
u
se

s 
o
p

tic
a
l c

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
re

c
o

g
n
iti

o
n
 t
o
 r

e
a
d
 v

e
h
ic

le
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
tio

n
 p

la
te

s.

O
u
r 

n
et

 r
ev

e
n
u
e
 b

u
d

g
et

 f
o
r 

2
0
14

/1
5
 w

a
s 

£
11

9
.9

2
6
m

, 
a
 n

et
 c

a
sh

 r
e
d

u
c
tio

n
 

o
f 
£

3
.5

24
m

 o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
a
r. 

T
h
is

 r
e
fle

c
ts

 t
h
e
 im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
si

g
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
c
u
ts

 
in

 g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d

in
g
 a

m
o
u
n
tin

g
 t
o
 9

.6
%

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r. 

O
u
r 

b
u
d

g
et

 f
o
r 

2
0
14

/1
5
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 h

ig
h
 p

rio
rit

y 
fr
o
n
tli

n
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d

 in
v
e
s
te

d
 in

 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
 

o
f 
th

e
 a

re
a,

 p
ro

m
o
tin

g
 n

ew
 h

o
m

e
s 

a
n
d

 jo
b

s.
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

Ta
x 

w
a
s 

fr
o

z
e
n

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

fo
u
rt

h
 c

o
n
se

c
u
tiv

e
 y

e
a
r, 

re
c
o
g
n
is

in
g
 t
h
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 p

re
ss

u
re

 o
n
 h

o
u
se

h
o
ld

 
in

c
o
m

e
s.

S
p

e
c
ifi

c
 s

av
in

g
s 

to
ta

lle
d

 £
1
0
.8

 m
ill

io
n
, 
w

ith
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

rit
y 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 

ef
fic

ie
n
c
y 

sa
vi

n
g
s,

 b
u
t 
a
ls

o
 f
ro

m
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
d

u
c
tio

n
s,

 r
e
st

ru
c
tu

rin
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n
tin

g
 n

ew
 w

ay
s 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 
a
n
d

 in
c
re

a
se

s 
in

 in
c
o
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 f
e
e
s,

 c
h
a
rg

e
s 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

g
ra

n
ts

. 
T
h
is

 e
n
a
b

le
d

 p
rio

rit
is

e
d

 s
e
rv

ic
w

 
re

d
u
c
tio

n
s 

to
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 
to

 a
n
 a

b
so

lu
te

 m
in

im
u
m

.

S
A

V
IN

G
S

 B
Y

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
A

T
E

/D
IV

IS
IO

N
S

A
V

IN
G

S

A
d

u
lt 

S
o
c
ia

l C
a
re

 &
 H

o
u
si

n
g

£
1
,5

8
2

,0
0

0

C
h
ild

re
n’

s 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

£
6

6
3
,0

0
0

P
la

c
e

£
2

,1
7
1
,0

0
0

R
e
so

u
rc

e
s 

&
 S

u
p

p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

£
3
,3

0
2

,0
0

0

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 &

 A
g
e
n
c
y

£
3
,1

6
1
,0

0
0

W
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
tin

u
in

g
 t
o
 e

xp
lo

re
 s

h
a
re

d
 

se
rv

ic
e
s 

w
ith

 o
u
r 

W
e
st

 o
f 
E

n
g
la

n
d

 
c
o
lle

a
g
u
e
s 

a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

in
 

th
e
 S

o
u
th

 W
e
st

 t
o
 c

re
at

e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

sa
vi

n
g
s.

 
A

 S
in

g
le

 M
e
m

b
e
r 

D
e
c
is

io
n
 w

a
s 

a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 
in

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 f
o
rm

a
lly

 e
st

a
b

lis
h
 o

u
r 

a
u
d

it 
p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ith

 N
o
rt

h
 S

o
m

e
rs

et
 

C
o
u
n
c
il,

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
lle

d
 A

u
d

it 
W

e
st

. 
A

n
d

 in
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

sh
a
re

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

in
iti

at
iv

e
 w

ith
 N

o
rt

h
 S

o
m

e
rs

et
, 
o
u
r 

n
ew

 
H

R
 &

 P
ay

ro
ll 

sy
st

e
m

 (
iT

re
n
t)
 h

a
s 

g
o
n
e
 

liv
e,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d

 
p

e
o
p

le
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
c
a
p

a
c
ity

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e
 s

e
lf-

se
rv

ic
e.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 o
ve

r 
2
,0

0
0
 r

e
st

a
u
ra

n
ts

, 
sh

o
p

s 
a
n
d

 
o
th

e
r 

fo
o
d

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 in

 B
&

N
E

S
 .
 

O
ve

r 
9
7
%

 o
f 
fo

o
d

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

in
sp

e
c
te

d
 d

u
rin

g
 

th
e
 la

st
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s 
w

e
re

 r
at

e
d

 s
at

is
fa

c
to

ry
 o

r 
b

et
te

r3
2
 a

n
d

 3
0
 f
o
o
d

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s 

h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 

su
c
c
e
ss

fu
l i

n
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 E

a
t 

O
u

t 
E

a
t 

W
e
ll

3
3
 

aw
a
rd

 c
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
e
d

 b
y 

P
u
b

lic
 H

e
a
lth

. 
A

 t
h
re

e
 

ye
a
r 

L
o

c
a
l 
F

o
o

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s 

b
e
e
n
 d

ev
e
lo

p
e
d

 
th

at
 w

ill
 c

re
at

e
 t
h
e
 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 f
o
r 

a
c
tio

n
 t
o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 

d
ie

t-
re

la
te

d
 il

l-
h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 in
e
q

u
a
lit

y 
a
c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 

d
is

tr
ic

t,
 w

h
ile

 s
tim

u
la

tin
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
iti

e
s 

in
 t
h
e
 f
o
o
d

 a
n
d

 f
a
rm

in
g
 s

e
c
to

r, 
a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

in
g

 
su

st
a
in

a
b

le
 f
o
o
d

 p
ro

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

 B
at

h
 a

n
d

 N
o
rt

h
 

E
a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
.

A
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
b
y 

o
u
r 

H
e
a
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y 
te

a
m

 s
aw

 v
is

its
 t
o
 o

ve
r 

7
0
 p

re
m

is
e
s 

in
 t
h
e
 b

e
a
u
ty

 
in

d
u
st

ry
 t
o
 a

d
vi

se
 t
h
e
m

 o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
le

va
n
t 
a
sp

e
c
ts

 o
f 

p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 s
af

et
y,

 w
h
ile

 o
u
r 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
tio

n
 t
e
a
m

 r
e
sp

o
n
d

e
d

 t
o
 o

ve
r 

1,
5
0

0
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

re
q

u
e
st

s 
in

 r
e
la

tio
n
 t
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
u
is

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 
e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l p
o
llu

tio
n
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

ra
in

a
g
e
 a

n
d

 
c
o
n
ta

m
in

at
e
d

 la
n
d

 s
ite

s.

T
h
e
 L

ic
e
n
si

n
g
 t
e
a
m

 is
 c

o
m

m
itt

e
d

 t
o
 e

n
su

rin
g

 
lic

e
n
se

d
 p

re
m

is
e
s 

a
re

 s
af

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 w
o
rk

 
in

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ith

 r
e
p

re
se

n
ta

tiv
e
s 

fr
o
m

 A
vo

n
 

a
n
d

 S
o
m

e
rs

et
 P

o
lic

e,
 E

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
ta

l H
e
a
lth

 a
n
d

 
Tr

a
d

in
g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s 
to

 c
a
rr

y 
o
u
t 
ta

rg
et

e
d

 m
u
lti

-
a
g
e
n
c
y 

in
sp

e
c
tio

n
s 

a
s 

th
e
 L

ic
e
n
si

n
g
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
. 
T
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s 

c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u
t 
ex

te
n
si

ve
 

c
o
n
su

lta
tio

n
s 

o
n
 t
h
e
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

ic
e
n
si

n
g
 A

c
t 

a
n
d

 S
tr

e
et

 T
ra

d
in

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

w
ith

 b
o
th

 s
u
c
c
e
ss

fu
lly

 
a
m

e
n
d

e
d

 a
n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 b

y 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 
th

e
 

ye
a
r. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 in

 le
g
is

la
tio

n
, 
th

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

re
 

n
o
 lo

n
g
e
r 

re
q

u
ire

d
 t
o
 s

e
iz

e
 B

lu
e
 B

a
d

g
e
s.

 P
a
rk

in
g

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

n
o
w

 h
av

e
 d

ire
c
t 
p

o
w

e
r 

to
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
ke

 
th

is
 r

o
le

, 
re

su
lti

n
g
 in

 a
 s

ig
n
ifi

c
a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
se

 o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
tim

e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d

 le
a
d

in
g
 t
o

 
in

c
re

a
se

d
 p

ro
se

c
u
tio

n
s 

fo
r 

fr
a
u
d

u
le

n
t 
a
c
tiv

ity
, 
a
 

re
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

 m
is

u
se

 a
n
d

 a
n
 in

c
re

a
se

 in
 a

va
ila

b
le

 
d

e
d

ic
at

e
d

 b
ay

s 
fo

r 
B

lu
e
 B

a
d

g
e
 U

se
rs

. 
A

N
P

R
3

4
 

m
o
b

ile
 p

at
ro

ls
 h

av
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ire
c
te

d
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o

 
d

et
e
r 

ill
e
g
a
l p

a
rk

in
g
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
ir 

ro
u
te

 b
a
se

d
 o

n
 

re
p

o
rt

s 
fr
o
m

 m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
.

Page 84



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

3
0

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

3
1

O
u
r 

IT
 s

e
rv

ic
e,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

fu
lly

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 

b
a
c
k 

in
-h

o
u
se

, 
h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 k

ey
 t
o
 g

e
n
e
ra

tin
g

 
ef

fic
ie

n
c
y 

sa
vi

n
g
s.

 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 in

fr
a
st

ru
c
tu

re
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e,
 w

e
 a

re
 t
h
e
 b

e
st

 in
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y 
 

fo
r 

tw
o
 C

IP
FA

3
5
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

s:
 lo

w
e
st

 c
o
st

 
d

e
sk

to
p

 P
C

 r
e
p

la
c
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g

  
th

e
 h

ig
h
e
st

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

m
o
te

/fl
ex

ib
le

  
w

o
rk

e
r 

c
o
n
n
e
c
tio

n
s.

 

W
e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 o

n
e
 o

f 
o
n
ly

 a
 f
ew

 c
o
u
n
c
ils

 in
 t
h
e
 U

K
 

to
 h

av
e
 im

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t
h
e
 P

u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 N

et
w

o
rk

 
(P

S
N

)3
6
 f
u
ll 

W
a
lle

d
 G

a
rd

e
n
 a

rc
h
ite

c
tu

re
, 
a
 s

et
 o

f 
h
ig

h
ly

 p
re

sc
rip

tiv
e
 s

e
c
u
rit

y 
ru

le
s 

is
su

e
d

 b
y 

th
e
 

C
a
b

in
et

 O
ffi

c
e
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 p
u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 c

o
n
n
e
c
t 

to
 t
h
e
 P

S
N

.

S
o
m

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

ef
fic

ie
n
c
y 

sa
vi

n
g
s 

h
av

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d

 
n
ew

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s.

 W
e
 in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 M
O

T
 f
a
c
ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 

p
u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 t
ra

d
e
 a

t 
o
u
r 

L
o

c
k
s
b

ro
o

k
 R

o
a
d

 d
e
p

o
t 

la
st

 y
e
a
r, 

w
h
ic

h
 n

o
w

 in
c
lu

d
e
s 

fa
c
ili
tie

s 
fo

r 
m

o
to

r 
b

ik
e
s 

a
n
d

 a
ir 

c
o
n
d

iti
o
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

ve
h
ic

le
s.

O
u
r 

n
ew

 T
h

in
k
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

to
o
lk

its
 a

re
 in

 p
la

c
e
 a

n
d

 o
n
 t
h
e
 In

te
rn

et
. 
In

 
2
0
13

/1
4
, 
3
5
%

 o
f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
si

n
e
ss

 w
a
s 

aw
a
rd

e
d

 
to

 lo
c
a
l s

u
p

p
lie

rs
 a

n
d

 4
8
%

 t
o
 s

m
a
ll 

a
n
d

 m
e
d

iu
m

 
si

ze
d

 b
u
si

n
e
ss

e
s,

 r
e
su

lti
n
g
 in

 im
p

ro
ve

d
  

lo
c
a
l s

p
e
n
d
.

W
e
 h

av
e
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

fu
lly

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 f
u
n
d

in
g
 t
o
 h

e
lp

  
w

ith
 t
h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
o
u
r 

re
g
e
n
e
ra

tio
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
n
d

 g
re

e
n
e
r 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y 
in

iti
at

iv
e
s.

 

A
s 

a
n
 e

xa
m

p
le

, 
o
u
r 

L
o
c
a
l S

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
  

Tr
a
n
sp

o
rt

 F
u
n
d

 (
L
S

T
F
) B

id
 f
o
r 

fu
n
d

in
g
 in

  
2
0
15

/1
6
 w

a
s 

su
c
c
e
ss

fu
l w

ith
 £

4
8
0
,0

0
0
 c

a
p

ita
l 

fo
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

yc
le

 a
n
d

 w
a
lk

in
g
 r

o
u
te

s 
in

 
th

e
 B

at
h
 E

n
te

rp
ris

e
 A

re
a
 a

n
d

 £
6
4
3
,0

0
0
 r

ev
e
n
u
e
 

to
 e

xt
e
n
d

 t
h
e
 L

S
T
F
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 in

 B
&

N
E

S
 f
o
r 

a
n
 

a
d

d
iti

o
n
a
l y

e
a
r.

W
e
 h

av
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d

 f
u
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
£

6
0
,0

0
0
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

To
ta

l T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 p
ilo

t 
a
n
d

 s
u
b

m
itt

e
d

 a
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

fu
l 

b
id

 f
o
r 

£
9
9
k 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 C

le
a
n
 V

e
h
ic

le
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y 

F
u
n
d

 t
o
 r

et
ro

fit
 1

1
 b

u
s 

e
n
g
in

e
s.

N
ew

 W
ay

s 
o
f W

o
rk

in
g

W
e
 h

av
e
 m

a
d

e
 e

xc
e
lle

n
t 
p

ro
g
re

ss
 c

o
n
tin

u
in

g
 t
o

 
w

o
rk

 a
s 

#
o

n
e
c
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 m

e
et

 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
in

g
 s

h
a
p

e
 

o
f 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d

 d
e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

n
ew

 v
is

io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
W

ith
 a

 f
o
c
u
s 

o
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
rt

s 
a
n
d

 m
in

d
s 

o
f 
st

af
f, 

w
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
et

h
e
r 

a
s 

#
o

n
e
c
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 h

o
w

 w
e
 w

o
rk

 s
o
 t
h
at

 w
e
 e

m
b

e
d

 fl
ex

ib
le

 
w

o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 m
o
d

e
rn

 w
o
rk

in
g
 p

ra
c
tic

e
s 

th
at

 a
re

 
fo

c
u
se

d
 a

ro
u
n
d

 o
u
r 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

.

W
e
 a

re
 u

si
n
g
 o

ffi
c
e
s 

a
n
d

 w
o
rk

 s
p

a
c
e
 m

o
re

 
ef

fe
c
tiv

e
ly

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

W
o
rk

p
la

c
e
s 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e,
 

in
 a

 w
ay

 t
h
at

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
s 

st
af

f 
to

 b
e
 e

m
p

o
w

e
re

d
 

a
n
d

 m
o
tiv

at
e
d

 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e.

 T
h
is

 h
a
s 

e
n
a
b

le
d

 u
s 

to
 r

at
io

n
a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ffi

c
e
s 

w
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 d

e
sk

s 
fr
o
m

 1
,5

0
0
 t
o
 1

,0
0

0
. 
A

ll 
st

af
f 

c
a
n
 n

o
w

 a
c
c
e
ss

 a
n
d

 u
p

d
at

e
 s

ys
te

m
s 

fr
o
m

 a
n
y 

su
ita

b
le

 p
e
rs

o
n
a
l m

o
b

ile
 d

ev
ic

e
 o

r 
h
o
m

e
 P

C
 

a
n
d

 fi
e
ld

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 e

q
u
ip

p
e
d

 w
ith

 t
h
e
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y 

to
 a

c
c
e
ss

 a
n
d

 u
p

d
at

e
 r

e
c
o
rd

s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

m
o
ve

 in
 r

e
a
l t

im
e,

 e
n
a
b

lin
g
 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 s

p
e
n
d

 m
o
re

 
tim

e
 w

ith
 t
h
e
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
h
at

 r
e
a
lly

 m
at

te
r. 

N
ew

 d
e
sk

to
p

 P
C

s 
h
av

e
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
a
c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

w
ith

 c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

si
o
n
s 

re
d

u
c
e
d

 t
o
 3

0
w

 
p

e
r 

d
e
sk

to
p

 a
n
d

 o
u
r 

C
iv

ic
 C

e
n
tr

e
 in

 K
ey

n
sh

a
m

 
w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

ve
 a

 D
E

C
 A

 r
at

in
g
 (z

e
ro

 c
a
rb

o
n
 in

 u
se

) 
 

b
y 

u
si

n
g
 lo

w
e
r 

c
a
rb

o
n
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y.

 

T
h
e
se

 a
ss

et
s 

a
ls

o
 h

av
e
 a

 m
u
c
h
 lo

n
g
e
r 

u
se

 li
fe

 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 w

e
 n

o
 lo

n
g
e
r 

n
e
e
d

 t
o
 r

ef
re

sh
 d

e
sk

to
p

 
a
ss

e
ts

 e
ve

ry
 f
ew

 y
e
a
rs

, 
in

st
e
a
d

 w
e
 h

av
e
 a

 p
o
lic

y 
o
f 
‘fi

x 
w

h
e
n
 b

ro
ke

’ 
w

ith
 s

o
m

e
 a

ss
et

s 
ex

p
e
c
te

d
 t
o

 
la

st
 t
e
n
 y

e
a
rs

 o
r 

m
o
re

.

O
u
r 

aw
a
rd

-w
in

n
in

g
 1

0
 in

 1
0

0
 s

c
h
e
m

e
3
7
 h

a
s 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 e

m
p

o
w

e
rm

e
n
t 
a
n
d

 w
o
rk

in
g

  
a
s 

#
o

n
e
c
o

u
n

c
il.

S
ta

ff
 h

av
e
 a

lre
a
d

y 
se

e
n
 2

0
 o

f 
th

e
ir 

id
e
a
s 

c
o
m

e
 t
o

 
lif

e
 a

s 
th

ey
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
o
 im

p
ro

ve
 h

o
w

 w
e
 

d
o
 t
h
in

g
s,

 w
h
et

h
e
r 

th
is

 is
 im

p
ro

vi
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 

o
u
r 

c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
n
d

 c
o
m

m
u
n
iti

e
s,

 o
r 

h
o
w

 w
e
 w

o
rk

 
a
s 

a
n
 o

rg
a
n
is

at
io

n
. 

10
 in

 1
0

0
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
av

e
 a

lre
a
d

y 
m

a
d

e
 a

 d
iff

e
re

n
c
e
 

to
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ts

, 
c
o
m

p
le

x 
fa

m
ili
e
s,

 y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
, 
b

o
ys

 w
ith

 t
ro

u
b

le
 r

e
a
d

in
g
, 

c
h
ild

re
n
 f
ro

m
 d

e
p

riv
e
d

 f
a
m

ili
e
s,

 o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d

 
vu

ln
e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p

le
, 
a
n
d

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 
c
yc

lis
ts

. 
T
h
ey

 h
av

e
 a

ls
o
 in

tr
o
d

u
c
e
d

 m
o
re

 e
ffi

c
ie

n
t 

w
ay

s 
o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 
a
n
d

 a
tt

ra
c
te

d
 n

ew
 s

o
u
rc

e
s 

 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e.

O
u
r 

O
n

e
 S

to
p

 S
h

o
p

s
 in

 B
at

h
, 
K

ey
n
sh

a
m

 a
n
d

 
M

id
so

m
e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n
 a

re
 a

 g
re

at
 s

u
c
c
e
ss

 a
n
d

 
e
p

ito
m

is
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’
s 

a
d

o
p
tio

n
 o

f 
p

u
tt

in
g

 
c
u
st

o
m

e
rs

 fi
rs

t,
 a

c
h
ie

ve
d

 b
y 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 e

xc
e
lle

n
t 

fa
c
ili
tie

s,
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

a
n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
  

th
e
 e

n
e
rg

y 
a
n
d

 p
u
rp

o
se

 d
e
m

o
n
st

ra
te

d
 b

y 
st

af
f.

O
u
r 

fo
rw

a
rd

 t
h
in

ki
n
g
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

ith
 

ex
te

rn
a
l p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

at
io

n
s 

h
a
s 

le
d

 t
o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a
l a

u
th

o
rit

ie
s 

w
a
n
tin

g
 t
o
 f
o
llo

w
 o

u
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 m

o
d

e
l. 

A
lo

n
g
si

d
e
 t
h
is

, 
th

e
 

B
at

h
 O

n
e
 S

to
p

 S
h
o
p

 w
a
s 

se
le

c
te

d
 a

s 
o
n
e
 o

f 
12

 
lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
rit

y 
le

d
 p

ilo
t 
si

te
s 

a
c
ro

ss
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y 
lo

o
ki

n
g
 a

t 
o
p
tio

n
s 

o
r 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
tia

l d
ev

e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
d

d
iti

o
n
a
l f

a
c
e
 t
o
 f
a
c
e
 s

u
p

p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’s

 U
n
iv

e
rs

a
l C

re
d

it 
sc

h
e
m

e.

T
h
e
 H

o
u
si

n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s 

a
d

o
p
te

d
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
n
ew

 
w

ay
s 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 in

c
lu

d
in

g
 m

o
b

ile
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y 

fo
r 

fie
ld

 s
ta

ff,
 d

ro
p

-i
n
 s

u
rg

e
rie

s 
o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
B

at
h
 a

n
d

 
a
n
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 w
e
b

si
te

. 
T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
se

lf-
se

rv
ic

e
 

u
se

rs
 h

a
s 

in
c
re

a
se

d
 a

n
d

 c
u
st

o
m

e
r 

sa
tis

fa
c
tio

n
 

h
a
s 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
n
si

st
e
n
tly

 h
ig

h
.

A
 s

e
lf-

se
rv

e
 b

o
o
ki

n
g
 p

ro
c
e
ss

 f
o
r 

c
o
a
c
h
e
s 

w
a
s 

la
u
n
c
h
e
d

 in
 S

e
p
te

m
b

e
r 

w
ith

 t
h
e
 o

n
lin

e
 b

o
o
ki

n
g

 
p

ro
c
e
ss

 f
o
r 

C
h
ris

tm
a
s 

M
a
rk

et
 c

o
a
c
h
 p

a
rk

in
g

 
su

c
c
e
ss

fu
l i

n
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 b

a
c
k 

o
ffi

c
e
 p

ro
c
e
ss

in
g

 
tim

e.
 M

iP
e
rm

it
3

8
 s

c
h
e
m

e,
 o

u
r 

n
ew

 p
ay

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d

 
p

e
rm

its
 s

ys
te

m
 f
o
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
, 
e
n
a
b

le
s 

c
a
sh

le
ss

 
p

a
rk

in
g
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

lo
c
at

io
n
s,

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g
 r

e
si

d
e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 
vi

si
to

rs
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 w

ith
 g

re
at

e
r 

fle
xi

b
ili
ty

 a
n
d

 
a
c
c
e
ss

 o
p
tio

n
s.

3
5
 C

IP
FA

, 
th

e 
C

h
a
rt

e
re

d
 In

st
itu

te
 o

f P
u
b

lic
 F

in
a
n
c
e 

a
n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
ta

n
c
y,

 is
 t
h
e 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n
a
l b

o
d

y 
fo

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 in

 p
u
b

lic
 fi

n
a
n
c
e.

 T
h
e
y 

o
ff
e
r 
a 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 b

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

th
a
t 
p

ro
vi

d
e
s 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
ly

 in
fo

rm
a
tio

n
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n
g

e 
o
f i

ss
u
e
s 

su
c
h
 a

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
c
o
st

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 u

se
d
 b

y 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 m

a
ke

 d
e
c
is

io
n
s,

 c
o
m

p
a
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e,

 r
e
vi

e
w

 

p
ro

c
e
ss

e
s 

a
n
d
 o

u
tp

u
ts

, 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g

e 
re

so
u
rc

e
s 

m
o
re

 e
ff
e
c
tiv

e
ly

.

3
6
 T

h
e 

P
u
b

lic
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 (
P

S
N

) i
s 

th
e 

g
o
ve

rn
m

e
n
t’
s 

h
ig

h
-p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e 

n
e
tw

o
rk

, 
w

h
ic

h
 h

e
lp

s 
p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
tio

n
s 

w
o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r, 

re
d

u
c
e 

d
u
p

lic
a
tio

n
 a

n
d

 

sh
a
re

 r
e
so

u
rc

e
s.

 

3
7 1

0
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y 
th

e 
st

a
ff
 w

h
o
 h

a
d
 t
h
e 

id
e
a 

in
 1

0
0
 d

a
ys

.

3
8

M
iP

e
rm

it 
su

p
p

ly
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s 

to
 p

a
rk

in
g
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 t
h
a
t 
e
n
a
b

le
 c

a
sh

le
ss

 p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
ic

ke
tle

ss
 p

a
rk

in
g
.

Page 85



B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

3
2

B
a
th

 &
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
st

 S
o
m

e
rs

e
t 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

 | 
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

p
o

rt
 2

0
1
4

/1
5

3
3

W
h
at

 w
e
 c

a
n
 lo

o
k 

fo
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 in

 2
01

5
/1

6
…

Te
n
 t
h
in

g
s 

w
e 

sa
id

 w
e 

w
o
u
ld

 d
el

iv
er

 in
 2

01
4
/1

5
:

Te
n
 t
h
in

g
s 

w
e 

ca
n
 lo

o
k 

fo
rw

ar
d
 to

 in
 2

01
5
/1

6
:

R
e
d

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

K
ey

n
sh

a
m

 T
o
w

n
  

H
a
ll 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

N
ew

 le
is

u
re

 p
ro

vi
d
e
r 
 

to
 s

ta
rt

 r
ef

u
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 a
t 
B

at
h
  

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr
e

M
o
d

e
rn

is
e
d

  
L
ib

ra
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e

Fr
e
e 

B
A

N
E
S

  
R

e
si

d
e
n
ts

 A
p
p

  
fo

r 
m

o
b
ile

 d
ev

ic
e
s

E
xp

a
n
si

o
n
 o

f t
h
e
 

C
o
n
n
e
ct

in
g
 F

a
m

ilie
s 

p
ro

je
ct

A
 n

ew
 s

ka
te

 p
a
rk

 
 in

 B
at

h

L
au

n
ch

 o
f t

h
e
  

R
o
m

a
n
 B

at
h
s 

Tr
u
st

 
A

rc
hw

ay
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

  
C

e
n
tr
e D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d

  
P

la
n
s

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 r

o
a
d

  
n
et

w
o
rk

 in
 R

a
d

st
o
c
k

Tr
a
n
sp

o
rt

 S
tr
at

e
g
ie

s 
 

fo
r 
th

e 
S

o
m

e
r 
V
al

le
y,

 
C

h
ew

 V
al

le
y 

a
n
d

  
ru

ra
l a

re
as

6
10

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b

le
  

h
o
m

e
s 

d
e
liv

e
re

d

A
d

o
p
tio

n
 o

f 
 

C
o
re

 S
tr

at
e
g
y

Tw
o
 n

ew
 p

rim
a
ry

  
sc

h
o
o
ls

 (
in

 K
ey

n
sh

a
m

  
a
n
d
 B

at
h
)

G
re

e
n
 F

la
g
 H

e
rit

ag
e
  

P
a
rk

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 fo
r 
 

R
o
ya

l V
ic

to
ria

 P
a
rk

*

C
o
m

p
le

tio
n
 o

f 
 

N
ew

b
rid

g
e
 P

a
rk

 &
 R

id
e

L
au

n
ch

 o
f a

  
n
ew

 H
o
u
si

n
g
 a

n
d

 
D

ev
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
 

C
o
m

p
a
n
y

E
n
e
rg

y 
sa

vi
n
g

 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

  
to

 h
o
m

e
s*

C
o
u
n
c
il 

Ta
x 

fr
e
e
ze

A
ffo

rd
a
b
le

 h
o
u
si

n
g

  
in

 B
at

h
 c

ity
 c

e
n
tr
e,

 
K

ey
n
sh

a
m

, 
M

id
so

m
e
r 

N
o
rt

o
n,

 P
au

lto
n,

 
R

ad
st

o
ck

 a
n
d
 H

ig
h
 

L
itt

le
to

n

V
ic

to
ria

 B
rid

g
e
  

re
fu

rb
is

h
e
d

  
a
n
d
 r
e
o
p
e
n
e
d

*S
e
e
 p

a
g

e
s 

13
 (
e
n
e
rg

y 
sa

vi
n
g
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

) a
n
d

 2
5
 (
p

a
rk

s
) f

o
r 

d
e
ta

ils
.

Page 86



Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

RESOURCES PDS FORWARD PLAN 

 
This Forward Plan lists all the items coming to the Panel over the next few months. 

Inevitably, some of the published information may change; Government guidance recognises that the plan is a best 

assessment, at the time of publication, of anticipated decision making.  The online Forward Plan is updated regularly and 

can be seen on the Council’s website at: 

http://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/mgPlansHome.aspx?bcr=1 

The Forward Plan demonstrates the Council’s commitment to openness and participation in decision making.  It assists the 

Panel in planning their input to policy formulation and development, and in reviewing the work of the Cabinet. 

Should you wish to make representations, please contact the report author or Michaela Gay, Democratic Services (01225 

394411).  A formal agenda will be issued 5 clear working days before the meeting.   

Agenda papers can be inspected on the Council’s website and at the Guildhall (Bath), Hollies (Midsomer Norton), Civic 

Centre (Keynsham) and at Bath Central, Keynsham and Midsomer Norton public libraries. 

 

A
genda Item

 12

P
age 89



 

1 

  

Ref 
Date 

Decision 
Maker/s 

Title 
Report Author 

Contact 
Strategic Director Lead 

25TH NOVEMBER 2015 

16 Nov 2015 
 

25 Nov 2015 
 
 
 

CTE PDS 
 

Resources PDS 
 Directorate Plan for Resources 

 
Tim Richens 

 
Andrew Pate 
Tel: 01225 

477468  Tel: 
01225 477300 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

4 Nov 2015 
 

25 Nov 2015 
 

16 Feb 2016 
 

E2779 
 

Cabinet 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Council 
 

Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate 
Strategy 2015-19 

 
Helen Edelstyn 

 
David Trethewey 

Tel: 01225 
477951  Tel: 
01225 396353 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

25 Nov 2015 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Performance Management 

 
David Trethewey, 
Steve Harman 

Tel: 01225 396353, 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

20TH JANUARY 2016 

20 Jan 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Directorate Plans - follow up 
 

Andrew Pate 
Tel: 01225 477300 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

20 Jan 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Houses of Multiple Occupancy (referred by Council) 
 

Ian Savigar 
Tel: 01225 477327 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

P
age 90



 
 

2 

Ref 
Date 

Decision 
Maker/s 

Title 
Report Author 

Contact 
Strategic Director 

Lead 

20 Jan 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Training and Development 

 
William Harding, 
David Trethewey 
Tel: 01225 477203, 
Tel: 01225 396353 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

20 Jan 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Commercial Estate 

 
Richard Long, 
Derek Quilter 

Tel: 01225 477075, 
Tel: 01225 477739 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

8TH FEBRUARY 2016 

8 Feb 2016 
 

10 Feb 2016 
 

16 Feb 2016 
 

E2800 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Cabinet 
 

Council 
 

Budget and Council Tax 2016/17 and Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2016/17 to 2019/20 

 
Tim Richens 

 
 
 

Gary Adams 
Tel: 01225 

477468    Tel: 
01225 477107 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

16TH MARCH 2016 

16 Mar 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Council Connect 
 

Ian Savigar 
Tel: 01225 477327 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

16 Mar 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 Welfare Reform - Universal Credit and Council Tax 

Support 

 
Ian Savigar 

Tel: 01225 477327 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

16 Mar 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

City Deal and Devolution 
 

Tim Richens 
Tel: 01225 477468 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

P
age 91



 
 

3 

Ref 
Date 

Decision 
Maker/s 

Title 
Report Author 

Contact 
Strategic Director 

Lead 

18TH MAY 2016 

18 May 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Pensions Board 
 

Tony Bartlett 
Tel: 01225 477302 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

18 May 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 Business Rate Retention - Impact of Government 

Changes 

 
Tim Richens 

Tel: 01225 477468 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

18 May 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Digital Strategy 
 

Angela Parratt 
Tel: 01225 396576 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

13TH JULY 2016 

13 Jul 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 Use of Consultants and Agency Staff - Update on Task 

and Finish Group 

 
Richard Howroyd 
Tel: 01225 477334 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

13 Jul 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Procurement Strategy - Think Local 
 

Richard Howroyd 
Tel: 01225 477334 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

14TH SEPTEMBER 2016 

14 Sep 2016 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 

Communications 

 
Jonathan Mercer, 
David Trethewey 
Tel: 01225 477449, 
Tel: 01225 396353 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

ITEMS TO BE SCHEDULED 

P
age 92



 
 

4 

Ref 
Date 

Decision 
Maker/s 

Title 
Report Author 

Contact 
Strategic Director 

Lead 

 
 
 
 

Resources PDS 
 Equalities and Performance Impacts of Strategic 

Spending Review 

 
David Trethewey 
Tel: 01225 396353 

Strategic Director - 
Resources 

 

The Forward Plan is administered by DEMOCRATIC SERVICES:  Michaela Gay 01225 394411  Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 

P
age 93



P
age 94

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	7 MINUTES
	8 Directorate Plan for Resources
	App 1 - Directorate Plan (Resources)
	App 1 (Annex 1) - Summary of functions of the Division (Resources)
	App 1 (Annex 2) - Analysis of Headline Numbers (Resources)
	App 1 (Annex 3) - Draft Capital Programme (Resources)
	App 1 (Annex 4) - Finance and Resource Impacts 1617 (Resources)

	9 Bath and North East Somerset Council Corporate Strategy 2016-20
	Draft Corprate Strategy 2016-20 - Appendix 1

	10 Performance Management
	Annual Performance Report

	12 Panel Workplan

